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A CROSSROADS AND A NEW BEGINNING

“The year 2007 was a crossroads and a new beginning: the outstanding 

results obtained substantially exceeded the goals forecast three years ago,

thus providing the Board of Directors with new opportunities to strategically

reposition Arab Bank Group over the next three years.”

Abdel Hamid A. M. Shoman, Chairman/CEO

The year 2007 represents indeed a crossroads and a new beginning for Arab

Bank Group. Over the past few years the Group has achieved its objectives

of enhancing its earning power, augmenting the equity base, raising produc-

tivity by restructuring the balance sheet and meeting the challenges of the

competition through a complete reorganization of the Head Office and 

operating units. The Group now aims to strategically reposition itself so as

to further improve its regional and international position of distinction.

To express the new direction of the Group, a selected number of photo-

graphs depicting the new open roads were utilized in the Annual Report.

These photos also show some of the major projects funded by the Group to

support economic growth in the Arab world in the fields of oil, petrochemi-

cals and infrastructure. 



Amman, the home of Arab Bank,
will always be an important part of its history.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

35
30
25
20
15
10

5
0

ARAB BANK GROUP
In USD million 2007 2006 Variance

Net interest income 966.8 788.6 178.2
Income after tax 775.0 624.6 150.4
Dividends 166.7 139.4 27.3
Income per share (USD) 2.15 1.85 0.30

Total assets 38 333.3 32 465.4 5 867.9
Customer deposits 24 722.3 21 766.3 2 956.0
Direct credit facilities 19 483.2 14 165.3 5 317.9
Shareholders’ equity 6 857.3 5 884.6 972.7

Net interest and commission income to total assets 3.12 2.99
Net income to total assets 2.02 1.92
Shareholders’ equity to total assets 17.89 18.13
Direct credit facilities to total deposits 64.28 55.91
Capital adequacy ratio 22.75 23.70

Share prices for 2007 (in JOD)
End-of-week closing
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The outstanding results obtained in 2007 substantially exceeded the goals forecast

three years ago, thus providing the Board of Directors with new opportunities to

strategically reposition Arab Bank Group over the next three years (2008–2010). 

Responding positively to this challenge, the Board of Directors has been developing

new plans and policies built upon previous achievements and fully capitalizing on the

outstanding possibilities derived from the positive changes within the Group’s work-

ing environment. Our strategic plan for the coming three years is based on three im-

portant dimensions, the first of which is aimed at achieving ambitious organic growth

as well as a very well-designed, non-organic expansion strategy based on acquisitions.

The second is to attain a level of operational efficiency equal to the highest prevail-

ing international standards. The third is to implement optimum corporate governance

standards and compliance with regulatory requirements. It is important to point out

that Arab Bank Group pioneered the implementation of strict corporate governance

and compliance polices in the Arab region, and was the first to do so among Arab 

financial institutions.

The global subprime crisis, resulting partly from real estate lending to high-risk bor-

rowers with a low income and poor or no credit history in the USA, was one of the most

significant factors that affected the financial institutions in 2007. The crisis has weak-

ened the performance of many international financial institutions, and its full impact

is yet to be determined. The negative results forced several big international financial

institutions to increase their share capital and restructure their equity in order to main-

tain a sound financial position and meet the minimum capital adequacy ratios. As a

result of the crisis, there was a sharp decline in confidence among financial institu-

tions operating in the international money markets, which led to an acute shortage in

interbank liquidity. Consequently, the major central banks of the world were forced to

inject large amounts of liquidity to save the international financial systems from a 

real crisis, the consequences of which are unpredictable. Because of Arab Bank

Group’s sound financial policies and strong liquidity, it was able to avoid the negative

impacts of this crisis.

Dear Shareholders,

Arab Bank recorded some important achievements in 2007. The

Bank’s continued prosperity over the years is a natural outcome

of the adoption by its management of prudent yet progressive

and innovative policies and a comprehensive approach to inter-

nal and external variables affecting the banking industry. This has

guaranteed the growth and protection of shareholders’ interests,

while solidifying the Bank’s excellent reputation in serving its

clients. 



Oil prices soared over the past year,

which had a positive impact on econom-

ic growth in most Arab countries. The

abundant funds enabled these Arab

countries to invest in vital and diverse

development projects. The additional

spending supported liquidity in the mon-

ey markets and gave investors and finan-

cial institutions better opportunities to

do business and to expand their activi-

ties. These developments had a positive impact on the financial status and perform-

ance of Arab Bank. The Bank’s deep knowledge and wide geographical  presence in

the regional market enabled it to capitalize on the opportunities created by the

favourable environment through its participation in several substantial economic and

development projects and through enhanced inter-Arab trade and economic perform-

ance. At the same time it was able to build economic and financial bridges with the

major global economies. 

In line with the growth of the past years, and in accordance with the planned 

strategy, Arab Bank Group’s financial growth rate strengthened significantly in 2007.

Total assets grew by 18.1% in comparison to 2006, to reach USD 38.3 billion. The

Group also succeeded in meeting its strategic financial objectives of enhancing prof-

itability, diversifying its sources of funds and expanding their maturity bands, as well

as improving the utilization of the funds. Total customer deposits and cash margin grew

by USD 2,956 million, or by 13.6%. Moreover, and in keeping with our goals of diversi-

fying the sources of funds, effectively managing assets and liabilities and expanding

the maturity bands of the external sources of funds, the Bank succeeded in raising a

USD 500 million syndicated five-year term loan facility through a consortium of inter-

national banks that underwrote and arranged the syndication. The total annual cost

of this loan was 25 bps over Libor. The large subscription to the loan by 29 interna-

tional banks in the United States, Europe, Asia and the Middle East reflects the Bank’s

financial strength and the confidence it enjoys worldwide, in addition to the leading

position it holds among international and Arab banks. 

Thus the Bank was successful in implementing its geographic expansion plans,

strengthening its regional and international presence, and diversifying its sectoral and

geographic investments to achieve best results and maximize value for its stakehold-

ers based on studied investment and credit risks. Equally important, shareholders’
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

USD million
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equity grew during the year by 16.5% compared to the previous year, to reach approx-

imately USD 7 billion. Moreover, Arab Bank Group has increased its internal sources

of funds at a rate similar to the growth of its external sources. 

As far as the utilization of funds is concerned, we devoted considerable efforts to de-

veloping the direct credit facilities portfolio, which grew by 37.5% to reach USD 19.5

billion, and to sustaining the high quality of its components. This had a very positive

impact on our productivity and profitability. The lending activity covered all Arab Bank

Group customer segments, including retail, small, medium and large enterprises. The

Group also managed several banking consortia, issuing large and complex loans to

conglomerates and financial entities operating in the Arab world. Special attention

was given to maintaining our traditionally high liquidity, which in turn enhanced our

financial strength and credit soundness.

As a result of the Group’s ability to strengthen its financial position and restructure

its sources of funds and their utilization, it succeeded in significantly increasing its to-

tal revenue and net income. Total net income for the year, before tax, reached approx-

imately USD one billion, representing 22% growth over the previous year. The net

income of the Group after tax reached USD 775.0 million, representing a growth of

USD 150.4 million, or 24.1%. By this, Arab Bank Group succeeded in achieving a high-

er return on equity than that recorded before the increase of capital by the rights is-

sue of 2006. 



9

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The outstanding financial results are a reflection of the success of our endeavors in

several areas of operations. Good performance starts from the moment of our first

contact with the customer and ends with the preparation of the financial statements

and the accompanying notes disclosing the most important activities of the Group’s

entities.

The organizational restructuring of the head office and the branches, which was com-

pleted in 2006, enhanced our ability to effectively deal with the different customer

groups and segments in accordance with their respective nature and requirements.

Consequently, we were able to improve our quality of service and our earnings. In 2007,

we completed a comprehensive reorganization of our private banking activities so as

to provide our affluent customers with better wealth management through customized

services and products. We expect the positive impact of this reorganization to be re-

flected in the performance of the Group in the near future through an improvement of

non-interest income, which supports the overall earning power of the Bank. Addition-

ally, during the past year, we have expanded and strengthened our branch network,

increasing the number of branches operating in areas that require direct communica-

tion with clients. Our expansion efforts included our operations in Egypt, Tunisia,

Algeria and Qatar.

The Group’s achievements in 2007 also included strengthening the financial position

of Europe Arab Bank plc. The efficiency, with which it has implemented its business

strategy, has already made Europe Arab Bank one of the leading and most geograph-

ically extended Arab financial institutions operating in the European Union (EU). Its

equity base at year-end was augmented to approximately USD one billion and total 

assets reached USD 6.4 billion. In 2007, Europe Arab Bank plc finalized its consolida-

tion and restructuring operations. The result of the last quarter showed a very prom-

ising operating income. The Bank will be an important bridge between the economies

of the Arab world and the EU. 

Our efforts were not only confined to enhancing the financial performance of the Bank;

they were also extended to improving the quality of control and risk management at

all levels. The Group’s achievements in this area included finalization of policies and

procedures aimed at responding to the requirements of the banking regulatory author-

ities with respect to capital adequacy known as Basel II Rules. In addition, Arab Bank

has become a model in the area of compliance and in the implementation of advanced

anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist funding controls.
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In continuing Arab Bank’s pioneering role in implementing corporate governance prin-

ciples and in codifying its practices in this field, the Bank has prepared its own cor-

porate governance guide in line with its needs and policies. This guide is based on the

corporate governance principles of the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and

Development (OECD), the guidelines issued by the Basel Committee for the promo-

tion of corporate governance practices in financial institutions and the corporate gov-

ernance guide issued by the Central Bank of Jordan. The code of conduct of the Bank’s

Board of Directors, which governs their performance at the highest level of conduct,

has also been endorsed.

In support of the management’s policy to improve the dividend distribution to the

shareholders, the Board of Directors has decided to distribute a free half share for each

outstanding share held by those shareholders registered in the Bank’s records on the

fifteenth day after the date of approval by the Board of Commissioners of the Securi-

ties Commission to register the proposed increase in the Bank’s capital. This shall be

subject to approval by the Bank’s extraordinary General Assembly. Additionally, the

Board of Directors proposes the distribution of 30% of the nominal value of the shares

as cash dividends. Accordingly, total cash dividends for 2007 will be augmented to JOD

106.8 million, compared to JOD 89.0 million in 2006. This represents an increase of

JOD 17.8 million, or 20.0%. 

Finally, please accept my sincere thanks and appreciation for your support and loyal-

ty. I would also like to thank our clients for their trust. A special word of thanks goes

to our staff for their good work, efforts and dedication.

Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman

Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer



Arab Bank Group continued its substantial funding of infrastructure projects 
in the Middle East and North Africa in 2007.
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MANAGEMENT  DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dear shareholders,

The 3-year plan (2005–2007) has come to an end. Our actual achievements have been
materially greater than our targets. These outstanding results are the product of sev-
eral factors, including the increase in shareholders’ equity from USD 3.4 billion at the
end of 2004 to almost USD 7 billion at the end of 2007, representing an increase of
105.9%. Restructuring of the balance sheet is another important factor. The Group was
able to improve the weight of direct credit facilities from 39.3% of the total assets at
the end of 2004 to 50.8% at the end of 2007. We also succeeded in enhancing our al-
ready good credit rating by the leading credit rating agencies. The A- rating in 2007
enabled us to extend the maturities of the external funds by obtaining a USD 500 mil-
lion syndicated loan which matures in five years. 

Due to management control and the organizational structure, we were able to com-
plete the new business-based segmented design with little disruption of the Bank’s
operations. We also improved our ability to manage risks, which enabled us to increase
our asset productivity while simultaneously lowering our risk class.

One of the most significant challenges facing Arab Bank Group in the coming years is
the need to achieve dynamic growth, and to maintain a strong financial position with-
out exposing the Group to higher risks. We aim to position the Group strategically, us-
ing its unique status to enable it to rise above the competition and to consolidate its
position as leader within the banking industry in the Arab region. 

In 2008, we will endeavor to increase the productive assets of the Group at rates
matching those of the previous years, while maintaining our high liquidity ratios.
Achieving our goals calls for parallel growth in the external sources of funds. Accord-
ingly, the 2008 budget is based on the growth of customer deposits. 

In 2007, the Board of Directors approved the next 3-year strategic plan (2008–2010).
The new plan is designed to achieve an accelerated growth rate in harmony with the
Bank’s vision and with the significant changes in the working environment of the
Group. Our goals will be realized by organic growth as well as acquisition. According-
ly, it is expected that Arab Bank Group will make some important acquisitions in the
coming years, which are expected to significantly enhance the financial position as
well as the net income of the Group. Maintaining the strong characteristics of the
Group’s financial position, represented by liquidity, return on equity and efficiency, will
continue to provide the main guidelines of our work.

The Executive Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 78 TH ANNUAL REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

It gives us great pleasure to present to
you the 78th Annual Report, which in-
cludes a presentation of the most impor-
tant results of Arab Bank Group for the
year 2007. From the numbers stated in
this report, it will be clearly evident to
you that Arab Bank Group has achieved
good results, meeting and exceeding the
targets set by the management. On this
occasion, we wish to confirm to you our
commitment to further strengthening
this great institution and firmly establish-
ing its leadership position.

GLOBAL BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The sound growth of the US and global economies from January to end July 2007 was
cut short by the onset of the US mortgage market crisis in August and September and
the subsequent re-pricing of credit risks. In response, the central banks launched con-
certed efforts to mitigate the adverse effects of the turmoil in the financial markets.
While these measures are construed as “steps in the right direction”, the robustness
and continuity of global economic growth in 2008 is expected to be tempered. 

On the basis of purchasing power parity (PPP) estimates, asymmetries in GDP growth
at the regional and country level were evident in 2007. While the global economy grew
at an estimated 5.2%, growth figures for the European Union (EU) and Japan were in
the vicinity of 2.5% and 2% respectively. In the USA, the correction in the domestic
housing sector and the resultant drop in residential investments slashed US econom-
ic growth by 1 percentage point, to hover at around 2%. Emerging Asia retained its 
position as the world’s most dynamic region, with growth estimates for China and 
India in the order of 11.5% and 9% respectively. 

Negative effects from the crisis in the subprime market continue to cast a shadow on
prospects for global economic growth in 2008, which is forecast to be 4.8% on a PPP
basis.  This forecast assumes that the USA will manage to avoid recession and that

This report for the year ended 31 December 2007 was submitted to the General Assembly of Share-
holders at the Annual Meeting held on Friday, 28 March 2008.

His Majesty King Abdullah II receiving Mr Abdel Hamid Shoman, Chairman/CEO,

at a reception in support of Al Hussein Centre for Fighting Cancer.
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some emerging economies, notably Chi-
na and India, will continue to expand rap-
idly.  However, a number of risks remain,
including higher volatility in the financial
markets, tightened market liquidity fol-
lowing growing mortgage defaults, rising
oil and commodity prices and continued
global imbalances caused by high US
trade account deficits and the associat-
ed volatility of the US dollar. 

Global inflation continued to grow at an
estimated rate of 3.1% in 2007, though it
varied geographically, with relatively
moderate consumer price increases
recorded in advanced economies, at an
estimated 2.1%, compared to an estimat-
ed 5.9% for developing countries. 

The countries of the Middle East and North Africa (MENA countries) enjoyed high GDP
growth rates, estimated at 5.4% in 2007. This was the result of continuing high oil
prices in tandem with greater foreign exchange inflows, credit expansion, rising net
foreign direct investment, increased remittances and continued economic and finan-
cial reforms. While lower than the growth rates of the two previous years, the region’s
growth performance and economic potential nevertheless remain quite strong.  

Oil-producing countries of the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) achieved GDP growth
rates of about 5.3%, with the composition of growth shifting towards the non-oil sec-
tors in their economies. Benefiting from rising foreign direct investment, workers’ re-
mittances and economic reforms, the GDP growth rates of the Maghreb and Mashreq
countries were 5.8% and 4.5% respectively.  

Many Arab countries have gained membership of the World Trade Organization (WTO).
In addition, several bilateral and multilateral trade and common market agreements
have been concluded, including the newly announced GCC common market agree-
ment. Such agreements embody commitments to liberalizing trade, capital and labour,
which should have a positive effect on the fiscal balance and the competitiveness and
efficiency of the trade and financial sectors.  

While the short-term prospects are good, the region faces continuing security risks
and challenges that affect its ability to sustain its transformation efforts and make

The Chairman/CEO with distinguished credit officers during the annual dinner of

the Credit Division.
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headway in reducing unemployment and poverty.  Although the Arab region’s unem-
ployment rate is declining, it remains well above 10% in many countries. 

Inflationary pressures have recently escalated, particularly in the GCC economies.
The surge has been due to an amalgam of factors. These include governments’ expan-
sionary fiscal polices, the oil-related surge in liquidity, asset price bubbles and supply
rigidities in the non-tradable sectors. In addition, the decline of the US dollar against
the euro and the Japanese yen has reinforced domestic inflationary pressures in the
GCC economies. In non-oil-producing Arab economies, inflationary pressures rose as
a result of increasing costs of oil imports and higher food prices.  

CHANGES IN RULES AND REGULATIONS AFFECTING THE BANKING INDUSTRY

The banking industry is governed by a multitude of rules and regulations, including: 
• Banking supervision and regulatory rules,
• Corporate governance regulations,
• Accounting standards,
• Tax regulations.

With regard to changing banking supervision and regulatory rules, Arab Bank is in
compliance with the capital adequacy requirement known as Basel II. Financial sys-
tems, risk management and information technology (IT) were redesigned to meet this
new requirement. The 2007 Annual Report includes the calculations of the Basel II
capital adequacy requirement. In addition the Central Bank of Jordan circulated its
latest revision of Corporate Governance Guidelines, and the banking industry was re-
quested to follow the new guidelines starting end 2007. Arab Bank pioneered good
corporate governance in the Arab region several years ahead of its peers. Its corpo-
rate governance is reflected in the work of the Board’s committees and the Bank’s or-
ganizational structure. Arab Bank’s Corporate Governance Code is presented in the
annex to this report. 

The Amman Stock Exchange and its related agencies issued several new rules and
regulations covering disclosure in annual reports, and the Bank abides by these new
rules. Furthermore, both the Central Bank of Jordan and the Amman Stock Exchange
require compliance with internal accounting standards dealing with measurement,
valuation and disclosure. Arab Bank meets the regulatory requirements and coordi-
nates its work with all related regulatory bodies.

In 2007, there were no significant tax rules that may materially affect the Bank’s tax
liability in the countries where it operates.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ 78 TH ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

This report briefly reviews the performance of Arab Bank Group and the financial
statements of Arab Bank, which include the operations of the branches in Jordan and
in other countries. The currencies used in the financial statements of the branches
outside Jordan have been translated to the Jordanian dinar (JOD), according to the
prevailing exchange rate at the end of the year. Since 1995, the exchange rate of the
Jordanian dinar has been pegged to the US dollar at an average rate of 0.709.

Arab Bank Group applies the Interna-
tional Accounting Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS) in the preparation of its fi-
nancial statements. These standards in-
clude IAS 32 (Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation) and IAS 39
(Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement). IFRS 7 (Financial Instru-
ments: Disclosures) was implemented
as of 1 January 2007. 

The financial statements of Arab Bank Group consolidate the statements of Arab

Bank plc, its sister institution, Arab Bank (Switzerland), and the following sub-

sidiaries:

Percentage ownership

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Arab Bank Australia Ltd., Sydney 100.00
Europe Arab Bank plc, London 100.00
Islamic International Arab Bank plc, Amman 100.00
Al Arabi  Investment Group, Amman 100.00
Arab Investment Bank S.A.L., Beirut 66.65
Arab Tunisian Bank, Tunis 64.24
AB Capital Ltd., Dubai 60.00
Arab Palestinian Investment Bank, Ramallah 55.00
Arab Bank-Syria, Damascus 49.00

NON-BANKING INSTITUTIONS
Arab Leasing Company, Amman 100.00
Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company, Amman 50.00
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The  following section highlights the most important financial achievements of Arab
Bank Group and Arab Bank plc.

ARAB BANK GROUP

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Arab Bank Group achieved good results
in 2007. The net income reached USD
775.0 million after provisions and tax, an
increase of USD 150.4 million, or 24.1%,
over 2006. Income before tax amounted
to USD 964.2 million, compared to USD
790.0 million the previous year. Total ex-
penses increased by USD 81.2 million, or
13.1%, slightly higher than budgeted.

The principal components of the Group’s income are as follows: 

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Net revenue 1 666.4 1 411.0 255.4 18.1
Total expenses 702.2 621.0 81.2 13.1
Income before tax 964.2 790.0 174.2 22.1
Income tax 189.2 165.4 23.8 14.4
Income after tax 775.0 624.6 150.4 24.1

FINANCIAL POSITION

In 2007, total funds of the Group rose to USD 38.3 billion, representing an increase of
USD 5,867.9 million, or 18.1% over the previous year. This growth was the result of the
following:

In USD million

Increase in customer deposits and cash margin 2 956.0
Increase in deposits from banks and borrowed funds 2 017.5
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (78.3)
Increase in shareholders’ equity 972.7
Net increase in funds 5 867.9
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Arab Bank plays an important role in promoting inter-Arab trade 
through its funding of marine transportation and seaports.
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The additional funds were utilized as follows:

In USD million

Cash and due from banks (93.5)
Financial assets and investments 564.3
Direct credit facilities 5 317.9
Fixed and other assets 79.2
Net increase in the utilization of funds 5 867.9

The structure of the financial statements of the Group was, in general, similar to that
of Arab Bank plc. Customer deposits and cash margin accounted for 64.5% of total
funds. On the other hand, the direct credit facilities grew to USD 19.5 billion, repre-
senting an increase of USD 5,317.9 million, or 37.5% over 2006.

ARAB BANK PLC

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The income of Arab Bank plc continued to show substantial improvement for the third
consecutive year. Its income for 2007, after provisions and tax, reached JOD 334.7 mil-
lion, representing an increase of JOD 71.4 million, or 27.1% over that of the previous
year. 

The following table contains a comparative analysis of the principal components of
the Bank’s income before and after tax.

In JOD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Income before provisions and taxes 428.1 352.5 75.6 21.4
Provisions 11.4 23.2 (11.8) (51.3)
Income before tax 416.7 329.3 87.4 26.6
Income tax 82.0 66.0 16.0 24.4
Income after tax 334.7 263.3 71.4 27.1

The results show a significant growth in core income, mainly net interest income and
other revenue from financial services. Net interest income was 71.4% of total revenue
in 2007 compared to 70.6% in 2006. 

Expenses increased by 3.5% over those of 2006. This reflects management’s ability to
control expenses. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets of Arab Bank plc at 31 December 2007 amounted to JOD 21,220.0 million,
compared to JOD 18,440.1 million at the end of 2006, representing an increase of
15.1% or JOD 2,779.9 million. The total balance sheet grew to JOD 29,552.8 million, an

increase of JOD 3,861.5 million or 15.0%.
In 2007, both external and internal funds
grew. Customer deposits and the cash
margin rose to JOD 13,658.0 million, a
growth of 11.7%. Deposits from banks
and financial institutions increased by
JOD 857.5 million, or 32.6%. This increase
included USD 500 million from a five-
year syndicated loan. All sources of
funds, including shareholders’ equity,
grew by 15.1%, representing JOD 2,779.9
million.

The following table shows the changes in the sources of funds in 2007:

In JOD million

External sources of funds and other liabilities 2 325.9
Increase in shareholders’ equity 454.0
Total 2 779.9

In 2007, Arab Bank plc continued its work to change the structure of its assets so as
to increase their productivity. The main changes in the utilization of funds were as fol-
lows:

In JOD million

Increase in cash and due from banks 187.3
Increase in financial assets and investments 359.3
Increase in direct credit facilities 1 965.3
Increase in fixed and other assets 268.0
Total 2 779.9
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A summary of the total utilization of funds, which reflects the drive to increase pro-
ductivity while maintaining a high level of liquidity, is presented below:

In JOD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Cash and due from banks 6 801.9 6 614.6 187.3 2.8
Financial assets and investments 3 226.2 2 866.9 359.3 12.5
Direct credit facilities 9 875.1 7 909.8 1 965.3 24.8
Long-term investments 870.4 513.7 356.7 69.4
Fixed and other assets 446.4 535.1 (88.7) (16.6)
Total assets 21 220.0 18 440.1 2 779.9 15.1

INCOME APPROPRIATION

ARAB BANK PLC

Arab Bank follows a well-established policy with regard to cash dividends, which aims
at achieving two objectives: enhancement of its earning power and distribution of the
largest possible amount to the shareholders. The Bank sets a limit on the cash divi-
dends payout ratio to 30% of net income after tax. 

As a result of the good growth in net income, the Board of Directors decided to in-
crease the proposed dividends for 2007.

The Board of Directors’ recommendation to the General Assembly for appropriation of
the income is as follows:

In JOD million 2007 2006

Income available for appropriation 334.7 263.3

Proposed appropriation:
Statutory reserve 42.0 33.0
Voluntary reserve 82.0 66.0
General reserve 0.0 33.0
General banking risk reserve 103.9 42.3
Proposed dividends 106.8 89.0
Total appropriation 334.7 263.3
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From the previous table it can be ob-
served that the proposed dividends for
Arab Bank’s shares are JOD 0.30 per
share, representing 30% of their nominal
value, which signifies a 20% increase over
the dividends of 2006. The dividends will
be paid in full to the shareholders who
are registered in the respective books of
the Bank on the date of the Annual Meet-
ing of the General Assembly. 

ARAB BANK GROUP

The shareholders of Arab Bank Group receive annual dividends from Arab Bank plc as
well as from Arab Bank (Switzerland). The Board of Directors of Arab Bank (Switzerland)
decided to increase the proposed dividends to 30% in 2007, from 25% in 2006. 

The income appropriation for Arab Bank (Switzerland) is as follows:

In CHF million 2007 2006

Income after tax 22.3 22.1
Retained earnings from previous year 3.8 3.9
Total available for appropriation 26.1 26.0
Proposed dividends 8.0 6.7
Allocation to general legal reserve 0.7 0.5
Allocation to other reserves 14.0 15.0
Surplus to be carried forward to next year 3.4 3.8
Total appropriation 26.1 26.0

Based on the above, the dividends for each share will be CHF 0.225, with a withhold-
ing tax of 35% deducted before distribution to the shareholders.  
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The following table shows the income appropriation for Arab Bank Group:

In USD million 2007 2006

Income after tax 775.0 624.6
Retained earnings from previous year 90.4 86.7
Total available for appropriation 865.4 711.3
To statutory reserve 63.7 49.8
To voluntary reserve 134.2 107.4
To general reserve 12.8 58.8
To general banking risk reserve 146.7 59.7
To reserves with associated companies 214.3 205.7
Proposed cash dividends 166.7 139.4
Retained earnings carried forward 127.0 90.5
Total appropriation 865.4 711.3

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

ARAB BANK GROUP

In 2007, Arab Bank Group continued its strong organic growth in shareholders’ equi-
ty as presented in the following table:

In USD million 2007 2006

Capital 525.0 525.0
Issuing premium 1 475.5 1 313.3
Treasury shares (0.4) (48.5)
Statutory reserve 330.7 267.0
Voluntary reserve 729.0 594.8
General reserve 1 612.3 1 599.5
General banking risk reserve 426.9 281.6
Reserves with associated companies 1 085.2 870.9
Translation adjustments 173.2 89.7
Cumulative change in fair value 118.0 101.1
Retained earnings 127.0 90.5
Proposed dividends 166.7 139.4
Total shareholders’ equity (parent company) 6 769.1 5 824.3
Minority interest 88.2 60.3
Shareholders’ total equity 6 857.3 5 884.6

It can be observed from this table that the growth in the Group’s equity was as strong
as the growth in the external sources of funds.
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CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Arab Bank Group enjoys a strong capital adequacy ratio.

The following table presents a summary of the Group’s capital adequacy calculations
in accordance with Basel II rules as at 31 December 2007 and 2006:

In USD thousand 2007 2006

Risk-weighted assets 24 558 941 20 305 911
Tier I capital 4 666 140 4 289 219
Tier II capital 504 631 380 966
Total regulatory equity 5 170 771 4 670 185
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets 19.00% 21.12%
Total regulatory equity to risk-weighted assets 21.05% 23.00%

EXTRAORDINARY AND NON-RECURRING ITEMS
In 2007, there were no significant extraordinary and non-recurrent items which had a
material impact on the Group’s or the Bank’s operations. 

SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2007
The Board of Directors and the management of Arab Bank plc worked to achieve
important targets in 2007, including: 
• The organization of the private banking group was restructured.
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• The main financial objectives set out in the business plan and budget were realized,
and the financial indicators showed the following results:
- 11.1% return on average equity
- 24.8% growth in the direct credit facilities
- 47.3% liquidity ratio
- 45.2% efficiency ratio

• The Bank acquired a 50% stake in MNG Bank in Turkey, which was renamed Turkland
Bank A.S. (T-Bank) 

• Arab Bank maintained its high rating as follows: 
- Moody’s: A3
- Fitch: A-
- Standard & Poor’s: A-

It is noteworthy that Arab Bank plc is the first bank to have obtained a credit rating
higher than the sovereign rating of its home country, which underlines its consider-
able financial strength, its important position among international financial institu-
tions and its outstanding geographical diversification.

EXPECTED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PLANS FOR 2008
The most important targets set for 2008 are summarized below: 

• Private banking: The Bank will implement its new private banking organization and
activities. The new organizational structure of its private banking operations aims
to enhance the fee income of the Group.

• Mergers and acquisitions: The Bank is expected to intensify its acquisition activi-
ties in accordance with its strategic objectives.

• Financial objectives for 2008:
- Increase the return on average equity to more than 13%
- Maintain the liquidity ratio at a level higher than 40%
- Achieve growth in the loan portfolio parallel to the growth in customer deposits
- Achieve an efficiency ratio of 45% or better.

Arab Bank’s success in 2007 was a direct result of the support of our shareholders,
the loyalty and trust of our customers, and the hard work and dedication of our staff.
We extend to all of you our sincere thanks and appreciation.  

The Board of Directors 



No matter how difficult or complex the road ahead,
Arab Bank always stands side by side with its customers.
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Five strategic business units currently work together to provide Arab Bank customers
with a set of comprehensive banking products and services:
- Corporate and Investment Banking Group
- Retail Banking Group
- Private Banking Group
- Investment Banking Group
- Treasury Group

CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

The year 2007 saw the emergence and formulation of the Corporate and Investment
Banking Group (CIB) following the strategic decision taken by the Bank in 2006 to sep-
arate the marketing and development activities from the Global Banking Group. The
CIB has  an independent credit function in order to further strengthen its business 
development capabilities. This focused business approach has been driven by the
Bank’s continued commitment to maximizing shareholders’ value and enhancing the
range of value-added products and services for its client base.  

The successful consolidation of the Bank’s product and distribution channels into cen-
tres of excellence under a single platform has helped fortify the Bank’s client relation-
ships, develop additional cross-selling opportunities, improve synergies and enable a
more focused response to clients’ needs. These centres encompass global corporate
finance, investment banking, commercial banking, and financial institution and trans-
actional services. 

During 2007, Arab Bank played a leading role in the financing of numerous large-scale
projects in a number of key industries across the MENA region. In the oil, gas and
petrochemical industries, Arab Bank was a mandated lead arranger (MLA) for a num-
ber of prestigious projects, including the USD 1.4 billion financing of the merger of
Sohar and Oman Refineries and the USD 0.6 billion project financing facility for a
methanol plant in Salalah, Oman. In Saudi Arabia, the Bank took a lead role in financ-
ing the USD 0.6 billion expansion of Saudi Polyolefins Company (SPC). In Egypt, it was
also one of the major MLAs in the USD 0.6 billion financing of a greenfield project for
Egyptian Agrium Nitrogen Project Company. Additionally, it has acted as an MLA in 
several of the largest independent water and power production (IWPP) projects in the 
region, including the USD 1.23 billion project financing facility for an independent
power plant in Mesaieed Industrial City, Qatar, and the USD 2.8 billion project financ-
ing facility for a mega power generation and water desalination facility for Jubail/
Marafeq, Saudi Arabia. In its home country, Jordan, Arab Bank has taken the lead in
several strategic economic development projects, including playing the integral role
of MLA in the build-operate-transfer (BOT) financing of the first phase of expansion of
Queen Alia International Airport. 
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Active involvement in the aforemen-
tioned deals has facilitated the position-
ing of Arab Bank as the top regional bank
and a prominent player in the project and
structured finance business in the MENA
region. Capitalizing on this success, the
Bank is now fully geared towards expand-
ing its project finance activities to be-
come the foremost financial services
provider in that region. 

In response to heightened competition
from new entrants to the commercial
banking sector, Arab Bank has taken
steps to protect and enhance its leading
position in the market. New processes

and business segmentation initiatives have been developed and implemented to
boost customer acquisition and relationship management, as well as product innova-
tion capabilities and penetration into new markets. Furthermore, a new centralized
function was created within the CIB, targeted at providing top notch quality service 
to its international clients and effectively supporting expansion of their regional and
global operations through the Bank’s numerous business outlets worldwide. The
Bank’s success on this front positively contributed to its core earnings’ base during
the year. These achievements and outstanding performances were augmented by 
the Bank’s unrivalled global presence and market expertise supported by its strong
equity base.

CIB’s future outlook is for continued growth with an emphasis on the further enhance-
ment of the Bank’s balance sheet mix while adhering to Basel II requirements and striv-
ing to remain ahead of the competition. This will be achieved through the various ini-
tiatives and efforts that are directed towards a more focused marketing strategy and
ongoing assessment of the Bank’s various business segments, building upon Arab
Bank’s leading position in financing infrastructure projects in the MENA region and a
further strengthening of its relationships with its clients. 

RETAIL BANKING GROUP

The Retail Banking Group (RBG) has continued its double-digit growth in consumer
loans, credit cards and revenues by applying the same strategy it has adopted since
its inception. The strategy of a “customer-driven banking model” has been adopted
throughout the network covering 10 countries in the region, using a unified standard
structure, policies, channels and services.

At the signing ceremony of the USD 500 million medium-term facility agreement.
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Members of the Retail Banking Group have portrayed themselves as flexible, dy-
namic sales organizations at the front end, while keeping efficient, low-cost process-
ing operations at the back end. Retail Banking Group has worked hard at leveraging
all available customer relationship management mechanisms in order to ensure that
retail banking customers get what they need when they need it. 

In addition to new deposit products like Arab Bank Millionaire, which offers prizes on
special accounts to the mass retail market, Retail Banking Group has utilized all avail-
able internal information and outsourced research services to initiate efforts in the
field of product development, catering for specific segments and the customer life cy-
cle. Therefore, various consumer loan products were created and marketed to cover
the needs of young starters, students, professionals and the self-employed. On the
credit card front, many features were added to the existing credit card base to pro-
mote use and acquisition, in addition to launching the new Platinum Card.

Retail Banking Group has worked diligently and relentlessly throughout 2007 in pre-
paring a complete value proposition for its VIP/affluent segment, resulting in Arab
Bank’s latest offering, “Elite”, to its VIP/affluent clients. This unique service entitles
our clients to a world of privileges that they will experience the moment they join the
programme. Moreover, “Elite” will help guide these clients to increase their wealth
through enhanced personalized banking services and investment products.

Retail Banking Group continued its adoption of the latest technologies to better serve
customers remotely in an easy and reliable fashion. Our top-rated call centre in 
Jordan is being replicated in other countries of the region, offering help and financial
services to customers. Another example is the implementation of the bunch note 
accepting (BNA) ATM machines that are being installed and utilized in various loca-
tions, providing customers with instant deposit facilities outside the branches.

Retail Banking Group continues to make good strides towards reaching optimum 
levels of service excellence, covering all elements of its business related to channels,
products, processes, image and staff.

PRIVATE BANKING GROUP

The Private Banking Group engaged in a global initiative throughout 2007, focusing on
redefining our strategy and enhancing our platform and capabilities. We have re-
designed and implemented a world-class global operating model that leverages the
strengths of Arab Bank Group’s entities (Arab Bank (Switzerland), Europe Arab Bank,
Arab Bank plc, AB Invest and AB Capital) and ensures alignment of all entities to one
strategy. That strategy is intended to offer our clients choice of and  access to Arab



30

BUSINESS AND BANKING SERVICES

Bank’s various global booking centres depending on their individual needs and circum-
stances. This model has been developed based on a new functional organizational
structure that follows best practice principles, and enforces functional reporting of all
entities to a single global management team. As such, the new organization offers ma-
jor benefits: organized coordination between sales teams and cross-selling of various
value propositions; creation of centres of expertise for investment management, as-
set management and brokerage; clear segregation of back-office and front-office du-
ties to ensure adherence to risk management and compliance standards; and estab-
lishment of a global strategy and marketing team to ensure oversight of business
performance and continuous improvement of the strategic direction of the business. 

As a result of this initiative, the key capabilities of the business have been upgraded
by enhancing our human capital, revamping the IT platform, streamlining business
processes, and establishing a comprehensive plan to enhance our delivery channels. 

Private Banking will launch its new branding and strategic plan in the first quarter of
2008. The new platform and capabilities will allow us to better serve our current and
future clients and place Arab Bank in a strong position to compete with onshore and
offshore private banks on acquisition of new business. We will also be able to deliver
to our clients a value proposition that is second to none in the Middle East region.

AB MENA FUND

2007 proved to be a stellar year for the MENA equity markets in general, and for the
Arab Bank MENA Fund (managed by AB Invest Asset Management, Amman) in partic-
ular, with a net performance of 28.8% for the year. This was the result of consistently
positive monthly increases and a lower volatility than that experienced in the MENA
markets. Since its inception in September 2005, the Fund has returned 21.7%, an av-
erage monthly gain of 0.80%, compared to a loss of 10.05% or an average monthly loss
of 0.37% for the MSCI Arabia Index (the Fund’s relative benchmark). The MENA mar-
kets will continue to present attractive investment opportunities during 2008, given
that the region’s economies are expected to continue to grow at over 6% per annum,
combined with fairly attractive equity valuations.

ARAB BANK ALTERNATIVE STRATEGIES FUND (ABAS)

In 2007, the first full year since the restructuring of its investment objectives, ABAS
(managed by Arab Bank Fund Managers (Guernsey) Limited) clearly performed accord-
ing to expectations. The Fund returned 12.90% for the year (December performance 
is an estimate), compared with a return of 2.83% by the MSCI World Free Local, 3.53%
by the S&P 500 and 4.23% by the HFRX Global Hedge Fund Index. At the end of
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December, risks in ABAS were well diver-
sified across 21 different hedge funds
and 13 underlying hedge fund strategies,
including 30% in long/short equities
strategies, 15% in relative value strate-
gies, 13% in quantitative strategies, 11%
in event-driven strategies, 10% in credit
strategies and 10% in directional trading.
The financial markets outlook for 2008
continues to favour alternative invest-
ment strategies over traditional ones. In
this environment, we expect to use sig-
nificant asset growth to increase the fo-
cus of ABAS on more defensive hedge
fund strategies.

INVESTMENT BANKING GROUP

Recognizing the growing emphasis on investment banking fuelled by the unprecedent-
ed growth and development that the regional capital markets have witnessed over the
past several years, the Bank embarked on the formation of two investment banking
arms. The Dubai-based AB Capital was established in 2006 as the investment bank-
ing, asset management and private equity arm of the Arab Bank Group engaging in the
areas of equity and debt capital markets, financial advisory, private equity fund rais-
ing and management covering the Gulf region. The second arm was the Amman-based
AB Invest, which was reorganized to provide equity capital market services in Jordan
and the Levant. 

AB INVEST, JORDAN

This wholly-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank achieved a record year in 2007 in terms of
earnings and volumes. Its brokerage business soared during the year to become the
number one broker in the Amman Stock Exchange, with a 7.5% market share.

On the asset management side, AB Invest enhanced its team and revamped its invest-
ment strategy to cope with the changing trends of MENA capital markets. As such, it
was able to increase substantially the asset base of its AB MENA Equity Fund, which
recorded a net performance of 28.8% for the year. Looking ahead, asset management
expects to launch two Islamic funds, among others, for the MENA region during the
first quarter of 2008.

Top executives of Arab Bank plc

Seated, from left to right: Messrs Amin Husseini, Ghassan Tarazi, Majaz Khan, Michel 

Accad, Ms Dina Shoman, Saleem Sheikh, Marwan Riyal. 

Standing, from left to right: Messrs Jawdat Al-Halabi, Mohamed Ghanameh, Michael

Matossian, George El-Hage, Shankar Chattanathan.
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AB CAPITAL, DUBAI

Arab Bank has increased its share in AB Capital to over 75%, emphasizing the strate-
gic interest and direction of the Bank in supporting its subsidiary. Throughout the year
AB Capital scaled up its capabilities by attracting seasoned and high calibre profes-
sionals. The company has already acquired several major advisory mandates in Kuwait,
Saudi Arabia and the Gulf region, and built a solid deal flow for 2008.

In 2008, the firm will focus mainly on continuous expansion of its corporate finance
and investment banking business. Furthermore, it will kick-off its private equity busi-
ness by launching a fund focused on the MENA region.

TREASURY GROUP

Responsible for the management of the Bank’s liquidity and market risk, Treasury
Group recorded another very positive year in 2007. A combination of favourable mar-
ket conditions, trading skills, greater customer focus and wider product offerings have
not only raised the profile of the Bank but also made a significant contribution to its
results.

The Group provides a wide range of financial products and advisory services on the
management of all aspects of market risk. The Group’s specialized knowledge of the
MENA regional market and its extensive presence there allows it to give the Group’s
customer base a highly informed, timely and efficient service. In addition to providing
standard treasury products, the Group tailors structured financial solutions for cus-
tomers with more complex requirements. Treasury Group is active in the following 
areas:

- Foreign exchange
- Foreign exchange derivatives
- Money market instruments
- Interest rate derivatives
- Fixed income securities and capital markets
- Repos
- Structured products

The Group continues to refine its oversight and control of global treasury activities.
The trading and risk management system already installed in the larger treasury cen-
tres currently covers most of the Bank’s trading activities, and complementary sys-
tems cover the remaining activities conducted in the smaller centres. Implementation
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of the value-at-risk model has been introduced in all of the Group’s centres, enabling
much greater management oversight of treasury business and the ability to stress test
the entire business of Treasury Group.

The financial engineering team has also had a successful year, providing support to
the Bank’s customers throughout its global network. 

MARKET SHARE

GENERAL

Arab Bank’s competitive position is based on several strengths, including: 
- A solid reputation as a flight-to-quality financial institution;
- A history of over 78 years of operations and of consistently meeting its obligations

despite difficult business conditions and political unrest;
- A good investment rating from the following rating agencies:

•  Fitch: A-, with a stable outlook
•  Moody’s: A3, with a stable outlook
•  Standards & Poor’s: A-, with a stable outlook;  

- An extensive network of branches covering most of the Arab countries and the main
international financial centres;

- An outstanding financial position and long-term superior performance; and 
- A comprehensive portfolio of financial products and services. 

MARKET SHARES IN SPECIFIC LOCATIONS

Arab Bank’s market shares vary by country, according to its historical presence and
the basis of measurement. The following table presents estimates of the Bank’s mar-
ket shares.

Country Total assets Deposits Direct credit
% % facilities  %

Bahrain 7.10 3.20 7.10
Egypt 2.71 2.86 2.32
Jordan 22.96 25.35 18.57
Lebanon 1.78 1.94 2.13
Palestine 34.12 36.67 32.98
Qatar 1.52 2.24 1.52
UAE 1.03 1.50 1.16
Yemen 16.80 18.53 6.57
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The Bank’s shares in other markets may not be as significant as those listed on the
previous page, due to the size of the market or the network and the duration of its 
operations in those markets. 

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CLIENTS

No specific individual supplier or client accounts for 10% or more of the Bank’s 
activities.

PATENTS AND GOVERNMENT PROTECTION

Arab Bank competes in free and open economies on the basis of fair competition. It
does not enjoy any preferable protection. It has no advantages from specific patents. 

BRANCH NETWORK AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Arab Bank plc has an extensive network of branches (as listed below), which, along
with its sister and subsidiary companies, covers the Arab region and the most impor-
tant financial centres of the world. 

Country No. of Operating No. of
branches since employees

Algeria 4 2001 141
Bahrain 4 1960 173
China (representative office) 2 1985 4
Cyprus 4 1984 104
Egypt 15 1947 954
Jordan 76 1934 2 894
Kazakhstan (representative office) 1 2004 - - -
Lebanon 13 1944 301
Morocco 10 1962 220
Palestine 26 1930 874
Qatar 3 1957 148
Republic of Korea (representative office) 1 1989 3
Singapore 1 1984 43
UAE 8 1963 478
USA (federal agency) 1 1982 26
Yemen 10 1972 305



Ever since its founding, Arab Bank has participated in building modern cities
in the Arab world. 

The Bank stands by all who seek its assistance. 
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The Group’s consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
Arab Bank plc, Arab Bank (Switzerland), a sister company wholly owned by the share-
holders of Arab Bank plc, and the following wholly- and majority-owned or controlled
banking subsidiaries:

- Arab Bank Australia Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary 
- Europe Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary
- Islamic International Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary
- Arab Investment Bank S.A.L. (66.65% ownership)
- Arab Tunisian Bank (64.24% ownership)
- Arab Palestinian Investment Bank (55% ownership)
- Arab Bank – Syria (49% ownership and management control)

The Group also owns several non-banking subsidiaries, including:

- Al-Arabi Investment Group (AB Invest)
- Arab Leasing Company
- Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company

The following is a brief description of the businesses of the banking entities and their
results in 2007. 

ARAB BANK (SWITZERLAND)

Arab Bank (Switzerland) is an independent bank, founded in 1962 in accordance with
Swiss law. It has two main areas of activity: private banking, which covers asset and
investment management for both private and institutional clients; and trade financ-
ing, which is primarily for companies importing from and exporting to Arab countries.

The shareholders of Arab Bank (Switzerland) are identical to those of Arab Bank plc.
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The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2007 compared to 2006:

In CHF thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 26 700 26 700 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 501 592 485 903 15 689 3.2

Percentage ownership*

Book value of investments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Fair value of investments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total assets 2 072 535 2 790 812 (718 277) (25.7)
Cash and quasi cash 1 361 358 2 282 802 (921 444) (40.4)
Direct credit facilities 639 999 478 826 161 173 33.7
Total external sources of funds 1 519 442 2 254 569 (735 127) (32.6)
Total revenue 53 295 53 616 (321) (0.6)
Net income after tax 22 261 22 124 137 0.6

* Arab Bank (Switzerland) is owned by the same shareholders as those of Arab Bank plc

Arab Bank (Switzerland) had 69 employees at the end of 2007 compared to 73 at the
end of 2006. 

Despite the significant depreciation of the US dollar, which had a negative impact on
the Bank’s results, given that most of the revenues are USD based, Arab Bank (Switzer-
land) managed to slightly increase its total net profit after tax. Measured in USD,
total net income after tax would have shown an increase of approximately 8%.

The Bank’s net revenue from commission and service fees activities, which primarily
reflect the Bank’s revenues from private banking activities, increased by 7.9%, from
CHF 23.2 million in 2006 to CHF 25 million in 2007.

In 2007, Arab Bank (Switzerland) acquired two new buildings: one at Claridenstrasse
26 in Zurich, and the other at Place Longemalle 10-12 in Geneva. Subsequently, the
Bank sold its former building at Limmatquai 92 in Zurich. The impact of these transac-
tions on  the  balance  sheet is reflected in an increase in fixed assets from CHF 9.3
million to CHF 49.2 million, and partially also in a decline in securities and financial
investments from CHF 331.9 million to CHF 308.8 million.
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ARAB BANK AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Arab Bank Australia Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank plc, licensed
to carry on banking business in Australia since 1994. Currently, the Bank has 10
branches in the Australian states of New South Wales and Victoria, and its strategic
focus continues to be in the retail and commercial banking arena.

The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2007 compared to 2006:

In AUD thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 55 000 55 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 104 590 102 984 1 606 1.6
Percentage ownership 100% 100% - - - - - -
Bank share of net income 1 606 3 401 (1 795) (52.8)
Book value of investments 55 000 55 000 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 104 590 102 984 1 606 1.6
Total assets 873 260 875 068 (1 808) (0.2)
Cash and quasi cash 135 769 113 003 22 766 20.1
Direct credit facilities 724 562 749 248 (24 686) (3.3)
Total external sources of funds 759 208 763 676 (4 468) (0.6)
Total revenue 26 638 27 200 (562) (2.1)
Net income after tax 1 606 3 401 (1 795) (52.8)

Arab Bank Australia Limited had 216 employees at the end of 2007 compared to 266
at the end of 2006. 

The Bank’s superior service levels, award-winning products and emphasis on relation-
ship development, coupled with the continued strength and improvements in credit
ratings of both Arab Bank Group and Arab Bank Australia, resulted in an increase in
retail deposits by approximately 23%. These qualities also had a positive impact on the
Bank’s funding costs and continued strong liquidity. Retail deposits, a local paper is-
suing programme and the capital of the Bank form the total of its funding book and
there continues to be no reliance on the parent company for funding. 

Notwithstanding the improvement in funding costs, the Bank’s profitability in 2007
was adversely affected by significantly reduced loan interest margins due the heavy
competitive pressures of the industry and the lack of appetite for high-risk transac-
tions. The trend in reduced profitability was addressed by the introduction of addition-
al products and a stronger sales culture for the generation of additional revenue, as
well as by initiatives to reduce operating costs. Additionally, the Bank incurred signif-
icant costs for the completion of several major infrastructure, IT and compliance 
projects.
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Marked increases in the loan book are expected in 2008, which will be due primarily
to much reduced loan runoffs and an anticipated improvement in the economies of
Sydney and Melbourne as well as to a greater diversification of our market into the
broader communities and improved trade business with the Middle East. 

EUROPE ARAB BANK PLC

Europe Arab Bank plc (EAB) is a limited liability company established under British law
with its headquarters in London. Incorporated in England and Wales, EAB is author-
ized and regulated by the Financial Services Authority. It has branches in Austria,
France, Germany, Italy and Spain. EAB has a European passport that enables it to open
branches anywhere in the European Union.

The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2007 compared to 2006:

In EUR thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 450 000 244 776 205 224 83.8
Total shareholders’ equity 416 676 221 391 195 285 88 2
Percentage ownership 100% 100% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income (8 965) (23 379) 14 414 61.7
Book value of investments 450 000 244 776 205 224 83.8
Fair value of investments 416 676 221 391 195 285 88.2
Total assets 4 368 604 5 156 350 (787 746) (15.3)
Cash and quasi cash 2 201 657 4 253 270 (2 051 613) (48.2)
Direct credit facilities 2 055 177 682 033 1 373 144 201.3
Total external sources of funds 3 870 132 4 796 920 (926 788) (19.3)
Total revenue 59 554 9 825 49 729 506.1
Net income after tax (8 965) (23 379) 14 414 61.7

EAB had 311 employees at the end of 2007 compared to 303 at the end of 2006. 

In its first full year of trading, EAB has fulfilled its commitment to its shareholders to
drive the business into profitability, with a full year’s operating profit of EUR 0.335 mil-
lion. This profit was generated as a result of all business units exceeding budgeted 
revenue, and of particularly strong growth in the corporate banking and trade finance
portfolios, combined with a significant improvement in lending margins. 

The overall financial performance of EAB in 2007 showed a loss of EUR 8.965 million.
This was largely due to exceptional items amounting to EUR 6.038 million, which 
included losses in the capital markets portfolio and a EUR 3 million provision for a lega-
cy debt. However, set in the context of a EUR 9.3 million operating profit in the fourth
quarter, the Bank’s management is confident that 2008 offers considerable opportu-
nities for profit.
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The prudent risk management ethos inherited from Arab Bank has enabled EAB to
weather the turbulent credit market conditions that hit the banking sector in 2007 with-
out experiencing the level of write-offs which affected many other institutions. The
Bank’s management expects that, given the quality of the capital markets portfolio (av-
erage rating Aa1), the exceptional losses will be recouped in due course as normal
trading conditions return.

EAB maintained strong liquidity throughout 2007 despite difficult market conditions,
with ratios within FSA thresholds in all periods. The Bank’s capital of EUR 450 million
of shareholders’ equity and USD 330 million (equivalent to EUR 224 million) of subor-
dinated debt ensure that existing and planned growth is well within regulatory limits.

An ongoing programme of end-to-end process transformation in operations, combined
with a general cost consciousness, helped EAB to improve its operating cost/income
ratio to 75% (in December), and a further improvement is expected in 2008.

The consolidation and restructuring of the Bank was completed in 2007, under budg-
et and on schedule. 

ISLAMIC INTERNATIONAL ARAB BANK PLC

Islamic International Arab Bank plc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank plc, of-
fers a full range of banking products and services which are in accordance with Islam-
ic Sharia rules. Established in Jordan in 1997, the Bank started its operations the fol-
lowing year. 

In JOD thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 40 000 40 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 74 634 62 792 11 842 18.9
Percentage ownership 100% 100% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 10 971 7 990 2 981 37.3
Book value of investments 40 000 40 000 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 74 634 62 792 11 842 18.9
Total assets 614 285 594 122 20 163 3.4
Cash and quasi cash 276 717 276 222 495 0.2
Direct credit facilities 323 458 293 529 29 929 10.2
Total external sources of funds 502 922 490 467 12 455 2.5
Total revenue 25 388 18 991 6 397 33.7
Net income after tax 10 971 7 990 2 981 37.3
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Islamic International Arab Bank plc  had  336 employees at the end of 2007 compared
to 286 at the end of 2006. 

The net income after tax of the Bank in 2007 was JOD 11 million compared to JOD 7.99
million in 2006, representing an increase of 37.3%. Islamic loan facilities improved by
10.2% to reach JOD 323.5 million at the end of 2007. 

ARAB INVESTMENT BANK S.A.L

Arab Investment Bank s.a.l., founded in 1998 with a paid-up capital of LBP 15 billion,
started its operations in 1999. The Bank is a majority-owned subsidiary of Arab Bank
plc and is its investment arm in Lebanon. 

In LBP thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 15 000 000 15 000 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 19 887 326 20 422 663 (535 337) (2.6)
Percentage ownership 66.65% 66.65% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 769 835 1 231 607 (461 772) (37.5)
Book value of investments 9 997 500 9 997 500 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 13 254 903 13 611 705 (356 802) (2.6)
Total assets 59 411 517 74 321 391 (14 909 874) (20.1)
Cash and quasi cash 54 255 717 60 322 086 (6 066 369) (10.1)
Direct credit facilities 1 930 976 10 769 975 (8 838 999) (82.1)
Total external sources of funds 38 605 643 52 619 490 (14 013 847) (26.6)
Total revenue 1 754 478 2 651 520 (897 042) (33.8)
Net income after tax 1 155 041 1 847 873 (692 832) (37.5)

Arab Investment Bank had 4 employees at the end of 2007.

As an investment bank, it specializes in medium- and long-term lending. Its activities
also include deposit-taking for terms of six months and longer. 

The unstable political situation throughout 2007 negatively affected the investment
climate in Lebanon and took its toll on the economy at large, including the operations
of investment banks. As a result, Arab Investment Bank’s balance sheet results de-
clined by 20.1% in 2007, similar to other banking institutions, as reflected in the sec-
tor’s overall balance sheet results.

The returns on assets and on equity of the Bank by year-end were 2.11% and 6.71%,
respectively. These returns are expected to improve during 2008, as the Bank expects
to start trading activities through its own seat on the Beirut Stock Exchange. 
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Under these circumstances, Arab Investment Bank remains very conservative in its
policies pending a better political and economic outlook. 

ARAB TUNISIAN BANK

Arab Tunisian Bank (ATB) was incorporated in Tunisia in 1982, and is a majority-owned
subsidiary of Arab Bank plc.

The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2007 compared to 2006:

In TND thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 60 000 60 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 214 471 185 381 29 090 15.7
Percentage ownership 64.24% 64.24% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 18 085 16 066 2 019 12.6
Book value of investments 69 619 69 619 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 137 771 119 084 18 687 15.7
Total assets 2 751 248 2 175 647 575 601 26.5
Cash and quasi cash 1 422 539 935 771 486 768 52.0
Direct credit facilities 1 210 964 1 124 823 86 141 7.7
Total external sources of funds 2 469 712 1 927 205 542 507 28.1
Total revenue 97 704 91 103 6 601 7.2
Net income after tax 28 154 25 011 3 143 12.6

ATB had 791 employees at the end of 2007 compared to 783 at the end of 2006. 

In accordance with its strategic plan, the Bank continued to invest in its local branch
network in 2007, striving to provide its customers with superior quality services while
enhancing its risk monitoring capabilities. During the past five years, the number of
branches has more than doubled, from 32 in 2002 to 80 in 2007.  

In a highly competitive environment, ATB was able to achieve high growth rates in
2007. Total assets grew 26.5% in 2007 to reach TND 2,751 million, against TND 2,175
million in 2006. Customer deposits totalled TND 2,232 million at the end of Decem-
ber 2007, a rise of 25% compared to 2006. The loan volume increased by about 7% to
reach TND 1,330 million at the end of 2007, against TND 1,253 million at the end of
2006. The volume of the trading portfolio grew by 15% to reach TND 610 million in
2007, against TND 528 million in 2006.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES  
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The Bank generated a turnover of TND 187 million in 2007, up 21% from the previous
year. Net operating revenue rose by 17% to reach TND 97 million at the end of 2007,
against TND 83 million the previous year. Net income registered an increase of 12.6%
to reach TND 28,2 million, against TND 25,0 million in 2006. The return on equity was
established at 14.8% against 14.1% in 2006, an improvement of 2.7 points, confirming
the good performance of Arab Tunisian Bank in 2007. The value of ATB’s shares in-
creased by more than 23% during 2007, from TND 4,400 on 2 January 2007 to TND
5,420 on 31 December 2007. 

ARAB PALESTINIAN INVESTMENT BANK

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank obtained its licence from the Palestinian Authority
in 1997. With a capitalization of USD 15 million, the ownership of the Bank is as fol-
lows: 55% by Arab Bank plc, 25% by the International Finance Corporation of the World
Bank, 15% by Deutsche Investitions–und Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH and 5% by 
the Enterprise Investment Company. 

In USD thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 15 000 15 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 14 088 13 596 492 3.6
Percentage ownership 55% 55% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 276 93 183 196.8
Book value of investments 8 250 8 250 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 7 748 7 478 270 3.6
Total assets 14 562 14 108 454 3.2
Cash and quasi cash 11 898 10 280 1 618 15.7
Direct credit facilities 2 137 3 236 (1 099) (34.0)
Total external sources of funds 146 155 (9) (5.8)
Total revenue 769 596 173 29.0
Net income after tax 501 169 332 196.4

Arab Palestinian Investment Bank had 3 employees at the end of 2007 compared to 4
at the end of 2006. 

Since the 2002 reoccupation of the West Bank and Gaza Strip, the Bank has stopped
almost all lending. Consequently, the credit portfolio has declined by the amount
of repayments and loans settlements. The financial results for 2007 showed a net
profit after tax of USD 0.5 million. We hope that 2008 and the coming years will bring
peace and prosperity to Palestine.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES  
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ARAB BANK–SYRIA 

Established in 2005, Arab Bank-Syria is licensed to carry out all commercial banking
activities. Arab Bank plc owns 49% of its capital and controls technical management. 

The following table lists the main financial highlights of 2007 compared to 2006:

In SYP thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 1 500 000 1 500 000 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 1 622 813 1 480 092 142 721 9.6
Percentage ownership 49% 49% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 102 196 28 108 74 088 263.6
Book value of investments 735 000 735 000 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 795 178 725 245 69 933 9.6
Total assets 21 277 107 9 694 935 11 582 172 119.5
Cash and quasi cash 12 997 653 6 613 482 6 384 171 96.5
Direct credit facilities 6 918 887 2 329 601 4 589 286 197.0
Total external sources of funds 19 183 790 8 051 018 11 132 772 138.3
Total revenue 562 389 197 011 365 378 185.5
Net income after tax 208 563 57 364 151 199 263.6

Arab Bank–Syria had 176 employees at the end of 2007.

The Bank has a very ambitious plan for continuous organic growth, with expectations
of outstanding improvements in all financial figures in 2008.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES  
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AB INVEST

AB Invest is a financial company, focusing mainly on investment banking activities.
Known earlier as Atlas Investment Group, it has developed into one of the leading in-
vestment entities. It was established in Jordan in 1966, and is wholly owned by Arab
Bank plc. The following are the most important highlights of the company. 

In JOD thousand 2007 2006 Variance %

Capital 8 900 8 900 - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 16 715 12 113 4 602 38.0
Percentage ownership 100% 100% - - - - - -
Bank’s share of net income 4 602 2 091 2 511 120.1
Book value of investments 8 900 8 900 - - - - - -
Fair value of investments 16 715 12 113 4 602 38.0
Total assets 23 987 18 206 5 781 31.8
Cash and quasi cash 19 525 15 384 4 141 26.9
Direct credit facilities - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total external sources of funds - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total revenue 8 418 5 712 2 706 47.4
Net income after tax 4 602 2 091 2 511 120.1

AB Invest had 58 employees in 2007 compared to 71 in 2006. 

The company achieved good results in 2007, taking the leading position in brokerage
operations in Jordan. The company’s investment activities include all investment
banking products, and its market covers the entire Levant region.

PERFORMANCE OF THE GROUP’S ENTITIES  



The port of Aqaba - the beginning and end of the most important roads 
in Jordan and the Middle East - is one of the most significant investment centres 

of Arab Bank plc. 
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OVERVIEW

Arab Bank Group addresses the challenge of a variety of banking risks by applying best
practices and the most advanced management systems available in the financial 
markets. Risk management at Arab Bank Group is dynamic, continuously drawing 
from the latest practical experiences and scientific research in this field. The ultimate
objective of the risk management function is to ensure that total banking risks do not
exceed Arab Bank’s overall predetermined risk framework while aiming to achieve the
best possible results. 

Risk management is exercised at several levels of Arab Bank, including the Board of
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, High Asset and Liability Management Committee
(High ALCO), Group Chief Financial Officer, Global Treasury, Group Risk Management,
Group Internal Audit, the Strategic Business Units and other supporting units. 

The Board of Directors ensures that management maintains an effective and efficient
system of internal controls. It approves the general risk management policies as well
as the risk profile and framework.

As the most senior executive responsible for all of Arab Bank’s activities, the Chief
Executive Officer is the first in line of responsibility for risk management and related
practices. The Group Chief Financial Officer is in charge of defining financial and
strategic risks, middle office controls, safeguarding the quality of financial data and
ensuring that the disclosed financial statements are accurate and reliable. 

The heads of strategic business units identify and manage risks within their specific
business units. The head of Global Treasury is responsible for liquidity risk and market
risk related to treasury functions. The head of Group Risk Management supervises all
areas covering credit risk, market risk and operational risk. The head of Group Regu-
latory Compliance ensures that the Bank is in compliance with all related regulations,
especially those issued by banking regulatory authorities. Depending on the activities
of each supporting unit, the concerned head is responsible for risks pertaining to
his/her unit. The various asset/liability management committees, along with other
committees involved with risk management issues, function within predetermined
powers and authorized limits in accordance with formal procedures. 
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GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of the risk governance structure of the Bank, Group Risk Management is the
second level of control, responsible for ensuring that the Bank has a robust system for
identification and management of risk. Its mandate is to:

• Establish risk management policies and procedures for all types of risk;
• Advise and promote awareness on best practice;
• Develop and implement various risk management frameworks;
• Develop appropriate risk measurement tools and models; and
• Assess risk positions against established limits, with timely monitoring and report-

ing to senior management.

Within Group Risk Management, each department has specific goals in continuing to
develop the Bank’s risk management based on best practice, international guidelines
and regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan. 

•  The Credit Risk Department enhances the internal corporate risk rating system and
the retail credit scoring system by customizing and implementing available models,
with specific emphasis on Basel II compliance. With an improved “probability of de-
fault” measurement, these systems will augment the wider implementation of the
Bank’s risk-adjusted return-on-capital model. 

• The Market and Liquidity Department structures risk limits, monitors positions and
is responsible for the value-at-risk (VaR) measurement framework.

• The Operational Risk Department, which also covers strategic and reputation risk,
leads the implementation of a Bank-wide risk management framework, as part of
the overall strengthening and continuous improvement of the controls within the
Bank. The framework consists of policies and procedures supported by a formal
methodology of risk-control and self-assessment for identification, assessment, mit-
igation, control and reporting of operational risk in all business activities.

• The Information Security Department is implementing a Bank-wide information se-
curity framework based on industry best practice and in accordance with ISO/IEC
27001, for disseminating, enforcing and monitoring security policies, as well as pro-
moting good practice throughout the Group.

• The Business Continuity Management Department is responsible for an integrated
approach to crisis management and business continuity planning. Contingency
planning has proved its utility time and again throughout the Bank’s history, enabling
senior management to manage and operate the Bank during times of serious crises. 

• The Business Risk Review Department, established in 2007, conducts comprehen-
sive individual, portfolio and business risk reviews. It ensures that the Bank’s vari-
ous portfolios in each country are suited to their economic context, business strat-
egy and target market, and proposes corrective action where necessary. The
department also assesses the quality of the loan portfolio, lending policies and
processes, and the capabilities of the credit staff.
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CREDIT RISK

As part of its ongoing process to en-
hance and strengthen the Bank’s credit
risk management, Arab Bank implement-
ed several new processes and initiatives
during the year. These included:
• A new organizational structure for the

Credit Group based on geographical
regions (i.e. Jordan and Palestine, GCC
and International, North Africa and
Lebanon);

• The introduction of an industry spe-
cialization concept for major global in-
dustries, such as construction and
contracting, oil and gas, telecommuni-
cations, real estate and financial insti-
tutions; and

• The creation of a Global Credit Administration Unit.

The Bank also conducted a comprehensive review and update of its credit policies and
procedures, and adopted a new set of advanced credit standards comparable to best
practice in the industry. As technology is becoming more and more of a key factor for
modernizing and upgrading the credit environment, the Bank continues to invest in
new IT solutions in the area of credit risk management. It has recently acquired and
started implementation of an internal risk rating system. 

The Bank has also inducted a number of top quality, experienced senior staff in its cred-
it area, including a new Chief Credit Officer. To further strengthen the credit team, sev-
eral advanced training programmes were conducted in 2007.

CREDIT CONCENTRATION
Credit concentration is subject to specified limits by the regulatory authority. The Cen-
tral Bank of Jordan requires that credit concentration not exceed 25% of regulatory 
equity. 

CRITERIA FOR CREDIT RATING
Arab Bank applies a well-defined system for rating the creditworthiness of its clients
on the basis of the following:
• Borrower strength, which is measured on the basis of six criteria: the nature of the

business activities, competitiveness, financial performance, cash flow, financial po-
sition and management; and

• Quality of credit, which is measured on the basis of four criteria: guarantee, struc-
ture of the loan, duration and collateral.

Ms Dina Shoman, Head of the Office of the CEO, addressing participants at the

Women Business Leaders’ Summit.
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RISK MITIGATION PROCEDURES
Arab Bank follows specific policies for risk mitigation, including:
• Structuring credit based on the nature of the business, its objectives and maturity

of payment;
• Completing all relative controls on the utilization and payment of the credit; and
• Obtaining proper collaterals to be utilized as a second source of payment in case of

occurrence of unforeseen negative events. 

CREDIT CREATION, ANALYSIS, CONTROL AND FOLLOW-UP
Credit is created and managed by four independent managerial units:
• The Marketing and Sales Department, which is involved in credit creation and de-

velopment;
• The Financial Analysis and Research Department, which undertakes the needed

studies in order to provide relevant information for decision-making;
• The Execution and Documentation Department, which covers all issues related to

documentation, legal processing and actual implementation; and
• The Credit Control Department, which provides continuous control and follow-up of

the credit, from the initiation stage to the final repayment.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES
In 2007, the Group succeeded in developing direct credit facilities at a ratio that
exceeded the pre-budget numbers.

Loans and advances net of provisions grew by USD 5,317.9 million, or 37.5%, to reach
USD  19,483.2 million. 

The following table provides comparative data for 2007 and 2006:

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Direct credit facilities 19 483.2 14 165.3 5 317.9 37.5
Off-balance sheet:
- Acceptances 435.9 615.7 (179.8) (29.2)
- Letters of credit 2 030.4 1 945.9 84.5 4.3
- Letters of guarantee 9 909.6 7 445.3 2 464.3 33.1
- Unused credit facilities 4 056.1 4 162.1 (106.0) (2.5)
Total off-balance sheet 16 432.0 14 169.0 2 263.0 16.0
Total exposure 35 915.2 28 334.3 7 580.9 26.8
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Direct credit facilities constituted 50.8% of total assets in 2007, compared to 43.6%
at the end of the previous year. They also represented  2.8  times the shareholders’
equity, compared to  2.4 times in 2006. 

PROVISION FOR DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES
The Group adheres to the International Accounting Standards and International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards. The fair value of impaired assets in accordance with IAS 39
is measured by the net present value of the expected future cash flows. Provision for
impairment of direct credit facilities is determined by the difference between the book
value and the net present value of expected future cash flows. Expected future cash
flows are determined by an evaluation of individual credits. Special consideration is
also given to changes in the size and character of credit risk, collateral and other re-
lated factors. Risk assets are classified into five groups according to their quality: cur-
rent, watch, substandard, doubtful and loss. Credits with serious degrees of classifi-
cation are reviewed by Head Office on a quarterly basis. The credit portfolio is
reviewed quarterly in order to determine whether there are sufficient provisions. Lev-
els and amounts of provisions are also examined in the light of the monetary author-
ities’ guidelines as well as studies undertaken by the external auditors. The Group
ceases to accrue interest on non-performing direct credit facilities as soon as they are
classified as such. 

The following table shows the development of provisions and interest and commission
in suspense in 2007 and 2006:

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Provision for impairment – direct credit facilities 454.2 437.1 17.1 3.9
Interest and commission in suspense 155.7 176.4 (20.7) (11.7)
Total 609.9 613.5 (3.6) (0.6)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity is the strength of Arab Bank Group and an important focus of its operations.
The Group maintains a high level of liquid assets and a diversified and stable funding
base. Its traditional emphasis on maintaining ample liquidity has enabled it to survive
and thrive, despite regional volatility and global shocks. This emphasis remains as
strong today as ever. 
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The core objectives of liquidity management are to ensure that all obligations are met
in full and on time, regardless of circumstances, and that the Group continues to ful-
fil its long-term lending commitments and strategic goals. 

Standardized “liquidity ladders” that measure cash-flow mismatches according to pre-
defined maturity bands are used in each Arab Bank location to ensure against any un-
desirable clustering of payment maturities. 

The local treasurers are responsible for ensuring that the Bank’s liquidity policies, set
by the Global Treasurer (reporting on this matter to the High ALCO) and local regula-
tory liquidity regulations, are observed. The local treasurers are supported in this task
by asset/liability management committees within their respective units. These com-
mittees analyse the business flow and payment profile, taking action, where appropri-
ate, to adjust the pricing and product mix in order to ensure that all prudential require-
ments are fulfilled. 

The Global Treasurer receives all local data, both separately and on a consolidated ba-
sis, to obtain a complete up-to-date picture of the entire Group’s liquidity. This enables
him to provide the High ALCO with accurate management information as the basis for
medium- and long-term strategic decisions on the asset/liability mix. These decisions
are supported by stress testing, using various and tough “what-if” scenarios. 

The Group maintains, at all times, a sizeable and diversified pool of high-quality, mar-
ketable OECD floating rate assets, and a substantial cushion of interbank deposits with
the highest rated OECD financial institutions. On the liability side, considerable em-
phasis is placed on developing and maintaining reliable and diversified sources of
funding, in particular, retaining and expanding a loyal retail depositor base.

A comparative analysis of the liquid assets of the Group for the years 2007 and 2006
is presented in the following table:

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Cash and banks 9 452.4 9 546.0 (93.6) (1.0)
Financial assets - trading 1 686.9 2 008.6 (321.7) (16.0)
Financial assets - available for sale 3 065.0 2 173.4 891.6 41.0
Financial assets - held to maturity 2 047.2 2 052.8 (5.6) (0.3)
Total 16 251.5 15 780.8 470.7 3.0
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The external sources of funds were as follows:

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Funds from the money market 5 585.5 3 568.0 2 017.5 56.5
Customer deposits 24 722.3 21 766.3 2 956.0 13.6
Total 30 307.8 25 334.3 4 973.5 19.6

It is noteworthy that the majority of customer deposits are stable. Several studies con-
ducted by the Bank found that these deposits are stationary and are constantly 
renewed for further periods, confirming the strong customer confidence in and fideli-
ty to the Bank over many years. 

The following table presents some liquidity ratios of the Group over the past three
years:

In Per cent 2007 2006 2005

Cash and quasi-cash to total external funds 53.6 62.3 62.0
Cash and quasi-cash to total assets 42.4 48.6 50.9
Loan portfolio to customer deposits 78.8 65.1 60.8
Customer deposits to total assets 64.5 67.0 70.2

The following table shows the net financial position of Arab Bank Group over specific
time intervals, representing the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities as at end
2007:

In USD million

Within 3 After 3 After 6 After 12 Not tied to Total
months months and months months a maturity

before  6 and before period
months   12 months

Assets 18 611.2 4 891.5 4 513.5 5 469.5 4 847.6 38 333.3
Liabilities 18 507.6 1 555.7 988.2 1 323.3 15 958.5 38 333.3
Net position 103.6 3 335.8 3 525.3 4 146.2 (11 110.9) - - -
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The notes to the financial statements
(note no. 48) contain details of the matu-
rities of the assets and liabilities of the
Bank and the Group.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure created by
potential changes in market prices and
rates. On recommendations of the Chief
Executive Officer, and based on propos-
als by the High ALCO, the Board of Direc-
tors approves the market risk policies
and determines the overall market risk
appetite. 

The Global Treasurer, the Head of Group Risk Management and the Group Chief Finan-
cial Officer, each in their own capacity are responsible for the supervision, control and
management of market risk. The main components of market risk in Arab Bank are: 
interest rate risk, capital market instruments risk and foreign exchange risk. 

Arab Bank defines market risk as the potential possible loss resulting from market
price changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, securities and equity prices.
Positions in the trading and banking book are measured for market risk. Positions 
affected by market risk result from transactions with customers and from the activi-
ties of the local treasuries within the internal market limit structures. Limit structures
provide parameters for the risk-to-earnings ratio and the economic value of equity. 

Arab Bank approves, measures, supervises and steers all market risk by implement-
ing risk-specific limits. Depending on the type of risk, Arab Bank Group defines vol-
ume limits, position limits, sensitivity limits and stop loss limits. Only authorized and
trained traders are allowed to undertake treasury transactions and positions. All 
positions and limits are monitored and supervised locally on a daily basis and global-
ly on a weekly basis. 

In general, Arab Bank Group adopts a very conservative approach towards market risk
and avoids excessive market risk exposure. 

Graduates of one of Arab Bank’s 316 training workshops conducted in 2007.



55

RISK MANAGEMENT

INTEREST RATE RISK
Interest rate risk in Arab Bank is limited, well managed, continuously supervised and
contained. A large proportion of the interest rate exposure is concentrated on the
short end, with durations of up to one year. Exposure of more than one year is well
contained. In general, the Bank has no significant long-term or complex interest rate
positions. 

The Group seeks to minimize the negative impact on net income of adverse move-
ments in interest rates. It manages its interest rate risk in accordance with the poli-
cies and limits established by the Head Office of the Bank. The asset/liability man-
agement committees at the centres, as well as the respective treasurers, handle the
day-to-day management of interest rate risks. The High ALCO at Head Office deals with
strategic positions and policies. 

The Group has a relatively stable and uncomplicated balance sheet and is subject to
minimal repricing and basis risks. Some securities have call options, but these con-
stitute only a small segment of the investment portfolio. 

Investment strategies take into account management’s conservative risk profile and
risk management capabilities. The Group in general has limited appetite for interest
rate risk and for impairing economic value for the sake of enhanced earnings. 

The notes to the financial statements (note no. 47) contain details of the Bank’s and
the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk. 

CAPITAL MARKET INSTRUMENTS
Investments in capital market instruments are subject to market risk stemming from
changes in their prices. Arab Bank Group’s exposure to this kind of risk is limited due
to its strong control over interest rate risk. Most of the debt instruments in the port-
folio have floating rate coupons. Risk arising from fixed rate coupons is usually hedged
by derivatives. 

The following table provides the balances of the Group’s capital market portfolio for
the past two years:

In USD million 2007 2006 Variance %

Financial assets - trading 1 686.9 2 008.6 (321.7) (16.0)
Financial assets - available for sale 3 065.0 2 173.4 891.6 41.0
Financial assets - held to maturity 2 047.2 2 052.8 (5.6) (0.3)
Total 6 799.1 6 234.8 564.3 9.1
Percentage of total assets 17.7% 19.2% - - - - - -
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In general, the Group’s own trading transactions involve controlled amounts, the lim-
its of which are preset by the High ALCO within a strict framework of trading rules.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK
Income from foreign exchange is generated mainly from customer transactions. Strict
foreign exchange risk limits are set which define volume limits and sensitivity limits
for proprietary trading in foreign exchange. The Bank hedges itself appropriately
against potential currency fluctuations in order to minimize foreign exchange expo-
sure. In treasury, positions are held open only for small risk equivalents. The majority
of the transactions are liquidated on a daily basis. Positions are measured and super-
vised by local management daily, and by global management weekly.

Foreign exchange exposure resulting from participations is well contained and strict-
ly managed. 

The following shows revenue from foreign exchange trading during the past three
years: 

In USD million 2007 2006 2005

Revenue from foreign exchange 63.3 49.6 48.2

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local cur-
rencies. Translation adjustments of net foreign investments are taken to “Translation
adjustments” in the shareholders’ equity accounts.

Balances of translation adjustments in the shareholders’ equity are listed below:

In USD million 2007 2006 2005

Translation adjustments 173.2 89.7 43.8

RISK MANAGEMENT
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OTHER RISKS

Arab Bank faces a number of other banking risks, which include compliance risk and
strategy risk.

COMPLIANCE RISK

Organizational integrity and strong ethical principles provide the foundation for Arab
Bank’s compliance programme. Through their direct involvement, the Board of Direc-
tors and the executive management foster an ethical corporate culture in which com-
pliance is embedded in daily practices and operational processes for which all Bank
staff are responsible.  Strategic direction is provided by Group Regulatory Compliance
(GRC), a centralized and dedicated division reporting directly to the Bank’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer. Management of the Bank-wide Anti-Money Laundering
(AML) and Combating Financing of Terrorism (CFT) programmes, globally considered
to be the greatest compliance risk, is an integral part of the Bank’s operational com-
pliance responsibilities. 

STRATEGY RISK

The Bank maintains clearly defined work standards and comprehensive strategic plan-
ning procedures. The Board of Directors, together with the Bank’s management, peri-
odically analyses the impact of the Bank’s major operations on its strategy, including
the internal and external working conditions, the implications of competition, cus-
tomer requirements, changes in laws and information technology, as well as the Bank’s
existing systems. Management also assesses the Group’s historical performance and
the need to revise its objectives, if necessary, in the context of a continuously chang-
ing working environment.

Achievement of the Bank’s clearly defined objectives depends on a basic principle:
its ability to maintain and promote its widespread network of branches, strong cus-
tomer base, unique products and services and sound financial position. 

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Investments in road and transport infrastructure reflect
Arab Bank’s implementation of its commitments to facilitate inter-Arab trade.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Arab Bank has a well-established framework for corporate governance, which provides
a solid basis for an effective relationship between the Bank, its Board of Directors, its
shareholders and other interest groups. In general, corporate governance ensures 
equitable treatment of all shareholders and recognizes the established legal rights of
both minority and foreign shareholders. It also guarantees the availability of timely and
precise information in all material matters concerning the corporation, along with the
accountability of the Board of Directors to the Bank, its shareholders and other relat-
ed groups.

Arab Bank attaches considerable importance to good corporate governance practices
and has pioneered these practices in the Arab region. The Bank adheres to the guide-
lines of the Central Bank of Jordan, which are based on the 1999 Basel Committee rec-
ommendations on corporate governance and the Corporate Governance Code for
Banks in Jordan, which was updated  in 2007.

In 1996, Arab Bank established the Audit Committee, and in 2002 a special Commit-
tee for Corporate Governance was created. More recently, in 2006 the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was established to enhance corporate governance at the
executive level. The annex to this report contains Arab Bank’s Corporate Governance
Code. 

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

The Bank maintains a comprehensive manual on its professional code of conduct,
which is distributed to all employees. Each employee is expected to uphold the high-
est level of professional conduct with the aim of enhancing the Bank’s reputation and
performance in the regions in which it operates.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Regulatory compliance has always been a core value of the Bank. This corporate cul-
ture has been formalized by the establishment of a dedicated Regulatory Compliance
Division, which is responsible for the compliance framework and its implementation
throughout the Bank and for promoting a high level of awareness of compliance 
requirements. This division relies on independent regulatory compliance officers, ap-
pointed in all the countries where the Bank operates. Its mission is to ensure that the
Bank has a robust system for identification and management of compliance require-
ments in all jurisdictions.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Arab Bank’s Board of Directors is composed of 11 members who are elected for a pe-
riod of four years by the General Assembly of the Shareholders. On 31 March 2006,
the General Assembly elected a new Board for a period of four years. The members
possess a range of skills and experiences, which enables them to make valuable con-
tributions to Board discussions. In 2007, the Board of Directors held nine meetings. 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
• Date of membership: since 28/9/1976
• Date of birth: 1/1/1947
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Business Administration, American University of

Beirut, 1970 
• Experience:

- Regional Executive Manager of the Arab Bank branches in the GCC countries 
(1972 – 1976)

- Worked for 25 years as Assistant General Manager of Arab Bank, chairing the High-
er Credit Committee in addition to several other senior committees of the Bank

• Board memberships:
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Europe Arab Bank (since 28/6/2006)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arab Bank (Switzerland) (since 18/4/2002)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Islamic International Arab Bank (since

25/7/2001)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of AB Capital (since 2005)
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab National Bank (since 25/6/2001)
- Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of Oman Arab Bank (since 25/6/2001)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of AB Invest (since 2004).

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri 
Deputy Chairman 
• Date of membership: since 27/3/1998
• Date of birth:  22/1/1937
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Chemical Engineering, University of Texas, Austin,

USA, 1963
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• Experience:
- More than 40 years experience in managing private businesses in various areas

of investment, finance, industry and commerce
• Board memberships:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arab Supply & Trading Co., KSA (since 1979)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of ASTRA Industrial Group, KSA (since 2007)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Sikon for Building Materials Co., UAE (since

1968)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of ZARA Holding Co., Jordan (since

29/5/1999)
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Palestine Telecommunication Corp., Pales-

tine (since 10/11/1998)
- Member of the Board of Directors of Palestine Development & Investment Co.

(Padico), Palestine (since 1994).

Ministry of Finance and Economy, Saudi Arabia
Represented by H.E. Mr Saleh Saad A. Al-Muhanna
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 29/4/1966  
• Date of birth: 11/1/1959
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Industrial Management, King Fahd University of Pe-

troleum and Minerals, Saudi Arabia, 1982, MSc in Economics, Ohio State Univer-
sity, USA, 1993

• Experience :
- Currently holds the position of Deputy Under Secretary General for General Bud-

get Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Saudi Arabia
- Member of the team negotiating with international oil companies on the Natural

Gas Initiative (2000–2004)
- Member of the committee responsible for the sovereign rating of the Kingdom of

Saudi Arabia (since 2001)
• Board memberships:

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Moroccan Developmental Invest-
ment Co. (2000–2006)

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saline Water Conversion Corporation, S.A.
(since 2005)

- Member of the Board of Directors of the General Corporation for Technical & Vo-
cational Training, S.A. (since 2007).
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Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 26/8/1996
• Date of birth: 10/5/1948
• Academic qualifications: Undergraduate degree
• Experience and memberships: 

- President of several humanitarian, cultural and educational institutions
- Member of the Board of Directors of Bank Med (since 26/7/2005)
- Member of the Board of Directors of the Mediterranean Holding Group (since

26/7/2005)
- Vice President of the Continuous Care Centre, Lebanon
- Member of the Board of Trustees of the Children’s Cancer Centre, Lebanon
- Member of Al-Nahda Philanthropic Society for Women, Saudi Arabia
- Member of the Board of Trustees of the Welfare Association.

Social Security Corporation, Amman, Jordan
Represented by H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 29/3/2002
• Date of birth: 23/1/1934
• Academic qualifications: BA in Political Science, American University of Beirut,

1955
• Experience:

- Worked at the Foreign Affairs Dept., Ministry of Transportation, Jordan (1955–1957)
- Many senior posts dealing with foreign media at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs,

Ministry of Information and the Royal Hashemite Court (1958–1970)
- Under Secretary General, Ministry of Information (1971–1975)
- Jordanian Ambassador to Switzerland, Germany, UK and USA, in addition to work-

ing as a non-resident Ambassador to Austria, Sweden, Denmark, Luxembourg, Nor-
way and Holland (1957–1985)

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Jordan (since 21/3/2007)
- President of the Higher Media Council (since 2/12/2002)

• Board memberships:
- Member of the Board of Trustees of King Abdullah II Creativity Award
- Member of the Board of Trustees of the National Centre for Human Rights
- Deputy Chairman, Board of Directors of A.H. Shoman Foundation
- Member of the Board of Trustees of the Hashemite University
- Member of the Board of the Centre for Strategic Studies at the University of

Jordan.
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H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 29/3/2002
• Date of birth:  29/10/1934
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Agricultural Engineering, University of Arizona,

USA, 1959; MSc in Agricultural Mechanical Engineering, Kansas State University,
USA, 1961

• Experience:
- Chaired the Natural, Mineral and Industrial Resources Section, Jordanian Nation-

al Construction Council (1962–1965)
- Managing private businesses (since 1965)
- Member of the Higher Council, The Hashemite Education Society
- Formerly, Minister of several ministries and member of the Senate, House of

Representatives, the National Consultative Council and many of its committees 
• Board memberships:

Member of the Board of Directors of several private sector companies and Chair-
man of the Board of Directors of the Middle East Insurance Company

• Memberships of social and professional organizations: 
- Founding Member of the Jordanian Businessmen Association
- Founding Member of the Salt Construction Establishment
- Member of the Queen Alia Social Development Fund
- Member of Amman Chamber of Commerce
- Member of Amman Chamber of Industry
- Member of the Board of Directors of the National Museum of Art.

H.E. Mr "Mohammed Thabet" Abdulraouf S. Taher
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 3/3/2004
• Date of birth: 1928
• Academic qualifications: Master’s degree in Management, 1963
• Experience: 

- General Manager of Jordan Phosphate Mines Co. and Arab Mining Co. (1958–
1993)

- Minister of Energy and Mineral Resources (1989–1991)
- Deputy Chairman of the Jordanian Businessmen Association and Secretary Gen-

eral of the Union of Arab Businessmen (since 1997)
- General Manager of A.H. Shoman Foundation (since November 2003)

• Board memberships: 
- Member of the National Council for Human Resources Development (since 1998)
- Member of the Board of the Jordanian Scientific Research Society (since 1999)
- Member of the Board of the Arab Knowledge and Management Society (since

2003).



The contribution of Arab Bank to energy and water projects in the Middle East
far exceeded that of any other financial institution in 2007.
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Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 9/7/2005
• Date of birth: 26/1/1943
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Civil Engineering, University of London, 1965; 

MSc in Construction Engineering, University of London, 1966
• Experience: 

- Civil Engineer at Shaheen Engineering & Contracting Co. (1966–1970)
- Worked for Sir Robert McAlpine Engineering Co., London (1970–1974)
- General Manager of Arabtec Construction Co., Dubai (since 1974)
- General Manager of Arabtec Holding, Dubai (since 2005)

• Board memberships: 
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arabtec Holding, Dubai
- Member of the Board of Directors of Depa United Co., Abu Dhabi 
- Member of the Board of Directors of Gulf Capital Co., Abu Dhabi
- Member of the Board of Directors of Turkland Bank, Istanbul, Turkey
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Bank – Syria, Damascus
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arabia Insurance Co., Beirut, Lebanon
- Member of the Board of Directors of Satellite Inter-Active Systems, Dubai.

Mr Mohammed Hariri
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 16/1/2005
• Date of birth: 19/1/1958
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Business Administration, University of Ottawa,

Canada, 1979
• Experience: 

- 26 years experience in the management of Saudi Oger Ltd., KSA
• Board memberships:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Groupe Méditerannée (Holding), Lebanon
(since July 2005)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Manager of Banque de la  Médit-
erannée (BanqueMed) and all of its subsidiaries (since July 2005)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of OgerTelecommunications Ltd., Dubai (since
13/8/2005)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of AVEA Illetisim Hizmelteri A.S., Turkey (since
15/9/2006)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of IRAD Investment Holding, Lebanon
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Al Mal Investment Holding, Lebanon
- First Deputy Chairman of Saudi Oger Ltd. KSA 
- Member of the Board of Directors of TurkTelecom A.S.,Turkey (since 14/11/2005)
- Member of the Board of Directors of Ojer Telekomunikasyon A.S., Turkey (since

22/8/2005)
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- Member of the Board of Directors of 3C Telecommunications (PTY), South Africa
(since 8/6/1999)

- Member of the Board of Directors of MedGulf Holding, Lebanon (since June 2005)
- Member of the Board of Directors of MedGulf Insurance and Reinsurance (Med-

Gulf Bahrain) (since 19/6/2005)
- Member of the Board of Directors of MedGulf Insurance and Reinsurance, Med-

Gulf, Saudi Arabia (since 27/7/1999)
- Member of the Board of Directors of Entreprise des Travaux Internationaux (ETI),

France (since 10/6/2003).
- Member of the Board of Directors of Oger International, France (since

15/5/2003).

Mr Wahbe A. Tamari
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 31/3/2006
• Date of birth: 14/5/1963
• Academic qualifications: BA Management and Finance, Webster University,

Geneva, Switzerland, 1984
• Experience:

- Adviser to the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Consolidated Contractors In-
ternational Co., Athens (1991–1999)

- Executive Director of Sucafina S.A.., Geneva  (1999–2002)
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Watamar & Partners S.A., Geneva (since

2003)
• Board memberships:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Investment Bank, Lebanon (since 26/5/
2007)

- Member of the Board of Directors of Banque de Crédit National SAL, Lebanon
(since 2/8/2004)

- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Arabi for Finance SAL (Holding), Lebanon
(since 26/5/2007)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arabia Insurance Co., Lebanon (since
26/6/2006)

- Member of the Board of Directors of Commercial Building SAL, Lebanon (since
23/6/2006)

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Immofina Holding SAL, Lebanon (since
5/7/2006)

- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Bank (Switzerland), Zurich (since
20/4/2007)

- Chairman of Watamar & Partners S.A., Geneva (since 15/1/2003)
- Chairman of the Board of Immofina S.A., Geneva (since 20/3/2001)
- Vice Chairman of Sucafina S.A., Geneva (since 25/8/1988).
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Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation
Represented by H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi
Member of the Board of Directors
• Date of membership: since 31/3/2006
• Date of birth: 14/4/1966
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Economics, Yarmouk University, 1988; MSc in Eco-

nomics, University of Jordan, 1994; PhD in Development Economics, Utah, USA,
1998

• Experience:
- Held several pioneering roles in the Ministry of Planning and International Coop-

eration, Jordan (2001–2004)
- Deputy Governor and Governor of Jordan at the World Bank (2003–2005) 
- Minister of Planning and International Cooperation and Minister of State for the

Development of the Public Sector (2005)
- Formerly, Member of the Board of Directors of several banks, institutions and gov-

ernment companies
• Board memberships:

- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Tunisian Bank (since 2006).

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1- CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND GENERAL POLICY COMMITTEE

Mr. Abdel Hamid Abdul Majeed Shoman Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sabih Taher D. Masri Deputy Chairman
Mr. Samir Farhan Khalil Kawar Member of the Board of Directors
Mr. Mohammed Hariri Member of the Board of Directors
Dr. "Mohammad Ghaith" Ali Mismar Secretary of the Board of Directors

During the year 2007, the Corporate Governance and General Policy Committee held
three meetings.

2- AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wahbe A. Tamari Chairman of the Committee
Mr. Sabih Taher D. Masri Deputy Chairman of the Board
Mr. Samir Farhan Khalil Kawar Member of the Board of Directors 
Mr. Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin Member of the Board of Directors
Dr. "Mohammad Ghaith" Ali Mismar Secretary of the Board of Directors

During the year 2007 the Audit Committee held six meetings.
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3- SELECTION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Abdel Hamid Abdul Majeed Shoman Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sabih Taher D. Masri Deputy Chairman
Mr. Samir Farhan Khalil Kawar Member of the Board of Directors

During the year 2007 the Selection and Remuneration Committee held two meetings.

4- STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE

Mr. Abdel Hamid Abdul Majeed Shoman Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sabih Taher D. Masri Deputy Chairman
Mr. Mohammed Hariri Member of the Board of Directors
Mr. Wahbe A. Tamari Chairman of the Committee

During the year 2007 the Strategic Investment Committee held two meetings.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr Farouk Wasef Saleh  El-Kharouf
Group Chief Financial Officer and Head of Strategic Investments

• Date of appointment: 1/9/1987
• Date of birth: 27/6/1947
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Accountancy, University of Jordan, 1970; MBA,

American University of Beirut, 1976; PhD in Accountancy, University of Illinois,
Urbana, 1982

• Experience :
- Chief Financial Officer, Arab National Bank (1982–1987)
- Lecturer, University of Jordan (1977)
- Teaching Assistant, University of Jordan (1972–1974)
- Central Accounting Department, Central Bank of Jordan (1970–1971)

• Board memberships:
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Arab Tunisian Bank
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab National Bank
- Member of the Board of Directors of Europe Arab Bank plc
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Bank (Switzerland)
- Editor-in-chief of Arab Bank Review
- Member of several scientific and professional organizations.
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Mr Michel Antoine Nakhla Accad
Assistant Chief Executive Officer

• Date of appointment: 17/9/2006
• Date of birth: 18/12/1953
• Academic qualifications: MBA, 1979
• Experience:

- Corporate Relationship Manager, Citibank (7/1979–6/1982) 
- Corporate Bank Group Head, Citibank (1/7/1982–1/6/1988)
- Chief Credit Officer (CCO), Citibank (1/7/1988–1/7/2001)
- North & West Africa Cluster Head, CCO, Citigroup (1/7/2001–1/12/2003)
- Middle East North Africa Division Head, Citigroup (1/1/2004–16/9/2006)

• Board memberships:
- Member of the Board of Directors of AB Invest, Amman
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Tunisian Bank
- Member of the Board of Directors of Europe Arab Bank plc
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab National Leasing Company.

Dr “Mohammad Ghaith” Ali Mohammad Mismar
Legal Counsel/Secretary General of the Board of Directors

• Date of appointment: 1/9/1999
• Date of birth:  24/11/1961
• Academic qualifications: PhD in Law, 1998 
• Experience:

- Military Judge (28/3/1984–19/ 6/1989)
- Amman Court of First Instance Judge (1/9/1989–30/ 8/1999)
- Legal Counsel/Secretary General of the Board of Directors, Arab Bank

• Board memberships:
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Tunisian Bank
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Palestinian Investment Bank.

Mr Ghassan Hanna Sulaiman Tarazi
Head of Global Internal Audit Division 

• Date of appointment: 1/8/2002
• Date of birth: 8/1/1964
• Academic qualifications: BSc in Economics, Canada; MBA, Belgium, 1986 Interna-

tional professional certifications (CBA & CPA from USA and FAIBF from Australia)
• Experience:

- Audit Assistant, Arthur Andersen & Co. (1989–1990)
- Senior Auditor, Dajjani & Alaa Eldin & Partners (1991–1992)
- Assistant Manager, Jordan National Bank (1992–1993)
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- Partner, KPMG Certified Accountants, Amman (1994–2003) 
- Head of Financial Control and Risk Management, Gulf Investment Establishment,

Kuwait (2/2003–7/2003)
- Partner, KPMG (Certified Auditors), Amman, Jordan (1994–2003)

• Board memberships:
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Tunisian Bank
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Gulf Tech for IT Services, Free Zone, Dubai
- Member of the Board of Directors of Turkland Bank A.S.
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arabella for IT Services, London
- Member of the Board of Directors of Arab Company for Shared Services, Free Zone,

Dubai.

BOARD COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS IN 2007

(In JOD)

Name Annual Annual Board Annual Total
salary trans- remu- travel

portation neration expenses
allowance

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman
Chairman and CEO 301 500 18 000 5 000 - - - 324 500
Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri
Deputy Chairman - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
H.E. Mr Saleh  Saad A. Al-Muhanna - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
H.E. Mr “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S.Taher - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
Mr Mohammed Hariri - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
Mr Wahbe A. Tamari - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi - - - 18 000 5 000 - - - 23 000
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SALARIES AND COMPENSATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
The records of the HR Department at Head Office in Amman show the following:

(In JOD)

Name Annual Annual Board Annual Total
salary trans- remu- travel

portation neration expenses
allowance

Mr Abdel Hamid Shoman (*) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Mr Michel Accad 213 000 - - - - - - - - - 213 000
Dr Ghaith Mismar 103 284 - - - - - - - - - 103 284
Mr Ghassan Tarazi 104 638 - - - - - - - - - 104 638

(*) The figures relating to the CEO are included in the previous table.

The records of Finance Accountancy Mohassaba S.A. in Geneva show the following:

(In CHF)

Dr Farouk El-Kharouf 450 000 - - - - - - 19 568 469 568

NUMBER OF SHARES OWNED BY MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AT 31 DECEMBER
2007 AND 2006

Shareholder’s name Nationality Number of shares Percentage ownership
31.12.2007 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Social Security Jordanian 52 931 290 50 905 230 14.87 14.30
Saudi Oger Ltd Saudi 32 017 660 31 796 380 8.99 8.93
Oger Middle East Holding Lebanese 24 982 300 18 013 600 7.02 5.06
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NUMBER OF ARAB BANK SHARES OWNED BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD, THEIR
RELATIVES AND CONTROLLED COMPANIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 31
DECEMBER 2006

Name and position Relation- Nationality Number of shares Holdings of controlled 
ship companies

31.12.2007 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman, Jordanian 9 775 800 9 775 800 - - - - - -
Chairman and CEO
Mrs S. Shoman Wife Jordanian 16 000 16 000 - - - - - -

Mr Sabih Taher D. Masri Jordanian 4 678 080 4 678 080 - - - - - -
Deputy Chairman
Mrs N. Masri Wife Jordanian 2 115 200 2 115 200 - - - - - -
Ministry of Finance and Economy 
- Saudi Arabia, Member of the Board Saudi 16 000 000 16 000 000 - - - - - -
represented by 
H.E. Mr Saleh Saad A. Al-Muhanna

Mrs Nazik Odah Al Hariri Saudi 40 080 40 080 - - - - - -
Member of the Board

Social Security Corporation 
Member of the Board
represented by 
H.E. Mr Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin Jordanian 52 931 290 50 905 230 - - - - - -

H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar, Jordanian 122 200 146 000 Middle East Insurance Co.

Member of the Board 480 000 504 600
Mrs R. Kawar Wife Jordanian 70 000 70 000 - - - - - -

H.E. Mr “Mohammed Thabet”
Abdulraouf S. Taher, Jordanian 13 000 4 000 - - - - - -
Member of the Board

Mr Riad Burhan Taher Kamal, Jordanian 10 000 1 000 Al-Gazal Foundation

Member of the Board 877 540 682 540

Mr Mohammed Hariri, Lebanese/ 45 800 38 800 - - - - - -
Member of the Board Canadian

Mr Wahbe A. Tamari Lebanese 10 000 1 000 - - - - - -

Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation,
Member of the Board 
represented by H.E. 
Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi Jordanian 7 748 220 7 187 600 - - - - - -
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NUMBER OF ARAB BANK SHARES OWNED BY SENIOR EXECUTIVES AT 31 DECEM-
BER 2007 AND 2006

Name and position Relation- Nationality Number of shares Holdings of controlled 
ship companies

31.12.2007 31.12.2006 31.12.2007 31.12.2006

Mr Abdel Hamid A.M. Shoman, 9 775 800 9 775 800 - - - - - -
Chairman & CEO
Mrs S. Shoman Wife Jordanian 16 000 16 000 - - - - - -

Dr Farouk El-Kharouf 15 000 15 000 - - - - - -
Group Chief Financial Officer/
Head of Strategic Investment

Mr Michel Accad, - - - - - - - - - - - -
Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Dr Ghaith Mismar, 2 000 2 000 - - - - - -
Legal Counsel, Secretary-General

Mr Ghassan Tarazi - - - - - - - - - - - -

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ COMPENSATION 

Total compensation paid to the external auditors and consultancy agencies in Jordan
and outside Jordan for 2007 was JOD 6,057,216, as detailed in the following table: 

JOD thousand 2007 2006

Fees for annual, semi-annual and quarterly audits and reviews 1 340 763
Fees for consultancies and advice 4 717 9 846
Total 6 057 10 609
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

Arab Bank aims to achieve an ideal balance between its strategic objectives and so-
cial responsibility. The Bank positively contributes towards the improvement of social
welfare by providing ongoing assistance to various humanitarian organizations. Arab
Bank is a generous benefactor to the local communities where it operates, and a com-
mitted advocate of environmental conservation, especially in Jordan.

Provision of employment and training opportunities are only part of the Bank’s social
welfare activities. In addition to providing financial assistance to the families of the
workers who are exposed to work accidents, Arab Bank contributes to educational
campaigns to enhance awareness and protection of labour rights. 

Arab Bank is actively involved in the Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation, which pro-
motes the advancement of scientific research in the Arab world. The Abdul Hameed
Shoman Library in Amman is an important educational facility serving Jordanian soci-
ety. The Foundation is also establishing children’s libraries in all governates of the
Kingdom. By conducting periodic workshops, lectures and panels, the Foundation fos-
ters dialogue between scientists, scholars and experts in the Arab world. In addition,
it publishes books and other media, and organizes cultural events and exhibitions.

The Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation regularly grants awards to distinguished
young scientists and science teachers in Jordan, to encourage scientific research and
discoveries. In cooperation with Jordanian and international organizations, the Foun-
dation also conducts an annual competition for children’s creative productions.  

The Foundation supports the agricultural sector by financing scientific conferences
and workshops, dedicated to improvements in agriculture. It also cooperates with the
Royal Scientific Society in funding scientific research to combat plant diseases, and
sponsors the publication of books related to new developments in agriculture.

The establishment of universities and higher institutions of scientific learning is an im-
portant part of Arab Bank’s social responsibility agenda. Arab Bank donated grants to
build the School of Commerce in the University of Jordan, the School of Economics
and Management Science in the Hashemite University, several buildings in Al al-Bayt
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University, the University of Science and Technology, Princess Sumia University for
Technology, University of Balqa for Applied Sciences, Mo’ta University, Al Hussein Ben
Talal University, University of Science and Technology and the Royal Scientific Soci-
ety. The Bank also supports the Al Hussein Fund for excellence and scientific distinc-
tion. 

Arab Bank promotes the youth sector and athletic activities, through the donation of
funds to several distinguished athletes and to many athletic and youth events. The
Bank signed an agreement with the national soccer team to provide financial support
for the team and for the soccer union. 

The following table shows the amount of donations made by Arab Bank in 2007 and
2006:

JOD thousand 2007 2006

Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation 10 350 8 143
Other welfare societies and associations 3 317 5 009
Total 13 667 13 152

This financial support to humanitarian and environmental organizations in the com-
munities where it operates is evidence of the Bank’s great emphasis and commitment
to its social responsibility. 

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS WITH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

All contracts and agreements with Members of the Board and senior executives are
in conformity with normal banking practices. There have been no special or exception-
al events to warrant disclosure in accordance with Article (6) of the Disclosure and
Accounting Standards issued by the Security Exchange Commission. Related party
transactions are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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QUALIFICATIONS OF GROUP STAFF

The following table presents the academic qualifications of the staff of Arab Bank at
31 December 2007:

Academic qualifications Arab Bank Subsidiaries Total

PhD 12 12 24
Master’s degree 490 278 768
Advanced diplomas 11 145 156
Bachelor’s degree 3 680 654 4 334
Junior college 982 253 1 235
High school 1 494 909 2 403
Total 6 669 2 251 8 920

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT

The Bank is an equal opportunity employer, the main considerations for employment
and evaluation being qualifications, personal abilities and efficiency in job perform-
ance. 

Arab Bank organized the following internal training programmes during 2007:  

Training programme Number of Number of
programmes participants

1. INTERNAL TRAINING PROGRAMMES
Multi-skills in banking courses 271 4 782

2. ADVANCED TRAINING
New recruits’ training programme 12 244
Specialized retail training in branches 22 265
Specialized corporate training in branches 4 71

3. STRATEGIC TRAINING PROGRAMME
“Alrowad” training in credit 3 93
“Alrowad” training in IT 1 11
“Alrowad” training in operations 1 15
“Alrowad” training in accounting and financial control 1 16
General “Alrowad” training programme 1 30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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ARAB BANK PLC OPENING AND CLOSING SHARE PRICES, 2000–2007

LAST WORKING DAY OF THE YEAR

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Opening 29.3 20.4 63.5 235.0 305.0 185.1 200.0 150.0
Closing 29.3 21.4 63.3 237.8 305.0 190.0 200.0 153.0

TIME SERIES DATA FOR MAJOR FINANCIAL INDICATORS, 2003–2007

(In JOD million for Arab Bank plc, and in USD million for Arab Bank Group)

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Arab Bank plc: Income 334.7 263.3 200.1 148.3 120.2
Arab Bank Group: Income 775.0 624.6 503.2 326.9 227.7
Arab Bank plc: Shareholders’ equity 3 548.0 3 093.9 1 859.6 1 640.5 1 433.5
Arab Bank Group: Shareholders’ equity 6 857.3 5 884.6 3 885.0 3 424.3 2 880.5

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTED BY ARAB BANK PLC:
Amount 106.8 89.0 53.4 35.2 35.2
In per cent 30.0 25.0 30.3 20.0 40.0
Number of issued shares (in thousand) 356 000 356 000 176 000 17 600 8 800
Share price on the last working day (JOD) 29.3 21.4 63.3 237.8 305.0

In 2004, Arab Bank plc distributed share dividends at a ratio of 1:1. In addition, the
Bank carried out a rights issue in 2006, thus doubling the outstanding shares one more
time. In accordance with the current proposal of the Board to the Extraordinary Gen-
eral Assembly, an additional share dividend distribution will be made in 2008 at a 
ratio of 1:2. 
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INTRODUCTION

Arab Bank attaches great importance to good corporate governance practices, and is
committed to applying the highest standards of professional competence in all its ac-
tivities. The Bank follows the guidelines of the Central Bank of Jordan, which are based
on Basel Committee recommendations on corporate governance. It also observes the
regulatory requirements of all other countries in which it operates.

Arab Bank pioneered corporate governance practices in the Middle East. In early 1996
the Audit Committee was established, and in 2002 a special Corporate Governance
Committee was created. Subsequently, in 2006, the Selection and Remuneration
Committee was formed, and in 2007 the Risk Management Committee and the Cor-
porate Strategy Committee were established. The Board, with all its members in at-
tendance, holds regular and extraordinary meetings to discuss the strategic direction
of the Bank and the changes in the key indicators affecting the general strategy of the
Bank.     

The Corporate Governance Code of the Bank is based on the Code of Corporate Gov-
ernance for Banks in Jordan issued by the Central Bank of Jordan. It is in alignment
with the current Jordanian Banking Law, the current Jordanian Corporations Law and
the Articles of Association and Memorandum of Association of the Bank.

This Code will be kept under review, and will be developed and amended as required
from time to time to meet the changing needs and expectations of the Bank and the
marketplace.

THE PILLARS OF THE CODE

1) COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Bank has a well-established framework for good corporate governance, which pro-
vides a solid basis for an effective relationship between the Bank, its Board of Direc-
tors, its shareholders and other interest groups. The general framework for corporate
governance ensures equitable treatment for all shareholders, and recognizes the es-
tablished legal rights of both minority and foreign shareholders. It also guarantees the
availability of timely and precise information in all material matters concerning the
Bank, and the accountability of the Board to the Bank and its shareholders.

The Bank has prepared this Code in compliance with the requirements of the Code of
Corporate Governance for Banks in Jordan issued by the Central Bank of Jordan. This
Code, which also reflects the needs and policies of the Bank, was approved by the
Board on 30 December 2007. An up-to-date version is available to the public on re-
quest and is also posted on the Bank’s website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Bank publicly reports its compliance with the Code on an annual basis, where nec-
essary detailing how each provision of the Code has been implemented and, where
relevant, in what areas and why the Bank’s executive management has adopted pro-
cedures that might be different from those recommended by the Code.

2) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
A) GENERAL PRINCIPLES
i) The primary responsibility of the Board is to protect and maximize the interests

of the shareholders in the long term. For this purpose the Board bears full respon-
sibility for corporate governance, including setting the strategy of the Bank and
the goals of the executive management, and overseeing implementation to
achieve those goals.

ii)   The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the operations and the finan-
cial soundness of the Bank. It aims to ensure that the interests of shareholders,
depositors, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, including the Central
Bank of Jordan, are met. The Board also seeks to ensure that the Bank is managed
prudently, within the framework of laws and regulations and in line with the Bank’s
own policies.

iii) The Bank affirms that the obligations of each Director are owed to the Bank as a
whole, and not to any particular shareholder.

iv) The Board sets the Bank’s strategic goals, as well as overseeing the executive
management of the Bank. The day-to-day operations of the Bank are the respon-
sibility of the executive management, but the Board as a whole ensures and cer-
tifies that internal control systems are effective and that the Bank’s activities
comply with strategy, policies and procedures approved by the Board, or as re-
quired by law or regulation. As a critical element of these internal controls, the
Board ensures that all dimensions of the Bank’s risks are managed properly.

B) THE CHAIRMAN/GENERAL MANAGER
i) The position of Chairman of the Board is separate from that of General Manager.

In addition, there should be no family relationship up to the third degree between
the Chairman and the General Manager. The division of responsibilities is to be
set in writing and approved by the Board, and is subject to review from time to
time, as necessary. 

ii) If the Chairman is also an executive, the Bank will consider appointing an inde-
pendent member of the Board as Deputy Chairman to act as an independent re-
source and conduit for shareholders. The Chairman is an executive if he is a full-
time employee and has an operational position in the Bank.

iii) The status of the Chairman (whether executive or non-executive) should be pub-
licly disclosed. 
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C) THE ROLE OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
i) The Chairman promotes a constructive relationship between the Board and the

Bank’s executive management, and between the executive Directors and the non-
executive Directors.

ii) The Chairman promotes a culture in the boardroom that encourages constructive
criticism and presentation of alternative views on certain issues under consider-
ation, and also encourages discussion and voting on those issues. 

iii) The Chairman ensures that both the Directors and the Bank’s shareholders re-
ceive adequate and timely information.

iv) The Chairman ensures high standards of corporate governance by the Bank.

D) COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
i) The Board shall be comprised of eleven members. It shall be elected by the An-

nual General Assembly for a term of four years. The Chairman shall be elected by
the members of the Board. 

ii) The composition of the Board should attempt to obtain an optimal mix of skills
and experiences that enable each member to participate in the Board discussions
with full independence. The Board shall include the General Manager and non-ex-
ecutive members (members who do not occupy an operational position in the
Bank).  

iii) To foster the Board’s independence, the Bank’s policy is that the Board should
have at least three “independent” Directors. 

iv) An “independent” Director (whether a natural person or representing a legal en-
tity) is one whose directorship constitutes his/her only connection to the Bank,
and whose judgment is therefore unlikely to be influenced by external consider-
ations. Minimum standards for an “independent” Director include:
(1) A person who has not been employed by the Bank for the preceding three

years;
(2) Is not a relative (up to the second degree) of an administrator of the Bank;
(3) Is not receiving payment or compensation from the Bank (other than as a Di-

rector);
(4) Is not a director or owner of a company with which the Bank does business

(other than business relationships made in the ordinary course of business of
the Bank and on substantially the same terms as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with non-affiliated parties); 

(5) Is not, nor in the past three years has been, affiliated with or employed by a
present or former external auditor of the Bank; and 

(6) Is neither a shareholder with an effective interest in the capital of the Bank
nor affiliated with one.
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E) BOARD PRACTICES
i) In order to ensure that a full range of topics is considered, the Bank’s Board should

meet at least six times a year. 
ii) The executive management will propose a specific topic(s) to be highlighted at

each meeting. 
iii) The topics at each meeting shall be discussed comprehensively.
iv) The Bank’s policy is that the Board should include an independent element in 

order for it to exercise objective judgment and maintain a system of checks and
balances. This is aimed at preventing any undue influence by any of the parties,
including executive management and significant shareholders, and at ensuring
that decisions are taken in the Bank’s best interests.

v) The Bank should provide adequate information to the Directors sufficiently in 
advance of meetings to enable them to reach informed decisions.

vi) The Board Secretary will record discussions at all Board meetings.
vii) The responsibilities of the Board are clearly identified in accordance with relevant

legislation. Each Director of the Bank is provided with a formal appointment let-
ter upon his/her election, in which he/she is advised about his/her rights,
responsibilities and duties.

viii) All banking transactions that require Board approval should be clearly defined in
writing, including:
a) The authority of the Board to approve loans larger than a set amount.
b) The authority of the Board to deal with related parties.

ix) Directors will keep themselves informed of developments within the Bank, and in
the banking industry as a whole, both local and international. The Bank shall pro-
vide the Directors with appropriate briefings regarding its activities.

x) Communication between Directors and committees of the Board with executive
management should be facilitated.

xi) The Bank has drawn up an organizational chart, showing lines of reporting and au-
thority including Board committees and executive management. The section of
the chart showing the more senior levels is made public.

xii) In addition to the arrangement of Board meetings and the taking of minutes of
meetings, the Board Secretary shall ensure that Board procedures are followed,
and that information is conveyed between the members of the Board, the mem-
bers of the Board committees, and the executive management. The functions and
duties of the Board Secretary should be formally defined in writing, and in accor-
dance with this level of responsibility, and  the Board Secretary’s appointment as
well as his/her removal is taken by a unanimous decision of the Board.
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F) BOARD ACTIVITIES: APPOINTMENTS, SUCCESSION AND DEVELOPMENT
i) The Board’s policy is to appoint a General Manager with proven integrity, techni-

cal competence and experience in banking.
ii) The Board is required to approve the appointment of some senior executives such

as the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit, ensuring that they
have the requisite skills. 

iii) The Board shall, with respect to appointment, succession and development, en-
sure:
a) The existence of a regulation for occupational levels and grading and another

for salary and benefits based on classification and evaluation methodology.
b) The existence of career path plans, performance management plans, and suc-

cession plans for executive managers, which list requirements and compe-
tence.

c) That the Bank regularly reviews the staff regulations, instructions and benefits,
to maximize the competitiveness of the Bank in response to the latest global
trends in human resource management for the purpose of attracting and re-
taining highly effective personnel.

d) That the Bank focuses on providing high level professional qualification pro-
grammes in areas of expertise needed by the Bank, especially in the fields of
compliance, risk management, information security systems and bank secre-
cy, and that it offers employees the opportunity to gain those qualifications.

G) BOARD ACTIVITIES: SELF-ASSESSMENT AND PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL OF THE
GENERAL MANAGER

i) The Board assesses, at least once a year, its own performance as a Board, as well
as the standards of accuracy and fairness of the financial statements of the Bank
and the extent of compliance with the regulations, using specific and approved
evaluation methods. The evaluation methods are expected to be objective and
comparable to those used by other similar banks and financial institutions.  

ii) There should be a formal annual evaluation of the General Manager by the Board.

H) BOARD ACTIVITIES: PLANNING, CONTROLS, CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFLICT OF
INTEREST POLICY

i) The Board establishes the Bank’s business objectives, and draws up and approves
the business strategy for achieving those objectives. Through a planning process,
involving input from the Bank’s various departments, the executive management
draws up business plans that are consistent with these strategies. The Board is
required to approve the strategy and the business plans, and review the Bank’s
performance against the plan, ensuring that corrective action is taken as need-
ed. The Bank’s budgeting process is part of short-term planning and performance
measurement.
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ii) The Board ensures that the Bank maintains a high degree of integrity in its oper-
ations. Formal policies, including a code of conduct and definitions and controls
on conflicts of interest and insider dealing have been established and published.
All employees and Directors are required to give their written assent to these. The
policies include the following:
(1) Rules and procedures for related party transactions between the Bank and its

employees or Directors or their companies, or other related parties, including
lending and share trading transactions. Furthermore bank loans to Directors
and/or their companies are made at market rates and not on preferential
terms, and the Directors involved in any such transaction do not participate
in discussions or vote on them. Related party transactions are subject to in-
dividual approval by those Directors of the Bank who are unrelated to the
transaction, and they are disclosed in the Bank’s annual report. The Bank’s
internal controls ensure that all related party transactions are handled in ac-
cordance with this policy.

(2) Clear controls preventing Directors or employees from benefiting from the use
of insider information are in place.

iii)  The Bank has written policies covering all significant bank activities. Such poli-
cies are regularly reviewed to ensure that they conform to any changes in laws
and regulations, the economic environment and other circumstances affecting
the Bank. 

iv) The Bank, as part of its lending and credit approval process, assesses the quali-
ty of corporate governance of its corporate borrowers, especially public share-
holding companies, including the strengths or weaknesses of their corporate gov-
ernance practices. 

3) BOARD COMMITTEES

A) GENERAL PRINCIPLES
i) The Board is ultimately responsible for the conduct of the Bank’s affairs. But for

greater efficiency, Board committees have been set up with formally delegated ob-
jectives, authorities, responsibilities and tenure. The Board committees regularly
report to the full Board and do not substitute for the Board and its responsibili-
ties.

ii) There is a formal and transparent process for appointments to the Board commit-
tees. Their membership, together with summaries of their responsibilities and 
duties, are disclosed in the Bank’s annual report.

iii) The Board may decide to combine the functions of several committees, if appro-
priate or if administratively more convenient.
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B) THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
i) The Corporate Governance Committee consists of the Chairman and three non-

executive members.
ii) The Committee oversees corporate governance practices within the Bank and en-

sures that all aspects of corporate governance are complied with.
iii) The Committee assumes the responsibility for the updating and implementation

of this Code. 

C) THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
i) The Bank has an Audit Committee that comprises at least three non-executive 

Directors. Membership of the Audit Committee is disclosed in the Bank’s annual
report.

ii) The Bank’s policy is that at least two members of the Audit Committee have the
relevant financial management qualifications and/or expertise, and at least two
members of the Audit Committee are independent Directors.

iii) The Audit Committee has all the duties and responsibilities required by the Bank-
ing Law and other relevant laws and regulations, including the duties to review:
(1) The scope, results and adequacy of the Bank’s internal and external audits,
(2) The accounting judgments that are intrinsic to the financial statements, and 
(3) The Bank’s internal controls.

iv) The Audit Committee recommends to the Board the appointment or removal of
the external auditors, and their remuneration and other contractual terms. In ad-
dition, it assesses the objectivity of the external auditors, including consideration
of any other non-audit work performed by them.

v) The Audit Committee has the right to obtain any information from the executive
management, and to require any executive or Director to attend its meetings.

vi) The Audit Committee meets each of the Bank’s external auditors, its internal au-
ditors and its compliance officers, without the presence of the executive manage-
ment, at least once a year. 

vii) The Bank recognizes that the Audit Committee does not substitute for the respon-
sibilities of the Board or the Bank’s executive management for supervision and as-
sessment of the adequacy of the Bank’s internal control systems.

viii) The Audit Committee approves the annual audit plan and oversees its implemen-
tation. It also reviews audit reports and is responsible for overseeing the Internal
Audit Department.

D) THE SELECTION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
i) The Selection and Remuneration Committee consists of a minimum of three non-

executive Directors, the majority of whom (including the Committee chairman) are
independent.
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ii) This Committee determines whether a Director is “independent” based on the
minimum standards for independence set out in this Code.

iii) It is responsible for providing background briefing material to Directors, as 
requested, as well as ensuring that they are kept up to date on relevant banking
topics. The Bank encourages Directors to attend seminars and events that enable
them to meet local and international organizations, entities and companies.

iv) The Selection and Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the remu-
neration (including monthly salary and other benefits) of the General Manager. It
also reviews the remuneration (including salaries) of other members of the exec-
utive management.

v) The Committee ensures that the Bank has a remuneration policy that is sufficient
to attract and retain qualified individuals, and is in line with the Bank’s peers in
the market. 

vi) A summary of the Bank’s remuneration policy is presented in the Bank’s annual
report. In particular, the remuneration of individual Directors and the highest paid
non-Director executives is disclosed, including salary and benefits in kind.

vii) Nothing prevents the Selection and Remuneration Committee from nominating
members of the Board for a new term according to the Companies Law, taking in-
to consideration their attendance, quality and extent of their participation in the
Board meetings. In accordance with the Companies Law, the tenure of the Board
expires four years from the date of election, and each Director may submit him-
self/herself for re-election at the Annual General Assembly.

E) THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
i) The Risk Management Committee is comprised of three Directors and the Chair-

man/General Manager. It also includes three members of the executive manage-
ment.

ii) The Board reviews and approves the risk management strategies and policies of
the Bank on a regular basis. Executive management is responsible for implement-
ing the strategies that have been approved by the Board, and for developing poli-
cies and procedures for managing the various types of risks.

iii) The structure and development of a coherent and comprehensive risk manage-
ment department within the Bank is to be proposed by the executive manage-
ment, reviewed by the Risk Management Committee, and approved by the Board.

iv) The Bank considers that, owing to the rapid development and increasing complex-
ity of risk management, the Risk Management Committee should keep itself fully
informed of developments in the Bank’s risk management. Accordingly, the Com-
mittee makes regular reports of this to the Board.
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v) The Board ensures that the Bank has an effective control system, and is respon-
sible for overseeing its effectiveness. The Board also approves risk management
policies and defines their framework. 

F) THE CORPORATE STRATEGY COMMITTEE
i) The Corporate Strategy Committee comprises three Directors as well as the

Chairman/General Manager, Chief Financial Officer and Assistant General Man-
ager.

ii) The Corporate Strategy Committee has the following duties:
(1) Oversees all issues related to the strategy of the Bank and formulates gener-

al policies to effectively implement that strategy. 
(2) Approves strategic decisions and oversees the work of the executive manage-

ment and management team with regard to:
- Strategy, business plans and performance of all divisions and business

lines,
- Succession planning for executive managers, and  
- Corporate actions.

(3) Reviews and approves any new investments, acquisitions, mergers, expansion
into new markets, and selling of assets of the Bank or of its subsidiary or af-
filiate companies.

4) CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

A) INTERNAL CONTROLS
i) The Bank’s structure of internal controls is reviewed at least once a year by inter-

nal and external auditors. 
ii) The Board provides information in each annual report on the adequacy of the

Bank’s internal controls on its financial reporting. It contains: 
(1) A statement of the executive management’s responsibility for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting for the Bank;
(2)  A statement identifying the framework used by the executive management to

evaluate the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls;
(3)  The executive management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal con-

trols up to the date of the financial statements included in the annual report;
(4)  Disclosure of any material weaknesses in the internal controls (i.e. a signifi-

cant deficiency or combination of significant deficiencies that result in the
possibility that a material misstatement will not be prevented or detected); 
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(5) A statement that the Bank’s external auditor has issued an attestation on the
executive management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the existing in-
ternal controls.

iii) The Bank has established arrangements that allow staff to confidentially raise
concerns about possible irregularities, and that allow for such concerns to be in-
dependently investigated and followed up. Such arrangements are overseen and
monitored by the Audit Committee.

B) INTERNAL AUDIT
i) The Bank’s policy requires the internal audit function of the Bank to be adequate-

ly resourced, trained and remunerated. It is to be provided full access to Bank
records and staff members and should be given sufficient standing and authori-
ty within the Bank to adequately carry out its task. The powers and responsibili-
ties of the internal audit function are documented in the Internal Audit Charter,
which is approved by the Board and published within the Bank. 

ii) Internal audit function reports primarily to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
iii) To promote independence, internal audit staff do not also have operational re-

sponsibilities. The internal audit function is responsible for proposing the struc-
ture and scope of the audit schedule, and any potential conflicts of interest are
to be reported to the Audit Committee.

iv) The internal audit function’s reports may be discussed with the departments and
operational units being reviewed, but it is allowed to operate and make a full and
honest report without outside influence or interference. 

v) The primary responsibility of the internal audit function and for conducting risk-
focused audits, is at least to review:
(1) The Bank’s financial reporting, ensuring that significant financial, manageri-

al and operating information is accurate, reliable and timely; and
(2) Compliance with internal policies, international standards and procedures,

and applicable laws and regulations.

C) EXTERNAL AUDIT
i) The Bank requires regular rotation of the external audit between auditing firms.

Should this not be practical, the Bank will, at a minimum, require regular rotation
of the principal partner in charge of the external audit. 

ii) The external auditors’ report is submitted to both the Audit Committee and the
Annual General Assembly. The external auditors meet with the Audit Committee,
without the executive management present, at least once a year.
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D) RISK MANAGEMENT
i) The Risk Management Department within the Bank reports to the Risk Manage-

ment Committee of the Board, and on a day-to-day operational basis to the Gen-
eral Manager.

ii) The responsibilities of the Bank’s Risk Management Department include:
(1) Analysis of all risks including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and opera-

tional risk;
(2) Development of methodologies for the measurement and control of each risk;
(3) Recommendation of limits to the Risk Management Committee, and approval,

reporting and recording of exceptions to policy;
(4) Provision of information on risk metrics and the Bank’s risk profile to senior

management and to the Board, which reviews the risk statistics of the Bank,
both qualitative and quantitative, at each regular Board meeting; and

(5) Provision of risk information for use in the Bank’s public statements and 
reporting. 

iii) The functions of the Risk Management Department are assisted by a network of
properly constituted, authorized, and documented committees such as credit
committees, assets and liabilities/treasury committees, and operational risk
committees.

iv) The structure, operation and ongoing development of the Bank’s Risk Manage-
ment Department are discussed and explained in the Bank’s public documents,
primarily in its annual report.

E) COMPLIANCE
i) The Bank’s policy requires it to have an independent compliance function which

is adequately resourced, trained and remunerated in accordance with the central
bank instructions in this regard. 

ii) The compliance function establishes effective mechanisms to ensure that the
Bank complies with all applicable laws and regulations, and any non-statutory
guidelines and codes. The powers and responsibilities of the compliance function
are documented and published within the Bank.

iii) The compliance function is responsible for developing the compliance policy of
the Bank and ensuring its implementation throughout the Bank. The Board is re-
sponsible for approving the compliance policy and overseeing its implementation. 

iv) The compliance function reports on operational compliance within the Bank to
the Chairman or to a committee of the Board, copying the General Manager on
each report, in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions in this
regard.
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5) TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

i) The Bank takes proactive steps to encourage shareholders, in particular minority
shareholders, to participate in the Annual General Assembly, and also to vote, ei-
ther in person or, in their absence, by proxy.

ii) The Bank’s policy requires chairpersons of all Board committees to be present at
the Annual General Assembly, and they are invited to address relevant questions
from shareholders.

iii) Representatives from the external auditors are present at the Annual General As-
sembly to answer questions about the audit and the auditors’ report.

iv) The Bank’s policy requires voting on each separate issue that is raised at the An-
nual General Assembly.

v) As required by the Companies Law, Directors submit themselves for election or
re-election at the Annual General Assembly, as provided by the Memorandum of
Association of the Bank, and the Bank’s external auditors are elected at the An-
nual General Assembly.

vi) Notes, minutes and a report of the proceedings of the Annual General Assembly,
including the results of voting and the questions from shareholders and the ex-
ecutive management’s responses, are prepared and made available to sharehold-
ers after the Annual General Assembly.

6) TRANSPARENCY AND DISCLOSURE

i) The Bank is required to conform to disclosure requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Banking Law, and instructions issued
pursuant thereto, as well as to other relevant legislation. Furthermore, the Bank
acknowledges that financial reporting practices and the level of transparency re-
quired of financial institutions is changing rapidly. The Bank’s executive manage-
ment reports on these developments to the Board, and makes recommendations
for the regular enhancement of the Bank’s own disclosure practices, beyond
those required by the Central Bank of Jordan.

ii) The Bank recognizes its obligation to provide meaningful information on its activ-
ities to shareholders, depositors, financial market counterparts, regulators and
the public in general. It also has a duty to address shareholder concerns. The
Bank’s disclosure of such information on a timely basis should be available to all.

iii) The Board accepts responsibility for the Bank’s financial statements and the con-
tents of the annual report, including their accuracy and their completeness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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iv) The Bank commits to maintaining the following information channels with its
shareholders, depositors, financial market counterparts, regulators and the pub-
lic in general:
(1) A professionally staffed investor relations function that provides comprehen-

sive, objective and up-to-date information on the Bank, its financial condition
and performance, and its activities;

(2) An annual report, produced at the end of each financial year;
(3) Quarterly reports that provide quarterly financial information, and the Board’s

report on the Bank’s stocks trading and financial condition during the year;
(4) Regular meetings between senior executives of the Bank and investors and

shareholders;
(5) Regular briefings by senior executives of the Bank, especially the General

Manager and the Chief Financial Officer, for shareholders, financial market an-
alysts and financial journalists; and

(6) Information provided through the Bank’s annual report, or its quarterly re-
ports, and the text of any public presentations given by executives is made
available to interested parties both in writing through the Bank’s investor re-
lations and in a timely manner on the Bank’s website, in both Arabic and Eng-
lish.

v) In its annual reports and quarterly reports, the Bank’s executive management in-
cludes a section on Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which enables
investors to understand current and future operating results and the financial con-
dition of the Bank, including the possible impacts of trends, events and uncer-
tainties. The Bank commits to ensuring that such a commentary is reliable, com-
plete, fair, balanced and understandable, and is grounded in the Bank’s financial
statements as reported.

vi) As part of its commitment to transparency and full disclosure, the Bank includes
the following information in its annual report:
(1) Its Corporate Governance Code, and annual details of compliance.
(2) Information on each individual Director: qualifications and experience, shares

held in the Bank, whether the person is an independent non-executive or
executive Director, membership of Board Committees, dates of appointment
to the Board, other directorships, attendance at Board and Board Committee
meetings, remuneration, loans from the Bank and other transactions between
the Bank and the Director or his/her companies or other related parties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

(3) Summary organization chart.
(4) Summaries of the terms of reference of Board committees, and any authori-

ties delegated by the Board to Board committees.
(5) The frequency of Board and Board Committee meetings.
(6) Summary of the remuneration policy, including remuneration of the highest

paid member of executive management.
(7) A statement by the Board of the adequacy of internal controls.
(8) A description of the structure and activities of the Risk Management Depart-

ment.
(9) A list of the largest shareholders of the Bank (for example, individual or relat-

ed parties holding or controlling more than 10% of shares), identifying the 
ultimate beneficiaries of interest payments, if needed for explanation.
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Arab Bank always adheres to the highest standards of conduct, integrity, and loyalty
in the conduct of the performance of its work and tasks. Accordingly, members of Arab
Bank Board of Directors should perform their tasks and duties in compliance with the
code of ethics and abide by its provisions literally and in spirit.

Each member of the Board of Directors should comply with the following:

1- Perform his duties honestly and loyally with good intentions and to the best of his
abilities at the highest standards of conduct in line with the Bank’s interests.  

2- Adhere to the provisions of laws, regulations, instructions, and guidelines prevail-
ing in the Kingdom of Jordan.

3- Maintain the confidentiality of the information and data which he comes to know
as member and abstain from using such information for any personal interests
whether directly or indirectly.

4- Not disclose any information relating to the Bank’s intellectual property which he
comes to know in the conduct of his work as member except according to the pro-
visions of the prevailing laws and regulations or based on the order of the related
court.

5- Not deal in Arab Bank shares based on internal information or abuse of informa-
tion as this may lead to unjust treatment of the interests of others.

6- Conduct transparent activities in order to avoid conflict of interests whether this
conflict is real or can be avoided. In case such conflict affects his work and tasks
or prejudices his judgment, and if such conflict arises, proper measures should be
taken to disclose such conflict immediately to the Board of Directors and the mem-
ber should not be involved upon discussion of the matter.

7- Not participate in any activity or accept any gift or unusual service or benefit from
any source and not participate in any event that may create conflict of interests
with Arab Bank or its activities.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT   
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8- Not interfere or practice any authority over any supervisor or employee at Arab
Bank unless explicitly authorized by the Board to do so.

9- Contact the other parties on behalf of the Board through the Board chairman or
his deputy (in case of the chairman’s absence). The other Board members can not
contact the other parties on behalf of Arab Bank.

10- Not divulge any information to the press or mass media unless authorized to do so
by the Board.

11- All members should adhere to the following when taking their decisions:
- Act prudently with a vision of achieving the interests of Arab Bank only.
- Consider all significant matters and take decisions accordingly.
- Ignore personal interests or any other factors that may negatively affect their

decisions.

12- Not encourage any direct contact by employees who try to bypass management
but should encourage employees to go through the management hierarchy until
their opinion reaches the Board.

13- Immediately inform the Board upon the occurrence of any of the following:
- Any changes to the number of the Bank’s shares owned by a member or under

his disposal.
- Any membership on the board of any public shareholding company and related

changes.

14- Not sell any of the Bank’s shares he owns or under his disposal before the elapse
of two weeks from the date of approval of the interim financial statements unless
prior approval is given by the Board.

15- Adhere to all resolutions issued by the Board even though he may hold an opinion
contrary to the Board’s resolution issued properly.  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT  
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Out of the Bank’s belief in the importance of the human factor in its various sectors
and in order to motivate employees and encourage them to perform well and effec-
tively and to distinguish among the different performance levels, management of the
Bank has tied performance bonuses (exceptional incentives) of the employees to the
rating of the employee’s performance during the previous year. Employees perform-
ance rating is categorized into four levels: employee with distinguished performance,
employee with promising performance, employee with good performance, and em-
ployee with weak performance. Based on this, the performance bonus value for each
employee is determined according to the evaluation of his performance. Consequent-
ly, the distinguished employee is given a bonus different in value from that given to an
employee with promising or good performance. The employee with weak performance
is not granted any exceptional bonuses.

Employees assigned to work within strategic projects significant to the Bank in its var-
ious sectors are granted exceptional bonuses commensurate with the importance and
expected return of the project in addition to other standards set for this purpose. These
bonuses replace performance-related bonuses.

Incentives are granted to employees in some sectors on marketing and selling the
Bank’s various products within an approved special incentives program according 
to predetermined standards relating to lending volume, portfolio quality, and other
factors.

These incentives replace performance-related incentives.       

SUMMARY OF THE BANK’S BONUS POLICIES
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ARAB BANK GROUP
(USD '000) Note 2007 2006

Cash and balances with central banks 5 4 437 595 2 904 777
Balances with banks and financial institutions 6 4 536 401 5 548 274
Deposits with banks and financial institutions 7 478 437 1 092 915
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 8 1 452 499 2 008 597
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated 9 234 419 - - -
Financial derivatives - positive fair value 42 45 769 14 786
Direct credit facilities 10 19 483 153 14 165 289
Financial assets - available for sale 11 3 064 958 2 173 423
Financial assets - held to maturity 12 2 047 257 2 052 808
Investments in associated companies 13 1 458 513 1 047 390
Fixed assets 14 451 510 349 499
Other assets 15 624 663 1 085 760
Deferred tax, assets 16 18 130 21 885
Total assets 38 333 304 32 465 403

Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 17 5 085 531 3 568 031
Customer deposits 18 22 666 346 19 650 574
Cash margin 19 2 055 925 2 115 747
Financial derivatives - negative fair value 42 45 881 63 806
Borrowed funds 20 500 000 - - -
Other provisions 21 153 505 168 429
Provision for income tax 22 200 836 189 232
Other liabilities 23 740 604 802 908
Deferred tax, liabilities 24 27 384 22 120
Total liabilities 31 476 012 26 580 847
Capital 25 525 047 525 047
Issuing premium 25 1 475 497 1 313 254
Treasury shares 25 (423) (48 523)
Statutory reserve 330 688 266 978
Voluntary reserve 26 729 036 594 806
General reserve 1 612 262 1 599 483
General banking risk reserve 27 426 942 281 607
Reserves with associated companies 1 085 205 870 870
Translation adjustments 28 173 195 89 742
Cumulative change in fair value 29 118 016 101 139
Retained earnings 30 127 014 90 421
Proposed dividends 166 667 139 442
Total shareholders’ equity (parent company) 6 769 146 5 824 266
Minority interest 31 88 146 60 290
Total shareholders’ equity 6 857 292 5 884 556
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 38 333 304 32 465 403
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ARAB BANK GROUP
(USD '000) Note 2007 2006

Interest income 32 2 220 874 1 906 644
Less: Interest expense 33 1 254 097 1 118 020
Net interest income 966 777 788 624
Commission income, net 34 227 540 181 158
Net interest and commission income 1 194 317 969 782
Foreign exchange trading 63 251 49 618
Gains (losses) from financial assets - held for trading 35 (2 959) 2 121
Gains from financial assets - designated 36 4 966 - - -
Gains from financial assets - available for sale 37 17 783 21 093
Bank’s share of associated companies’ profits 321 094 295 582
Other revenue 38 67 907 72 781
Net revenue 1 666 359 1 410 977

Employee expenses 39 338 303 259 842
Other expenses 40 288 474 261 054
Depreciation and amortization 14 41 412 44 068
Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 10 25 228 25 769
Provision for impairment - held to maturity investments 12 135 6 429
Other provisions 8 669 23 821
Total expenses 702 221 620 983

Income before tax 964 138 789 994
Income tax 22 189 175 165 434
Income after tax 774 963 624 560

Attributable to: 
- Arab Bank shareholders 762 826 616 370
- Minority interests 12 137 8 190

Income for the year 774 963 624 560

Income for the year 774 963 624 560
Retained earnings brought forward 90 421 86 710
Total 865 384 711 270
Statutory reserve 63 710 49 823
Voluntary reserve 134 230 107 403
General reserve 12 779 58 831
General banking risk reserve 146 649 59 644
Reserves with associated companies 214 335 205 706
Proposed cash dividends 166 667 139 442
Retained earnings carried forward 127 014 90 421
Total appropriation 865 384 711 270

Income per share (in USD) 54 2.15  1.85  

INCOME STATEMENT 
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

20
07
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ARAB BANK GROUP
(USD '000)

Capital Issuing Treasury Statutory Voluntary General
premium shares reserve reserve reserve

Balance on 1 January 525 047 1 313 254 (48 523) 266 978 594 806 1 599 483
Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative change in fair value - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income recognized directly in equity - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income after tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total recognized income - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale of treasury shares - - - 162 243 48 100 - - - - - - - - -
Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 63 710 134 230 12 779
Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments during the year - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 525 047 1 475 497 (423) 330 688 729 036 1 612 262

Balance on 1 January 271 017 - - - - - - 217 155 487 403 1 540 652
Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative change in fair value - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income recognized directly in equity - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income after tax - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total recognized income - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital increase 254 030 1 313 254 (48 523) - - - - - - - - -
Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 49 823 107 403 58 831
Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments during the year - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 525 047 1 313 254 (48 523) 266 978 594 806 1 599 483
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General Reserves with Translation Cumulative Retained Proposed Total Minority Total
banking associated adjustments change in earnings dividends shareholders’ interest share-

risk companies fair value equity (parent holders’
reserve company) equity

281 607 870 870 89 742 101 139 90 421 139 442 5 824 266 60 290 5 884 556
- - - - - - 83 453 - - - - - - - - - 83 453 - - - 83 453
- - - - - - - - - 16 877 - - - - - - 16 877 - - - 16 877
- - - - - - 83 453 16 877 - - - - - - 100 330 - - - 100 330
- - - - - - - - - - - - 774 963 - - - 774 963 - - - 774 963
- - - - - - 83 453 16 877 774 963 - - - 875 293 - - - 875 293
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 210 343 - - - 210 343

146 649 214 335 - - - - - - (571 703) - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - (166 667) 166 667 - - - - - - - - -

(1 314) - - - - - - - - - - - - (267) (1 581) 27 856 26 275
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (139 175) (139 175) - - - (139 175)

426 942 1 085 205 173 195 118 016 127 014 166 667 6 769 146 88 146 6 857 292

221 963 665 164 43 795 216 049 86 710 86 405 3 836 313 48 726 3 885 039
- - - - - - 45 947 - - - - - - - - - 45 947 - - - 45 947
- - - - - - - - - (114 910) - - - - - - (114 910) - - - (114 910)
- - - - - - 45 947 (114 910) - - - - - - (68 963) - - - (68 963)
- - - - - - - - - - - - 624 560 - - - 624 560 - - - 624 560
- - - - - - 45 947 (114 910) 624 560 - - - 555 597 - - - 555 597
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 518 761 - - - 1 518 761

59 644 205 706 - - - - - - (481 407) - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - (139 442) 139 442 - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 11 564 11 564
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (86 405) (86 405) - - - (86 405)

281 607 870 870 89 742 101 139 90 421 139 442 5 824 266 60 290 5 884 556
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ARAB BANK GROUP
(USD '000) Note 2007 2006

Income before tax 964 138 789 994
Adjustments: 
- Depreciation and amortization 41 412 44 068
- Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 25 228 25 769
- Bad debts written off 310 3 061
- Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (795) (866)
- Provision for impairment - held-to-maturity investments 135 6 429
- (Gains) losses from revaluation of financial assets - held for trading 7 621 - - -
- (Gains) losses from revaluation of financial assets - designated (4 815) - - -
- Other provisions 8 669 23 821
Total 1 041 903 892 276
(Increase) decrease in assets 
Balances with central banks (maturing after 3 months) (655 965) - - -
Deposits with banks and financial institutions 614 478 (567 944)
Direct credit facilities (5 343 402) (2 468 994)
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 548 477 (640 795)
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated (229 604) - - -
Other assets 433 869 (440 234)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Bank and financial institution deposits (maturing after 3 months) (60 961) 168 566
Customer deposits 3 015 772 1 981 772
Cash margin (59 822) 494 013
Other liabilities (77 547) 135 419
Net cash provided from operations before income tax (772 802) (445 921)
Income tax paid (177 571) (130 828)
Net cash provided from operations (950 373) (576 749)

(Purchase) sale of financial assets - available for sale (869 394) 404 854
(Purchase) sale of financial assets - held to maturity 5 416 (439 161)
(Purchase) sale of investments in associated companies (411 123) (221 989)
(Purchase) sale of fixed assets (142 628) (120 344)
Net cash provided from (used in) investing activities (1 417 729) (376 640)

Increase (decrease) in borrowed funds 500 000 - - -
Dividends paid to shareholders (139 175) (86 405)
Capital increase 0 1 518 761
Sale of treasury shares 210 343 - - -
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities 571 168 1 432 356

Translation adjustments 83 453 45 947
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (1 713 481) 524 914
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 5 043 223 4 518 309
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 56 3 329 742 5 043 223

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

Arab Bank plc (the parent company) was established in 1930, and is registered in 
Jordan as a public shareholding limited company. The head office of the Bank is in
Amman, Jordan, and it operates worldwide through its branches, subsidiaries and sis-
ter company, Arab Bank (Switzerland). 

The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at
its meeting no. 1/2008 on 24 January 2008. 

Arab Bank shares have a primary listing on the Amman Stock Exchange. Arab Bank
(Switzerland) shares are stapled to Arab Bank shares and traded together at a ratio of
one to ten. 

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

- The accompanying financial statements of Arab Bank Group, reported in US dollars,
include the financial statements of Arab Bank plc, its sister company, Arab Bank
(Switzerland), and the following wholly-owned, majority-owned and effectively con-
trolled subsidiaries:

Percentage ownership as on 31 December 2007

%
Arab Bank Australia Limited, Sydney 100.00
Europe Arab Bank plc, London 100.00
Islamic International Arab Bank plc, Amman 100.00
Arab Leasing Company, Amman 100.00
Al-Arabi Investment Group Co. 100.00
Arab Investment Bank S.A.L., Beirut (*) 66.65
Arab Tunisian Bank, Tunis 64.24
AB Capital Limited, Dubai 60.00
Arab Palestinian Investment Bank, Ramallah 55.00
Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company, Amman 50.00
Arab Bank-Syria, Damascus 49.00

(*) Direct ownership

- Subsidiaries are the companies under the effective control of Arab Bank plc. 
Control becomes effective when the Bank has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the subsidiary so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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- The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position and results of
operations at the level of the single economic ownership of Arab Bank plc and the
sister company Arab Bank (Switzerland), which is considered an integral part of Arab
Bank Group.

- The results of the operations of a subsidiary are included in the income statement
effective from the acquisition date, which is the date of the transfer of control over
the subsidiary. The results of the operations of a divested subsidiary are included
in the income statement up to the date of divestment, which is the date of relinquish-
ing control over the subsidiary.

- Intergroup transactions are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.
Items in transit are reported under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may
be. Minority interest is reported separately within shareholders’ equity in the con-
solidated balance sheet.

- In the separate financial statements of the Bank, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the stan-
dards issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpre-
tations issued by the Committee of the IFRS Board, the prevailing rules of the coun-
tries where the Group operates, and the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for
financial assets held for trading, those available for sale, and financial derivatives
which are stated at fair value on the date of the financial statements. Hedged assets
and liabilities are also stated at fair value.
The accounting policies for 2007 are consistent with those used in previous years, ex-
cept for the changes indicated below.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The International Accounting Standards Board has issued amendments to the Inter-
national Accounting Standards as well as new Financial Reporting Standards. Apply-
ing these amendments and their interpretations has had no significant impact on the
financial statements. The following accounting standards were changed:
- International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 7 concerning disclosures of finan-

cial instruments. This standard supersedes IAS 30 on disclosures in the financial

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARAB BANK GROUP
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statements of banks and similar financial institutions. IFRS 7 also amends some of
the disclosure requirements of IAS 32, which defined presentation and disclosures
of the financial instruments. The amendment now requires only the presentation of
the financial instruments. The requirements of this amendment became applicable
as at 1 January 2007.

- Amendment to IAS 1 on presentation of the financial statements and related disclo-
sures on the goals of a bank, its policies and procedures with regard to managing
its capital. This amendment became applicable as at 1 January 2007.

- IFRS 8 concerning segmentation performance reporting has cancelled IAS 14. This
standard will be effective for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2009.

- IFRIC 9 concludes that an entity must assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
when the entity first becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is
prohibited unless there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the contract, in
which case reassessment is required. IFRIC 9 became applicable as of 1 January
2007. 

- IFRIC 10 concludes that an entity shall not reverse an impairment loss recognized
in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an 
equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost. IFRIC 10 became applicable
as at 1 January 2007.

RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Sale and purchase of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the entity commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the closing market price of financial assets and derivatives on
the date of the financial statements. Where the declared market prices do not exist
and active trading of some financial assets and derivatives is not available, or the mar-
ket is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of several methods, such as:
- Taking the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and conditions;
- Using the present value of expected future cash flows for similar instruments; or
- Adopting option pricing models.

The valuation methods aim to arrive at a fair value that reflects the expectations of the
market, expected risks and expected benefits. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARAB BANK GROUP
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

When the fair value cannot be measured reliably, financial assets are stated at cost
less any impairment.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - HELD FOR TRADING

- These are financial assets acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term, or they might be part of a portfolio of identified fi-
nancial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

- Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at their fair value when pur-
chased, while transaction costs are expensed in the income statement and subse-
quently reported at the prevailing fair value. The resulting change is included in the
income statement in the period in which it arises, including exchange differences
in fair value resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets denominated in
foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting from changes in the foreign ex-
change rate are recorded in the income statement as profit or loss on foreign ex-
change.

- Dividends are recognized as a gain from financial assets, and are held for trading in
the income statement, while the realized interest is reported as interest income in
the income statement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - DESIGNATED

- A financial asset eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (accounting mismatch). If it is part of a group of financial assets or fi-
nancial liabilities or both, it is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strat-
egy.

- Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss and are initially
recognized at their fair value when purchased, while transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement and subsequently reported at the prevailing fair value. The
resulting change is included in the income statement in the period in which it aris-
es, including exchange differences in fair value resulting from the translation of non-
monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting
from changes in the foreign exchange rate are recorded in the income statement as
profit or loss on foreign exchange.

- Dividends are recognized as a gain from financial assets, and are designated at fair
value through profit or loss in the income statement, while the realized interest is
reported as interest income in the income statement.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES

- These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market.

- Direct credit facilities are recorded at cost, and stated in the balance sheet after
deducting provisions, interest and commission in suspense.

- A provision for impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when it is appar-
ent that the financial assets of the Group cannot be recovered, when there is ob-
jective evidence of an event that negatively affects the future cash flows of the di-
rect credit facilities, and when the impairment amount can be estimated. The
provision is taken to the income statement.

- Interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities are suspended in ac-
cordance with the instructions of the regulatory authorities in the countries where
the Group operates.

- Impaired direct credit facilities, for which specific provision has been made, are writ-
ten off by charging the provision after all efforts have been made to recover the as-
sets. Any surplus in the provisions or recoveries is taken to the income statement,
while the debt of previously written off recoveries is taken to income.

FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE

- These are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or not classified
as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets at fair val-
ue through profit and loss.

- Financial assets available for sale are initially recorded at fair value, including ac-
quisition costs. They are subsequently reported at fair value as prevailing on the date
of the financial statements; changes in fair value are recorded in a separate account
in shareholders’ equity. 

- When these assets are fully or partially sold, disposed of, or determined to be im-
paired, the change in fair value is recorded in the income statement, including re-
lated amounts previously recorded in shareholders’ equity. The loss resulting from
an impaired value of the debt instruments is reversed when it is objectively evident
that the increase in their fair value occurred after the losses had been recognized.
Impairment losses resulting from a decline in the value of equity securities cannot
be reversed.

- Income and losses resulting from foreign exchange translations of interest-bearing
debt instruments are included in the income statement. Differences in foreign cur-
rency of equity instruments are included in the cumulative change in fair value with-
in shareholders’ equity.
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- Interest from available-for-sale financial instruments is recorded in the income
statement using the effective interest rate method. Impairment in assets is record-
ed in the income statement when it is incurred.

- Financial instruments for which fair value cannot reliably be determined are shown
at cost. A decline in value is recorded in the income statement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY

- These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

- Financial assets held to maturity are recorded at cost (fair value) plus acquisition
costs, less provision for impairment in value. Premiums and discounts are system-
atically amortized in the income statement using the effective interest rate method.
Any impairment in value is recorded in the income statement.

IMPAIRMENT IN THE VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group reviews the values of the financial assets on the date of the balance sheet
in order to determine if there are any indications of impairment in their value individ-
ually or in the form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the recoverable val-
ue is estimated so as to determine the impairment loss. 
Impairment is determined as follows:
- Impairment in financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the ba-

sis of the present value of the cash flows discounted at the original interest rate.
- Impairment in the available-for-sale financial assets recorded at fair value repre-

sents the difference between the book value and the fair value.
- Impairment in the financial assets recorded at cost is determined on the basis of

the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at the market interest rate
of similar instruments. 

Impairment in value is recorded in the income statement. Any surplus in the subse-
quent period, resulting from previous declines in the fair value of financial assets, is
taken to the income statement, except for available-for-sale equity securities, since it
is recovered through the cumulative change in fair value. 

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

- Associated companies are those in which the Group has a significant influence over
the financial and operating policy decisions, and in which the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.

- Investments in associated companies are stated at cost.
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REALIZATION OF INCOME AND RECOGNITION OF EXPENSES

- Realization of income and recognition of expenses are recorded on an accrual ba-
sis, except for interest and commission on non-performing direct credit facilities,
which are not recognized as revenue but recorded as interest and commission in a
suspense account until they are received in cash.

- Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided.
- Dividends are recorded when realized.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial derivatives (e.g. currency forward contracts, forward rate agreements,
swaps and option contracts) are recorded in the balance sheet as a separate item.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

For hedge accounting purposes, financial derivatives are stated at fair value.

Hedges are classified as follows:
- Fair value hedge: hedging for exposure changes the fair value of the Group’s assets

and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective fair value hedge are met, the re-
sulting gain or loss from re-measuring the fair value hedging is recognized in the in-
come statement. When the conditions for an effective portfolio hedge are met, the
gain or loss resulting from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value, as
well as the change in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities portfolio, are
recorded in the income statement for the same period.

- Cash flow hedge: hedging for exposure changes the current and expected cash flows
of the Group’s assets and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective cash flow
hedge are met, the gain or loss of the hedging instruments is recognized in share-
holders’ equity, and such gain or loss is transferred to the income statement in the
period in which the hedge transaction has an impact on the income statement.

- Hedge for net investment in foreign entities: When the conditions of the hedge for
net investment in foreign entities are met, fair value is measured for the hedging in-
strument of the hedged net assets. In the case of an effective relationship, the ef-
fective portion of the loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized
in shareholders’ equity, while the ineffective portion is recognized in the income
statement. The effective portion is recorded in the income statement when the in-
vestment in foreign entities is sold.

- When the conditions for an effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting from
the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the income state-
ment of the same period.
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FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES FOR TRADING

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading, such as forward foreign currency con-
tracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements and foreign currency options,
is recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may
be. The change in their fair value is recognized in the income statement.

REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a future date contin-
ue to be recognized in the financial statements due to the continued control of those
assets. The related risks and benefits are transferred to the Group when incurred.
They also continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted accounting poli-
cies. Amounts received against these contracts are recorded within liabilities un-
der borrowed funds. The difference between the sale price and the repurchase price
is considered an interest expense, and is amortized over the contract period using
the effective interest rate method. When the transferee has the right to sell or re-
pledge the collateral, the securities sold subject to repurchase agreements are re-
classified in the financial statements as pledged assets.

- Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date
are not recognized in the financial statements because the Group has no control
over such assets, and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Group
when incurred. Payments related to these contracts are recorded under deposits
with banks or under credit facilities, depending on the nature of each case. The dif-
ference between the purchase price and resale price is recorded as interest rev-
enue, and is amortized over the period of the contract using the effective interest
rate method.

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

These are assets pledged as collateral with a third party, and where the transferee has
the right to sell or re-pledge the collateral. They are classified in the balance sheet as
a separate line item, and the accounting policy for such assets will follow its original
classification.

FORECLOSED ASSETS

These are assets that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Group, and are
shown under other assets at the acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower. As
of the balance sheet date, these assets are revalued individually at fair value. Any de-
cline in their market value is taken to the income statement, whereas an increase is
not recognized to the extent it does not exceed the previously recorded impairment.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- Goodwill represents the excess of an amount paid to acquire or purchase an invest-
ment in an associate or subsidiary on the date of the transaction over the fair value
of the net investment in that company. Goodwill resulting from an investment in an
affiliated company constitutes part of the investment in that company, and is
recorded at cost. The cost of goodwill is subsequently reduced by any decline in the
value of the investment. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in in-
tangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments
in associates.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of testing
the impairment of the value.

- The value of goodwill is tested on the date of each financial statement. The good-
will value is reduced when there is evidence that its value has declined or that the
recoverable value of the cash-generating unit(s) is lower than the book value. The
decline in value is recorded in the income statement as impairment loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

- Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.

- Financial assets and financial liabilities are translated at the average rates prevail-
ing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies and recorded at fair value are translated on the date when the
fair value was determined.

- Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the in-
come statement.

- Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities de-
nominated in foreign currency, such as securities, are recorded as part of the
change in the fair value.

FIXED ASSETS

- Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Such assets (ex-
cept for land) are depreciated according to the straight-line method over their esti-
mated useful lives, and in accordance with the prevailing rules and regulations in
the countries where the Group operates. When the carrying amounts of any of the
fixed assets exceed the recoverable values, the values of the assets are reduced
accordingly.

- The useful lives of the fixed assets are reviewed at the end of each year. Where the
expected useful life differs from what was previously determined, the change in es-
timate will be recorded as such in the subsequent year.
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation on the date of the bal-
ance sheet as a result of past events, and if the obligation is likely to be settled, and
if a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with
the prevailing rules and regulations in the countries in which the Group operates. Re-
quired provision for the year for the end-of-service indemnities is recorded in the in-
come statement. Payments to departing employees are taken to the income state-
ment or deducted from the provision amount.

INCOME TAX

- Income tax expenses represent both accrued and deferred taxes.
- Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Income sub-

ject to tax differs from income declared in the financial statements, because the
latter includes non-taxable revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year
but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses accepted by the tax author-
ities, and items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

- Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable according to the pre-
vailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where the Group operates.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary
timing differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount.

- Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the liability method in the balance
sheet, and according to the rates expected to be applied when it is anticipated that
the liability will be settled or when tax assets are recognized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed on the date of the balance sheet, and reduced if it is expected that no
benefit will arise from the deferred tax, partially or totally.

TREASURY SHARES

- Treasury shares appear at cost as a separate item in the shareholders’ equity, and
are deducted from total shareholders’ equity.

- Gain or loss from the sale of treasury shares is not included in the income state-
ment, but it is recognized in the issuing premium. 

FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS

- Fiduciary deposits result from the holding or placing of assets on behalf of cus-
tomers. These assets and the income arising from them are excluded from these fi-
nancial statements of the Group. The commission and fees for managing these ac-
counts are recognized in the income statement.
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- Provision for a decline in fair value is created in case the guaranteed capital portfo-
lio becomes lower than the guaranteed capital.

OFFSETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in
the balance sheet only when there is a legal right to set off the recognized amounts,
and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and set-
tle the liabilities simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances
with banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three months, less re-
stricted funds and balances owing to banks and financial institutions that are matur-
ing within three months.

SEGMENT REPORTING 

- A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing prod-
ucts or services that are subject to risks and returns which are different from those
of other business segments. 

- A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a par-
ticular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns different from
those of segments operating in other economic environments.

4. USING ESTIMATES 
Preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires estimations and judg-
ments in applying accounting policies relating to some of the items listed in those
statements. Examples of such items include an estimation of the provision for impair-
ment of non-performing direct credit facilities, the intention of management to hold
the financial investment until maturity, and an estimation of the productive life of as-
sets and impairment of their value. Management also uses estimation and judgment
for some matters that are uncertain on the date of the balance sheet and that may
cause significant risks and may require material adjustments to the balances of the
assets and liabilities stated in the financial statements of the following year. This 
includes estimations of the various provisions and contingent liabilities.
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5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Cash 302 215 229 700
Balances with central banks: 
- Current accounts 343 219 280 531
- Time and notice 1 028 479 464 044
- Mandatory cash reserve 1 181 892 860 022
- Certificates of deposit 1 581 790 1 070 480

Total 4 437 595 2 904 777

Balances maturing after three months amounted to USD 796.0 million as at 31
December 2007, compared to USD 140.0 million as at 31 December 2006.

6. BALANCES WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Current accounts 327 284 1 234 475
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 3 817 335 4 304 253
Certificates of deposit 391 782 9 546
Total 4 536 401 5 548 274

7. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 184 455 798 367
Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 182 234 245 515
Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before 12 months 96 718 43 816
Time deposits maturing after one year 15 030 5 217
Total 478 437 1 092 915
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - HELD FOR TRADING
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 556 886 1 310 173
Government bonds 15 913 32 655
Corporate bonds 857 965 618 920
Shares 21 735 46 849
Total 1 452 499 2 008 597

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - DESIGNATED
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Government bonds 35 699 - - -
Corporate bonds 198 720 - - -
Total 234 419 - - -

10. DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Discounted bills * 766 995 800 380
Overdrafts 3 218 069 3 231 780
Loans* 16 021 391 10 675 423
Capital lease 31 268 32 275
Credit cards 55 366 38 977
Total 20 093 089 14 778 835
Less: Interest and commission in suspense 155 706 176 436

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 454 230 437 110
Total 609 936 613 546
Direct credit facilities 19 483 153 14 165 289

* Net, after deducting interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to 
USD 29.2 million in 2007, compared to USD 24.8 million in 2006.

Direct credit facilities granted to a government and guaranteed by the government as
at 31 December 2007 amounted to USD 1,309.4 million, or 6.5% of total direct credit
facilities, compared to USD 601.6 million, or 4.1% of total direct credit facilities at the
end of 2006.
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Non-performing direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2007 amounted to USD
609.5 million, or 3.0% of total direct credit facilities, compared to USD 637.0 million,
or 4.3% of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2006.

Non-performing direct credit facilities, after deducting interest and commission in 
suspense, as at 31 December 2007, amounted to USD 453.8 million, or 2.3% of total
direct credit facilities, compared to USD 460.6 million, or 3.2% of total direct credit
facilities at the end of 2006.

MOVEMENTS OF INTEREST IN SUSPENSE: 

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 176 436 199 270
Interest in suspense during the year 30 086 29 868
Interest in suspense written off (37 627) (42 588)
Recoveries (15 171) (13 046)
Translation adjustments 1 982 2 932
Balance at the end of the year 155 706 176 436

MOVEMENTS IN THE PROVISION FOR THE IMPAIRMENT OF THE DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES: 

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 437 110 450 916
Addition: Charged to income 81 684 82 764
Direct credit facilities written off (18 405) (54 001)
Recoveries (56 456) (56 995)
Reclassification (2 894) 0
Translation adjustments 13 191 14 426
Balance at the end of the year 454 230 437 110

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 761 211 286 320
Government bonds 390 048 286 764
Corporate bonds 1 559 186 1 339 196
Shares 354 513 261 143
Total 3 064 958 2 173 423
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BONDS ACCORDING TO INTEREST: 
Fixed interest bonds 1 078 052 959 676
Variable interest bonds 1 632 393 952 604
Total 2 710 445 1 912 280

FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCORDING TO MARKET QUOTATION: 
Financial assets quoted in the market 2 262 351 1 886 310
Financial assets not quoted in the market 802 607 287 113
Total 3 064 958 2 173 423

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 1 318 929 1 428 526
Government bonds 252 952 301 792
Corporate bonds 475 376 326 848
Less: provision for the impairment - - - 4 358
Total 2 047 257 2 052 808

BONDS ACCORDING TO INTEREST: 
Fixed interest bonds 1 372 262 1 638 201
Variable interest bonds 674 995 414 607
Total 2 047 257 2 052 808

FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCORDING TO MARKET QUOTATION: 
Financial assets quoted in the market 529 717 1 025 131
Financial assets not quoted in the market 1 517 540 1 027 677
Total 2 047 257 2 052 808

MOVEMENTS IN THE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD

TO MATURITY WERE AS FOLLOWS:

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 4 358 4 174
Addition: charged to income 135 6 429
Written off (4 493) (6 168)
Translation adjustments - - - (77)
Balance at the end of the year - - - 4 358
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13. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
2007 2006

Ownership Historical Ownership Historical Country Activity
cost cost

% (USD '000) % (USD '000)
Turkland Bank A.S. 50.00 117 058 - - - - - - Turkey Banking 
Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. 49.00 101 773 49.00 81 940 Oman Banking
Arab Bank - Syria - - - - - - 49.00 14 694 Syria Banking 
Arab National Bank 40.00 1 178 046 40.00 898 875 Saudi Arabia Banking 
Arabia Insurance Co. 36.79 36 312 36.79 36 996 Lebanon Insurance 
Commercial Building Co. 33.09 316 32.77 282 Lebanon Real estate 
Other 25 008 14 603
Total 1 458 513 1 047 390

MOVEMENTS OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES: 

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 1 047 390 825 401
Purchase of investments in associated companies 198 167 - - -
Bank’s share of income (loss) of the year 266 136 260 046
Bank’s share of income tax (51 190) (54 340)
Dividends received (32 429) (30 678)
Change in owner equity 30 439 46 961
Balance at the end of the year 1 458 513 1 047 390
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14. FIXED ASSETS
(USD '000) 2007

Land Buildings Furniture, Computer Motor Lease- Total
fixtures and and com- vehicles hold
equipment munication improve-

equipment ments

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at the beginning of the year 42 281 277 615 130 218 52 681 14 228 37 849 554 872
Additions 9 581 103 548 23 954 11 867 2 340 24 823 176 113
Disposals (1 533) (56 588) (5 932) (4 230) (1 525) (7 535) (77 343)
Translation adjustments 767 13 878 2 200 567 283 2 739 20 434
Balance at the end of the year 51 096 338 453 150 440 60 885 15 326 57 876 674 076

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 49 566 82 531 40 891 8 512 23 873 205 373
Depreciation for the year - - - 11 444 10 713 9 131 2 014 8 110 41 412
Disposals - - - (13 954) (5 217) (4 227) (1 362) (7 243) (32 003)
Translation adjustments - - - 3 839 1 533 384 215 1 813 7 784
Balance at the end of the year - - - 50 895 89 560 46 179 9 379 26 553 222 566
Net book value 51 096 287 558 60 880 14 706 5 947 31 323 451 510

2006

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at the beginning of the year 39 810 200 790 127 602 60 883 11 587 39 180 479 852
Additions 4 681 77 166 20 080 6 418 4 137 13 372 125 854
Disposals (2 757) (4 661) (20 111) (14 977) (1 687) (15 010) (59 203)
Translation adjustments 547 4 320 2 647 357 191 307 8 369
Balance at the end of the year 42 281 277 615 130 218 52 681 14 228 37 849 554 872

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 44 914 85 096 47 157 8 023 22 305 207 495
Depreciation for the year - - - 8 169 18 117 5 561 1 367 10 854 44 068
Disposals - - - (3 687) (19 678) (11 566) (905) (9 235) (45 071)
Translation adjustments - - - 170 (1 004) (261) 27 (51) (1 119)
Balance at the end of the year - - - 49 566 82 531 40 891 8 512 23 873 205 373
Net book value 42 281 228 049 47 687 11 790 5 716 13 976 349 499
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15. OTHER ASSETS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Accrued interest receivable 281 817 406 758
Expenses paid in advance 39 816 42 288
Foreclosed assets 47 905 38 508
Items in transit - - - 194 634
Miscellaneous assets 255 125 403 572
Total 624 663 1 085 760

MOVEMENTS OF FORECLOSED ASSETS IN 2007 AND 2006:

2007 2006

Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 16 383 22 125 38 508 16 801 21 502 38 303
Additions 767 12 061 12 828 369 3 125 3 494
Disposals (489) (1 288) (1 777) (767) (2 498) (3 265)
Impairment loss (1 026) (622) (1 648) - - - - - - - - -
Translation adjustments (6) - - - (6) (20) (4) (24)
Balance at the end of the year 15 629 32 276 47 905 16 383 22 125 38 508

16. DEFERRED TAX, ASSETS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at Added Released Balance Deferred Deferred
the beginning amounts amounts at the end tax tax

of the year of the year
Items attributable to deferred tax assets:
Provision for impairment -

direct credit facilities 50 070 2 331 (40 306) 12 095 3 070 10 154
End-of-service indemnity 28 786 2 892 (783) 30 895 9 958 9 154
Interest in suspense 1 344 2 170 (568) 2 946 773 499
Provisions and other 6 652 10 928 (4 584) 12 996 4 329 2 078
Total 86 852 18 321 (46 241) 58 932 18 130 21 885

MOVEMENTS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS IN 2007 AND 2006:
2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 21 885 18 202
Additions during the year 5 234 9 918
Deductions during the year (8 989) (6 235)
Balance at the end of the year 18130 21 885
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Deferred tax results from the time differences of provisions which were not deducted
for tax purposes in previous years. This was calculated according to the regulations
where the Group operates. The Group will benefit from these amounts in the future.

17. BANKS’ AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS’ DEPOSITS
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Current and demand 1 081 223 960 329
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 3 767 065 2 309 498
Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 227 552 234 608
Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 9 691 47 119
Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before one year - - - 13 001
Time deposits maturing after one year - - - 3 476
Total 5 085 531 3 568 031

18. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Current and demand 5 517 314 4 971 016
Savings 1 499 077 1 346 590
Time and notice 15 255 413 13 057 419
Certificates of deposit 394 542 275 549
Total    22 666 346 19 650 574

Public sector deposits amounted to USD 1,785.9 million, or 7.9% of total customer
deposits at the end of 2007, compared to USD 1,284.1 million, or 6.5% of total cus-
tomer deposits at the end of 2006.

Non-bearing interest deposits amounted to USD 3,860.5 million, or 17.0% of total
customer deposits at the end of 2007, compared to USD 2,228.6 million, or 11.3% of
total customer deposits at the end of 2006.

Blocked deposits amounted to USD 162.8 million, or 0.7% of total customer deposits
at the end of 2007, compared to USD 3.0 million, or 0.0% of total customer deposits
at the end of 2006.

Dormant deposits amounted to USD 150.3 million, or 0.7% of total customer deposits
at the end of 2007, compared to USD 75.5 million, or 0.4% of total customer deposits
at the end of 2006.
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19. CASH MARGIN
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Against direct credit facilities 1 621 848 1 238 483
Against indirect credit facilities 382 108 786 369
Cash margin, financial derivatives 15 818 23 144
Cash margin, other 36 151 67 751
Total 2 055 925 2 115 747

20. BORROWED FUNDS
(USD '000) 2007 2006

From banks and financial institutions * 500 000 - - -
Total 500 000 - - -

* In 2007 the Bank issued a USD 500 million syndicated term loan with a tenure of five years
and paying LIBOR + 25 basis points.

21. OTHER PROVISIONS 
(USD '000) 2007

Balance at Addition Utilized Returned Translation Balance at
the beginning during during to income adjustments the end of

of the year the year the year the year
End-of-service indemnity 123 627 11 034 (29 181) (230) 1 826 107 076
Self-insurance 1 714 - - - (155) - - - 10 1 569
Legal cases 7 184 - - - (1 570) (963) 27 4 678
Contingencies 35 904 7 953 (2 956) (2 651) 1 932 40 182
Total 168 429 18 987 (33 862) (3 844) 3 795 153 505

2006
End-of-service indemnity 101 719 23 243 (2 059) (409) 1 133 123 627
Self-insurance 1 696 - - - - - - - - - 18 1 714
Contingencies 39 710 4 533 (3 665) (527) 3 037 43 088
Total 143 125 27 776 (5 724) (936) 4 188 168 429

22. PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 189 232 154 626
Income tax paid 189 175 165 434
Income tax due (177 571) (130 828)
Balance at the end of the year 200 836 189 232
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PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX IN THE INCOME STATEMENT COMPRISES THE FOLLOWING: 
Income tax provision for the year 180 488 164 791
Income tax for previous years 5 657 643
Deferred tax 3 030 - - -
Total 189 175 165 434

23. OTHER LIABILITIES 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Accrued interest payable 164 583 262 099
Remittances in transit 125 199 88 996
Interest and commission received in advance 120 524 77 169
Due expenses 62 494 52 624
Items in transit 11 414 - - -
Miscellaneous liabilities 256 390 322 020
Total 740 604 802 908

24. DEFERRED TAX, LIABILITIES
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at Added Released Balance at Deferred Deferred
the beginning amounts amounts at the end tax tax

of the year of the year
Items attributable to deferred tax liabilities:
Cumulative change in fair value 61 496 39 104 (2 738) 97 862 26 125 22 120
Retained earnings - - - 5 426 - - - 5 426 818 - - -
Other - - - 2 207 - - - 2 207 441 - - -
Total 61 496 46 737 (2 738) 105 495 27 384 22 120

MOVEMENTS OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES DURING THE YEAR:

2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 22 120 25 379
Additions during the year 10 835 550
Deductions during the year (5 571) (3 809)
Balance at the end of the year 27 384 22 120

25. CAPITAL
A. The subscribed and paid-up capital amounted to USD 525.0 million as at 31 De-

cember 2007 and 2006.
B. The issuing premium amounted to USD 1,475.5 million as at 31 December 2007,

compared to USD 1,313.3 million as at 31 December 2006.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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C. The unsubscribed shares amounted to USD 0.4 million as at 31 December 2007,
compared to USD 48.5 million as at 31 December 2006, and were considered
treasury shares to be deducted from the total shareholders’ equity. Treasury
shares give no voting power and no dividend rights.

26.VOLUNTARY RESERVE
The voluntary reserve amounted to USD 729.0 million as at 31 December 2007, com-
pared to USD 594.8 million as at 31 December 2006. This reserve is used for pur-
poses determined by the Board of Directors and the General Assembly. They have
the right to distribute it in whole or any part thereof to shareholders.

27. GENERAL BANKING RISK RESERVE
This reserve is available for use in accordance with certain procedures, including the
approval of the banking authorities or the approval of the General Assembly, only
when the amount of that reserve exceeds the minimum amount set or required by the
instructions of the relevant banking authorities.

28. TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS
Translation adjustments represent the differences resulting from translating the for-
eign currencies that constitute the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and
branches, when consolidating the financial statements of the Group.

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 89 742 43 795
Addition (deduction) during the year 83 453 45 947
Balance at the end of the year 173 195 89 742

29. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE *

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Shares Bonds Cash flow Total Total
hedge

Balance at the beginning of the year 115 587 (14 448) - - - 101 139 216 049
Change in fair value during the year (1 632) 23 930 - - - 22 298 (119 393)
(Gain) loss realized, reported to income statement (6 073) (2 257) - - - (8 330) 7 815
Decline reported to income statement 2 879 - - - - - - 2 879 (3 827)
Translation adjustments 29 1 - - - 30 495
Balance at the end of the year 110 790 7 226 - - - 118 016 101 139

* Net, after deducting the deferred tax liabilities, which amounted to USD 26.1 million in 2007,
compared to USD 22.1 million in the previous year.
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30. RETAINED EARNINGS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 90 421 86 710
Plus: income for the year 774 963 624 560
Total 865 384 711 270
Less:
- Allocated to reserves 571 703 481 407
- Proposed dividends 166 667 139 442
Balance at the end of the year * 127 014 90 421

* This item includes amounts resulting from adoption of certain International Financial Report-
ing Standards, and therefore it is only disposed of in specific situations. As at 31 December
2007, the amount that could be disposed of was USD 103.8 million.

31. MINORITY INTEREST
This item represents the share of the other shareholders in the results and net assets
of the subsidiary companies.

32. INTEREST INCOME
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Direct credit facilities:
- Discounted bills 71 878 54 994
- Overdrafts 268 777 247 329
- Loans 896 026 621 769
- Capital lease 417 118
- Credit cards 8 210 5 138
Central banks 174 000 93 471
Banks and financial institutions 396 244 393 607
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 199 703 321 008
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated 13 090 - - -
Financial assets - available for sale 115 857 86 802
Financial assets - held to maturity 76 672 82 408
Total 2 220 874 1 906 644

ARAB BANK GROUP
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33. INTEREST EXPENSE
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Banks and financial institutions 322 723 463 480
Customer deposits: 
- Current and demand 17 716 22 333
- Savings 35 547 33 155
- Time and notice 697 573 506 845
- Certificates of deposit 48 036 12 958
Cash margin 111 483 72 278
Borrowed funds 12 711 - - -
Deposit insurance fees 8 308 6 971
Total 1 254 097 1 118 020

34. COMMISSION INCOME, NET
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Commission income:
- From direct credit facilities 69 285 62 158
- From indirect credit facilities 92 572 83 380
- From fiduciary deposits 7 718 7 283
- Other 72 887 39 315
Less: commission expense 14 922 10 978
Commission, net 227 540 181 158

35. GAINS (LOSSES) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD FOR TRADING
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Realized Unrealized Dividends Total Total
gains (losses) gains (losses)

Treasury bills and bonds 2 224 (8 085) - - - (5 861) 1 843
Shares 2 290 464 148 2 902 278
Total 4 514 (7 621) 148 (2 959) 2 121
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36. GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - DESIGNATED
(USD '000) 2007

Realized Unrealized Dividends Total
gains (losses) gains (losses)

Treasury bills and bonds 151 4 815 - - - 4 966

37. GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Gain from sale of financial assets 13 833 12 905
Dividends 6 871 13 161
Less: decline in the value of the securities 2 921 4 973
Total 17 783 21 093

38. OTHER REVENUE
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Revenue from services 22 249 18 553
Safe box rent 4 755 4 581
Gain from derivatives (5 375) 2 266
Miscellaneous revenue 46 278 47 381
Total 67 907 72 781

39. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Salaries 238 014 181 977
Social security 21 300 15 021
Savings fund 4 453 4 337
Indemnity compensation 20 783 12 360
Medical 7 177 5 876
Training 3 134 2 074
Allowances (housing and transportation) 27 512 26 912
Other employee expenses 15 930 11 285
Total 338 303 259 842

ARAB BANK GROUP
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40. OTHER EXPENSES 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Occupancy 47 397 50 873
Office 78 364 61 984
Services 66 292 63 737
Fees 10 763 8 453
Information technology 28 979 27 865
Other expenses 56 679 48 142
Total 288 474 261 054

41. LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Letters of credit 2 030 371 1 945 905
Acceptances 435 950 615 727
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 811 369 1 040 507
- Performance guarantees 3 150 995 1 172 705
- Other guarantees 5 947 187 5 232 112
Unused credit facilities 4 056 091 4 162 100
Total 16 431 963 14 169 056

42. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Forward rate agreements - - - 1 619 495
Interest rate swaps 4 410 406 10 137 843
Currency forward contracts 7 621 994 4 998 381
Total 12 032 400 16 755 719
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DETAILS OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES:

(USD '000) 2007

Notional amounts by maturity 
Positive Negative Total Within From  From More

fair fair notional 3 3 to 12 1 year to than
value value amount months months 3 years 3 years

Interest rate swaps 30 359 30 577 4 121 425 1 777 338 722 280 477 004 1 144 803
Currency forward contracts 10 878 8 188 6 965 030 4 193 275 2 472 920 97 610 201 225
Derivatives held for trading 41 237 38 765 11 086 455 5 970 613 3 195 200 574 614 1 346 028
Interest rate swaps 4 532 7 116 288 758 26 100 42 111 73 394 147 153
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives held for fair
value hedge 4 532 7 116 288 758 26 100 42 111 73 394 147 153

Interest rate swaps - - - - - - 223 - - - 223 - - - - - -
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - 656 964 243 068 208 122 205 774 - - -
Derivatives held for cash 
flow hedge - - - - - - 657 187 243 068 208 345 205 774 - - -

Total 45 769 45 881 12 032 400 6 239 781 3 445 656 853 782 1 493 181

2006
Derivatives held for trading 10 153 57 154 14 285 508 7 936 694 5 918 033 97 549 333 232
Derivatives held for fair
value hedge 4 393 6 652 1 438 001 625 473 660 507 80 331 71 690

Derivatives held for cash 
flow hedge 240 - - - 1 032 210 607 820 197 176 24 095 203 119

Total 14 786 63 806 16 755 719 9 169 987 6 775 716 201 975 608 041

43. GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS AND REVENUE
The Group operates worldwide through its branches in Jordan and abroad. The table
below shows the geographical distribution of assets and revenue:

(USD '000) 2007

Assets Revenue
Inside Jordan 6 526 598 270 668
Outside Jordan 31 806 706 1 395 691
Total 38 333 304 1 666 359

2006
Inside Jordan 6 457 833 209 639
Outside Jordan 26 007 570 1 201 338
Total 32 465 403 1 410 977

ARAB BANK GROUP
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44. BUSINESS LINES
Business lines are segmented as follows:
(USD '000) 2007

Corporate Treasury Private Retail Other Total 
banking banking banking 

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks  
and financial institutions 9 150 218 - - - - - - 302 215 - - - 9 452 433

Financial investments 1 853 477 4 569 408 - - - - - - 1 834 761 8 257 646
Direct credit facilities 16 443 806 - - - 457 752 2 581 595 - - - 19 483 153

LIABILITIES

Banks’ and financial institutions’
deposits - - - 5 085 531 - - - - - - - - - 5 085 531

Customer deposits 9 696 465 - - - 4 468 420 8 501 461 - - - 22 666 346
Cash margin 1 856 230 - - - 53 443 146 252 - - - 2 055 925

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 318 501 186 455 43 046 269 722 149 053 966 777
Commission income, net 150 319 (1 508) 23 546 51 812 3 371 227 540
Other revenue 35 461 50 662 729 32 041 353 149 472 042
Net revenue 504 281 235 609 67 321 353 575 505 573 1 666 359

2006

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 
and financial institutions - - - 9 316 266 - - - 229 700 - - - 9 545 966

Financial investments 1 120 851 4 805 985 - - - - - - 1 355 382 7 282 218
Direct credit facilities 12 341 415 - - - 404 680 1 419 194 - - - 14 165 289

LIABILITIES

Banks’ and financial institutions’
deposits - - - 3 568 031 - - - - - - - - - 3 568 031

Customer deposits 7 637 080 - - - 3 654 277 8 359 217 - - - 19 650 574
Cash margin 1 860 671 - - - 96 719 158 357 - - - 2 115 747

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 291 264 37 096 54 786 300 662 104 816 788 624
Commission income, net 117 695 (357) 13 472 49 231 1 117 181 158
Other revenue 24 793 103 764 2 569 14 487 295 582 441 195
Net revenue 433 752 140 503 70 827 364 380 401 515 1 410 977
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45. CREDIT RISK
A. MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK AFTER PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

AND BEFORE COLLATERAL HELD OR OTHER CREDIT RISK MITIGATION

(USD '000) 2007 2006

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES RELATING TO ON-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS:
Balances with central banks 4 135 380 2 675 077
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 5 014 838 6 641 189
Financial assets - held for trading 1 430 764 1 961 748
Financial assets - designated 234 419 - - -
Direct credit facilities 19 483 153 14 165 289
Financial assets - available for sale 2 710 445 1 912 280
Financial assets - held to maturity 2 047 257 2 052 808
Other assets 670 432 1 100 546

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES RELATING TO OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS:
Letters of credit 2 030 371 1 945 905
Acceptances 435 950 615 727
Letters of guarantee 9 909 551 7 445 324
Unused credit facilities 4 056 091 4 162 100
Total 52 158 651 44 677 993

B. CREDIT QUALITY - DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES

The Group regularly analyses credit exposures using an internal credit rating system.
The table below shows the amounts of direct credit facilities for each internal credit
grade, and the relationship between internal and external ratings.

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Description Internal External rating
rating equivalent

Investment grade From 1 to 3 AAA to A- 9 318 278 7 248 427
Standard monitoring From 4 to 6 BBB+ to B- 9 986 228 6 758 506
Special monitoring (watch list) From 7 CCC+ to C 179 112 134 889
Non-performing loans From 8 to 10 D 609 471 637 013
Total 20 093 089 14 778 835

ARAB BANK GROUP
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C. CREDIT QUALITY - DEBT SECURITIES

The table below analyses the credit exposures of the debt securities using the exter-
nal credit ratings.

(USD '000) 2007

External rating Financial Financial Financial Financial Total
assets - held assets - assets - assets - held

for trading designated available to maturity
for sale

Private sector:
- AAA to A- 857 550 142 780 1 266 986 397 561 2 664 877
- BBB+ to B- - - - 35 718 219 359 25 342 280 419
- Below B- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Unrated 415 20 222 72 841 52 473 145 951
Governments and public sector 572 799 35 699 1 151 259 1 571 881 3 331 638
Total 1 430 764 234 419 2 710 445 2 047 257 6 422 885

2006
Private sector:
- AAA to A- 581 885 - - - 1 031 089 111 927 1 724 901
- BBB+ to B- 15 645 - - - 216 387 2 999 235 031
- Below B- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Unrated 21 390 - - - 91 720 207 564 320 674
Governments and public sector 1 342 828 - - - 573 084 1 730 318 3 646 230
Total 1 961 748 - - - 1 912 280 2 052 808 5 926 836

D. PAST DUE DEBTS

The table below shows the financial assets that are past due.

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Watch list debts (past due 90 days) 179 112 134 889
Non-performing debts:
- Substandard (past due 90 - 180 days) 104 006 97 824
- Doubtful (past due 180 - 360 days) 245 024 160 544
- Problematic (past due more than 360 days) 260 441 378 645
Total 788 583 771 902
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The fair value of the collateral received against non-performing debts amounted to
USD 160.3 million as at 31 December 2007, compared to USD 119.5 million at 31
December 2006.

E. CREDIT EXPOSURE CATEGORIZED BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION

(USD '000) 2007

Jordan Other Arab Asia* Europe America Rest Total 
countries of the  

world
Balances with central banks 1 335 011 2 754 537 7 702 38 130 - - - - - - 4 135 380
Balances and deposits with 
banks and financial institutions 55 181 1 478 918 59 160 3 369 736 50 654 1 189 5 014 838

Financial assets - held for trading 415 572 800 - - - 857 550 - - - - - - 1 430 765
Financial assets - designated - - - - - - 159 230 75 189 - - - - - - 234 419
Direct credit facilities 3 254 554 11 287 586 1 148 179 3 788 834 4 000 - - - 19 483 153
Financial assets - available for sale 98 145 1 790 014 134 441 275 267 412 579 - - - 2 710 446
Financial assets - held to maturity 913 318 642 329 112 626 373 985 5 000 - - - 2 047 258
Other assets 83 691 271 323 21 572 287 002 6 831 13 670 432
Total as at 31 December 2007 5 740 315 18 797 507 1 642 910 9 065 693 479 064 1 202 35 726 691
Total as at 31 December 2006 6 049 149 16 349 252 1 306 257 6 331 178 472 204 897 30 508 937
*Excluding Arab countries 

46. MARKET RISK
Assuming the market prices as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 changed by 5%, the im-
pact on the income statement and equity will be as follows:

(USD '000) 2007 2006

Income Shareholders’ Total Income Shareholders’ Total
statement equity statement equity

Interest rate 33 770 5 899 39 669 26 349 5 251 31 600
Foreign exchange rate 3 705 21 581 25 286 8 782 19 466 28 248
Share prices 869 14 181 15 050 1 874 10 446 12 320
Total 38 344 41 661 80 005 37 005 35 163 72 168
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47.  INTEREST RATE RISK
A) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity date, whichever occurs first.) 

Within After 3 months
3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 1 814 303 398 450
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4 209 117 184 455
Financial assets  - held for trading 546 449 510 880
Financial assets  - designated 79 920 113 599
Direct credit facilities 9 067 479 3 190 133
Financial assets - available for sale 1 714 536 230 193
Financial assets - held to maturity 1 038 516 122 903
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - -
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 18 470 320 4 750 613

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 3 767 065 227 552
Customer deposits 16 857 272 909 254
Cash margin 956 830 336 633
Borrowed funds 500 000 - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - - -
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 22 081 167 1 473 439
Gap (3 610 847) 3 277 174

Accumulated gap (3 610 847) (333 673)

ARAB BANK GROUP
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(USD '000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective
and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate
12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 302 215 302 215 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 1 181 892 1 181 892 - - -

267 515 30 001 100 000 343 219 2 953 488 5.89
278 952 15 030 - - - 327 284 5 014 838 7.90
373 435 - - - - - - 21 735 1 452 499 13.96

25 576 15 324 - - - - - - 234 419 5.58
3 194 753 1 043 271 2 987 517 - - - 19 483 153 6.39

127 719 416 097 221 900 354 513 3 064 958 4.27
245 540 452 320 187 978 - - - 2 047 257 3.75

- - - - - - - - - 1 458 513 1 458 513 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 451 510 451 510 - - --
- - - - - - - - - 670 432 670 432 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 18 130 18 130 - - -

4 513 490 1 972 043 3 497 395 5 129 443 38 333 304 - - -

9 691 - - - - - - 1 081 223 5 085 531 6.35
641 333 331 085 66 909 3 860 493 22 666 346 3.52
337 121 110 089 315 252 - - - 2 055 925 5.42

- - - - - - - - - - - - 500 000 5.11
- - - - - - - - - 153 505 153 505 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 200 836 200 836 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 786 485 786 485 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 27 384 27 384 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 6 857 292 6 857 292 - - -

988 145 441 174 382 161 12 967 218 38 333 304 - - -
3 525 345 1 530 869 3 115 234 (7 837 775) - - - - - -

3 191 672 4 722 541 7 837 775 - - - - - - - - -
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B) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity date, whichever occurs first.) 

Within After 3 months
3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 1 394 523 95 001
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 4 313 905 798 367
Financial assets  - held for trading 1 387 100 435 030
Direct credit facilities 8 094 234 2 085 288
Financial assets - available for sale 1 125 840 168 601
Financial assets - held to maturity 646 997 132 143
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - -
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 16 962 599 3 714 430

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 2 421 406 234 608
Customer deposits 14 870 741 495 359
Cash margin 1 208 965 311 462
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - - -
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 18 501 112 1 041 429
Gap (1 538 513) 2 673 001

Accumulated gap (1 538 513) 1 134 488
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(USD '000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective
and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate
12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 229 700 229 700 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 860 022 860 022 - - -
- - - 45 000 - - - 280 531 1 815 055 5.15  

289 331 5 118 99 1 234 369 6 641 189 5.93  
139 603 15 - - - 46 849 2 008 597 16.36  

2 594 906 475 718 915 143 - - - 14 165 289 6.56  
152 613 197 474 267 752 261 143 2 173 423 4.54
94 110 642 846 536 712 - - - 2 052 808 4.01

- - - - - - - - - 1 047 390 1 047 390 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 349 499 349 499 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 1 100 546 1 100 546 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 21 885 21 885 - - -

3 270 563 1 366 171 1 719 706 5 431 934 32 465 403 - - -

60 120 3 476 - - - 848 421 3 568 031 12.99
395 582 452 758 1 497 3 434 637 19 650 574 2.93
387 579 71 054 136 687 - - - 2 115 747 3.42

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - 168 429 168 429 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 189 232 189 232 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 866 714 866 714 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 22 120 22 120 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 5 884 556 5 884 556 - - -

843 281 527 288 138 184 11 414 109 32 465 403 - - -
2 427 282 838 883 1 581 522 (5 982 175) - - - - - -

3 561 770 4 400 653 5 982 175 - - - - - - - - -
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48. LIQUIDITY RISK
A) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

Within After 1 month
1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 1 261 635 552 668
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 2 866 040 1 343 077
Financial assets  - held for trading 184 972 361 477
Financial assets  - designated 50 477 29 443
Direct credit facilities 4 799 527 4 267 952
Financial assets - available for sale 543 564 1 170 972
Financial assets - held to maturity 790 563 247 953
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets 46 970 93 940
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 10 543 748 8 067 482

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 3 008 416 758 649
Customer deposits 9 798 578 3 902 796
Cash margin 506 462 450 368
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities 27 431 54 862
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 13 340 887 5 166 675
Gap (2 797 139) 2 900 807

Accumulated gap (2 797 139) 103 668
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(USD '000) 

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After 36 Not tied to Total
and before and before and before months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity  

- - - - - - - - - - - - 302 215 302 215
- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 181 892 1 181 892

398 450 267 515 30 001 100 000 343 219 2 953 488
184 455 278 952 15 030 - - - 327 284 5 014 838
510 880 373 435 - - - - - - 21 735 1 452 499
113 599 25 576 15 324 - - - - - - 234 419

3 190 133 3 194 753 1 043 271 2 987 517 - - - 19 483 153
230 193 127 719 416 097 221 900 354 513 3 064 958
122 903 245 540 452 320 187 978 - - - 2 047 257

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 458 513 1 458 513
- - - - - - - - - - - - 451 510 451 510

140 910 - - - - - - - - - 388 612 670 432
- - - - - - - - - - - - 18 130 18 130

4 891 523 4 513 490 1 972 043 3 497 395 4 847 623 38 333 304

227 552 9 691 - - - - - - 1 081 223 5 085 531
909 254 641333 331 085 66 909 7 016 391 22 666 346
336 633 337 121 110 089 315 252 - - - 2 055 925

- - - - - - - - - 500 000 - - - 500 000
- - - - - - - - - - - - 153 505 153 505
- - - - - - - - - - - - 200 836 200 836

82 293 - - - - - - - - - 621 899 786 485
- - - - - - - - - - - - 27 384 27 384
- - - - - - - - - - - - 6 857 292 6 857 292

1 555 732 988 145 441 174 882 161 15 958 530 38 333 304
3 335 791 3 525 345 1 530 869 2 615 234 (11 110 907) - - -

3 439 459 6 964 804 8 495 673 11 110 907 - - - - - -
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B) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

Within After 1 month
1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 136 952 1 257 571
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 149 179 1 164 726
Financial assets  - held for trading 1 240 946 146 154
Direct credit facilities 5 401 721 2 692 513
Financial assets - available for sale 293 567 832 273
Financial assets - held to maturity 457 895 189 102
Investments in associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets 67 793 135 586
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 10 748 053 6 417 925

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 2 189 388 232 018
Customer deposits 9 801 068 2 186 704
Cash margin 806 808 402 157
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities 43 683 87 366
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 12 840 947 2 908 245
Gap (2 092 894) 3 509 680

Accumulated gap (2 092 894) 1 416 786

ARAB BANK GROUP
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(USD '000) 

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After 36 Not tied to Total
and before and before and before months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity  

- - - - - - - - - - - - 229 700 229 700
- - - - - - - - - - - - 860 022 860 022

95 001 - - - 45 000 - - - 280 531 1 815 055
798 367 289 331 5 118 99 1 234 369 6 641 189
435 030 139 603 15 - - - 46 849 2 008 597

2 085 288 2 594 906 475 718 915 143 - - - 14 165 289
168 601 152 613 197 474 267 752 261 143 2 173 423
132 143 94 110 642 846 536 712 - - - 2 052 808

- - - - - - - - - - - - 1 047 390 1 047 390
- - - - - - - - - - - - 349 499 349 499

203 379 - - - - - - - - - 693 788 1 100 546
- - - - - - - - - - - - 21 885 21 885

3 917 809 3 270 563 1 366 171 1 719 706 5 025 176 32 465 403

234 608 60 120 3 476 - - - 848 421 3 568 031
495 359 395 582 452 758 1 497 6 317 606 19 650 574
311 462 387 579 71 054 136 687 - - - 2 115 747

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - 168 429 168 429
- - - - - - - - - - - - 189 232 189 232

131 049 - - - - - - - - - 604 616 866 714
- - - - - - - - - - - - 22 120 22 120
- - - - - - - - - - - - 5 884 556 5 884 556

1 172 478 843 281 527 288 138 184 14 034 980 32 465 403
2 745 331 2 427 282 838 883 1 581 522 (9 009 804) - - -

4 162 117 6 589 399 7 428 282 9 009 804 - - - - - -

ARAB BANK GROUP
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49. NET FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITIONS 
2007 2006

Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent
in (USD '000) in (USD '000)

USD (66 322) (66 322) (102 951) (102 951)
GBP 655 1 308 41 118 80 494
EUR 23 492 34 587 73 216 96 077
JPY 1 144 392 10 221 1 585 469 13 350
Other currencies * - - - 46 506 - - - 29 634
Total - - - 26 300 - - - 116 604

*Various foreign currencies translated to US dollars

50. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 4 437 595 4 474 653 2 904 777 2 906 862
Balances and deposits with banks and

financial institutions 5 014 838 5 041 350 6 641 189 6 674 493
Financial assets at fair value through

P&L - held for trading 1 452 499 1 452 499 2 008 597 2 008 597
Financial assets at fair value through 

P&L - designated 234 419 234 419 - - - - - -
Direct credit facilities 19 483 153 19 543 453 14 165 289 14 228 918
Financial assets - available for sale 3 064 958 3 064 958 2 173 423 2 173 423
Financial assets - held to maturity 2 047 257 2 057 104 2 052 808 2 075 123
Investments in subsidiaries and associated 
companies 1 458 513 1 458 513 1 047 390 1 047 390

LIABILITIES
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 5 085 531 5 092 866 3 568 031 3 589 786
Customer deposits 22 666 346 22 727 045 19 650 574 19 702 117
Cash margin 2 055 925 2 066 879 2 115 747 2 126 445
Borrowed funds 500 000 500 151 - - - - - -

ARAB BANK GROUP
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51. CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OF THE CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS
(USD '000) 2007

Within After 1 year After Total
1 year and before 5 years

5 years
Letters of credit 1 994 471 30 924 4 976 2 030 371
Acceptances 431 614 4 336 - - - 435 950
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 428 434 214 144 168 791 811 369
- Performance guarantees 820 871 1 845 726 484 398 3 150 995
- Other guarantees 4 857 944 774 835 314 408 5 947 187
Unused credit facilities 2 527 403 980 249 548 439 4 056 091
Total 11 060 737 3 850 214 1 521 012 16 431 963

2006
Letters of credit 1 928 878 17 027 - - - 1 945 905
Acceptances 484 154 131 557 16 615 727
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 955 928 82 089 2 490 1 040 507
- Performance guarantees 286 232 758 431 128 042 1 172 705
- Other guarantees 5 229 331 2 781 - - - 5 232 112
Unused credit facilities 2 958 765 779 654 423 681 4 162 100
Total 11 843 288 1 771 539 554 229 14 169 056

ARAB BANK GROUP
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52. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to con-
tinue as a going concern while maximizing returns to shareholders.The composition
of the regulatory capital in 2007 and 2006, as defined by the Basel Committee, was
as follows:

(USD '000) 2007 2006

A - CORE CAPITAL
Paid-up share capital 525 047 525 047
Share premium 330 688 266 978
Statutory reserve 729 036 594 806
Voluntary reserve 1 475 497 1 313 254
General reserve 1 612 262 1 599 483
Minority interest 88 146 60 290
Retained earnings 103 784 68 536
Treasury shares (423) (48 523)
Total core capital 4 864 037 4 379 871

B - SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL
Undisclosed reserves 159 824 44 802
Translation adjustments 173 195 89 742
Revaluation reserves 64 863 55 467
General banking risk reserve 304 646 281 607
Total supplementary capital 702 528 471 618
Total core capital and supplementary capital (A+B) 5 566 565 4 851 489

C - INVESTMENTS IN BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 22 487 4 784
Regulatory capital (A+B-C) 5 544 078 4 846 705
Risk-weighted assets (RWA) 24 371 684 20 451 084
Regulatory capital/risk-weighted assets 22.75% 23.70%
Core capital/risk-weighted assets 19.87% 21.39%

- The Board of Directors reviews the equity of the Group semi-annually. The cash div-
idends and capitalization of income policies are decided on the basis of several
factors, including cost of equity and risk.

- The minimum level of the capital adequacy ratio (regulatory capital divided by risk
weighted assets) as defined by the Basel Committee is 8%. The capital adequacy
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2007 was 22.75% compared to 23.70% as at
31 December 2006.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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53. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
(USD '000) 2007 2006

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:
Dues from associated companies 408 987 121 053
Deposits from associated companies 200 502 195 463
Interest income from associated companies 11 533 1 251
Interest expenses paid to associated companies 5 667 1 228
Guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit - associated companies 7 276 36 324

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Direct credit facilities 509 377 528 618
Letters of credit 44 263 123 698
Guarantees 133 062 69 926

Interest on facilities granted to major shareholders and members of the Board of
Directors is recorded at arm’s length.

The salaries and other fringe benefits of senior executives in Jordan and abroad
amounted to USD 21.5 million in 2007, compared to USD 16.4 million in 2006. 

54. INCOME PER SHARE
The income per share is calculated by dividing the income after tax by the average
number of shares as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, as follows:

2007 2006

Income after tax attributed to the shareholders of the parent company (USD '000) 762 826 616 370
Average number of shares (thousand shares) 354 547 332 513
Income per share (USD) 2.15 1.85

55. FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS
Fiduciary deposits as at 31 December 2007 amounted to USD 2,499.0 million,
compared to USD 2,563.1 million as at 31 December 2006. These deposits are not
included in the Group financial statements.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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56. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
(USD '000) 2007 2006

Cash and balances with central banks maturing within 3 months 3 641 629 2 764 776
Plus: balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within 3 months 4 536 401 5 548 274
Less: bank and financial institution deposits maturing within 3 months 4 848 288 3 269 827
Total 3 329 742 5 043 223

57. LEGAL CASES
Lawsuits filed against the Bank

a- Lawsuits have been filed against Arab Bank whereby similar allegations were made
against it. The lawsuits allege that Arab Bank has, through its New York branch,
channeled funds to persons and entities described as "terrorists" and "terrorist
organizations in Palestine" respectively. Based on such alleged acts, the Bank, it
was claimed, has had aided and abetted acts of terrorism which led to the death
or the injury of the family members of the claimants. Consequently, the claimants
in the said lawsuits are requesting compensation for the damages that have be-
fallen the claimants as a result of the alleged acts of the Bank. No substantial new
developments have occurred in 2007.
Arab Bank, in the opinion of its management, has been and is still fully respectful
of and compliant with all anti terrorism legislation in all countries in which it oper-
ates.

b- The Bank has entered into an agreement with the Office of the Controller of Cur-
rency pursuant to which the branch was converted into a federal agency with lim-
ited operations in compliance with the provisions of the US Federal Banking Act.
It was also agreed that the federal agency shall be allowed to maintain assets in
the amount of USD 420 million mostly in available for sale assets.

c- There are other lawsuits filed against the Bank in relation to transactions carried
out in the normal course of business and in the total amount of USD 29.0 million
as on December 31, 2007 in comparison to USD 23.4 million on December 31,
2006.  In the management's opinion, the Bank will not be held liable for any
amount in excess of the provision made for lawsuits and which is in the amount of
USD 4.7 million in comparison to the USD 7.2 million made in 2006.

58. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to correspond with the cur-
rent year presentation.

ARAB BANK GROUP
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FIVE-YEAR MAIN FINANCIAL FIGURES

ARAB BANK GROUP

In USD million 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

ASSETS
Cash and banks 9 452.4 9 546.0 8 295.0 8 486.9 8 442.9
Securities and investments 8 257.6 7 282.2 6 509.7 6 666.9 5 444.6
Direct credit facilities 19 483.2 14 165.3 11 725.1 11 447.1 9 992.2
Fixed and other assets 1 140.1 1 471.9 954.6 734.9 664.5
Total 38 333.3 32 465.4 27 484.4 27 335.8 24 544.2

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Customer deposits 24 722.3 21 766.3 19 290.5 19 548.3 18 272.5
Bank deposits 5 585.5 3 568.0 3 241.4 3 389.8 2 481.8
Other liabilities 1 168.2 1 246.5 1 067.5 1 148.8 909.4
Shareholders' equity 6 857.3 5 884.6 3 885.0 3 248.9 2 880.5
Total 38 333.3 32 465.4 27 484.4 27 335.8 24 544.2

Contra accounts 16 432.0 14 169.1 9 678.1 9 189.7 7 765.6

Net interest income 941.4 756.4 578.0 431.3 374.7
Non-interest income 699.6 622.4 602.1 452.9 356.1
Total 1 641.0 1 378.8 1 180.1 884.2 730.8
Operating expenses 676.8 588.8 543.6 458.4 427.6
Income before tax 964.2 790.0 636.5 425.8 303.2
Income tax 189.2 165.4 133.3 106.4 75.5
Income after tax 775.0 624.6 503.2 319.4 227.7
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ARAB BANK PLC

(JOD '000) Note 2007 2006

Cash and balances with central banks 5 2 894 720 1 940 964
Balances with banks and financial institutions 6 3 507 125 4 321 512
Deposits with banks and financial institutions 7 400 043 352 151
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 8 419 648 635 759
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated 9 112 929 - - -
Financial derivatives - positive fair value 43 24 026 7 069
Direct credit facilities 10 9 875 128 7 909 806
Financial assets - available for sale 11 1 612 595 1 349 419
Financial assets - held to maturity 12 1 081 057 881 735
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 13 870 422 513 741
Fixed assets 14 181 748 168 439
Other assets 15 229 585 345 200
Deferred tax, assets 16 11 005 14 343
Total assets 21 220 031 18 440 138

Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 17 3 130 172 2 627 291
Customer deposits 18 12 247 957 10 756 760
Cash margin 19 1 410 081 1 470 897
Financial derivatives - negative fair value 43 30 922 38 467
Borrowed funds 20 354 610 - - -
Other provisions 21 85 572 98 278
Provision for income tax 22 94 088 88 046
Other liabilities 23 300 075 250 853
Deferred tax, liabilities 24 18 560 15 598
Total liabilities 17 672 037 15 346 190
Capital 25 356 000 356 000
Issuing premium 25 1 036 754 921 688
Treasury shares 25 (300) (34 414)
Statutory reserve 208 000 166 000
Voluntary reserve 26 460 000 378 000
General reserve 900 000 900 000
General banking risk reserve 27 249 980 145 988
Translation adjustments 28 148 481 89 665
Cumulative change in fair value 29 62 672 65 922
Retained earnings 30 19 607 16 099
Proposed dividends 31 106 800 89 000
Total shareholders’ equity 3 547 994 3 093 948
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 21 220 031 18 440 138
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ARAB BANK PLC

(JOD '000) Note 2007 2006

Interest income 32 1 183 122 931 750
Less: Interest expense 33 640 236 464 662
Net interest income 542 886 467 088
Commission income, net 34 111 353 98 481
Net interest and commission income 654 239 565 569
Foreign exchange trading 34 269 26 612
Gains from financial assets - held for trading 35 3 291 464
Gains from financial assets - designated 36 1 196 - - -
Gains from financial assets - available for sale 37 8 843 12 922
Dividends from subsidiaries and associates 38 38 977 25 203
Other revenue 39 20 022 31 074
Net revenue 760 837 661 844

Employee expenses 40 157 380 134 792
Other expenses 41 155 737 152 526
Depreciation and amortization 14 19 661 22 053
Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 10 5 639 6 337
Other provisions 5 702 16 865
Total expenses 344 119 332 573

Income before tax 416 718 329 271
Income tax 22 82 062 65 994
Income after tax 334 656 263 277

Statutory reserve 42 000 33 000
Voluntary reserve 82 000 66 000
General reserve - - - 33 000
General banking risk reserve 103 856 42 277
Proposed cash dividends 106 800 89 000
Total appropriation 334 656 263 277

INCOME STATEMENT 
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

20
07

20
06

ARAB BANK PLC

(JOD '000)

Capital Issuing Treasury Statutory
premium shares reserve 

Balance on 1 January 356 000 921 688 (34 414) 166 000
Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative change in fair value - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income recognized directly in equity - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income after tax - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total recognized income - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sale of treasury shares - - - 115 066 34 114 - - -
Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 42 000
Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments during the year - - - - - - - - - - - -
Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 356 000 1 036 754 (300) 208 000

Balance on 1 January 176 000 - - - - - - 133 000
Translation adjustments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative change in fair value - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income recognized directly in equity - - - - - - - - - - - -
Income after tax - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total recognized income - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital increase 180 000 921 688 (34 414) - - -
Allocated to reserves - - - - - - - - - 33 000
Proposed dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments during the year - - - - - - - - - - - -
Paid dividends - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance on 31 December 356 000 921 688 (34 414) 166 000
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Voluntary General General Translation Cumulative Retained Proposed Total
reserve reserve banking risk adjustments change in earnings dividends shareholders’

reserve fair value  equity 

378 000 900 000 145 988 89 665 65 922 16 099 89 000 3 093 948
- - - - - - - - - 58 816 - - - - - - - - - 58 816
- - - - - - - - - - - - (3 250) - - - - - - (3 250)
- - - - - - - - - 58 816 (3 250) - - - - - - 55 566
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 334 656 - - - 334 656
- - - - - - - - - 58 816 (3 250) 334 656 - - - 390 222
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 149 180

82 000 - - - 103 856 - - - - - - (227 856) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (106 800) 106 800 - - -
- - - - - - 136 - - - - - - 3 508 (184) 3 460
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (88 816) (88 816)

460 000 900 000 249 980 148 481 62 672 19 607 106 800 3 547 994

312 000 867 000 107 049 65 912 134 330 10 939 53 400 1 859 630
- - - - - - - - - 23 753 - - - - - - - - - 23 753
- - - - - - - - - - - - (68 408) - - - - - - (68 408)
- - - - - - - - - 23 753 (68 408) - - - - - - (44 655)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 263 277 - - - 263 277
- - - - - - - - - 23 753 (68 408) 263 277 - - - 218 622
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1 067 274

66 000 33 000 42 277 - - - - - - (174 277) - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (89 000) 89 000 - - -
- - - - - - (3 338) - - - - - - 5 160 - - - 1 822
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (53 400) (53 400)

378 000 900 000 145 988 89 665 65 922 16 099 89 000 3 093 948
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ARAB BANK PLC

(JOD '000) Note 2007 2006

Income before tax 416 718 329 271
Adjustments: 
- Depreciation and amortization 19 661 22 053
- Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 5 639 6 337
- Bad debts written off 220 2 165
- Proceeds from sale of fixed assets (564) (614)
- (Gain) loss from revaluation of financial assets - held for trading (553) - - -
- (Gain) loss from revaluation of financial assets - designated 1 089 - - -
- Other provisions 5 702 16 865

Total 447 912 376 077
(Increase) decrease in assets 
Balances with central banks (maturing after 3 months) (471 608) - - -
Deposits with banks and financial institutions (47 892) (17 409)
Direct credit facilities (1 971 181) (1 258 205)
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 216 664 80 351
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated (114 018) - - -
Other assets 101 996 (16 239)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities 
Bank and financial institution deposits (maturing after 3 months) (13 391) 54 845
Customer deposits 1 491 197 (179 371)
Cash margin (60 816) 367 360
Other liabilities 26 729 (125 262)
Net cash provided from operations before income tax (394 408) (717 853)
Income tax paid (76 020) (51 405)
Net cash provided from operations (470 428) (769 258)

(Purchase) sale of financial assets - available for sale (263 464) 298 099
(Purchase) sale of financial assets - held to maturity (199 322) 43 753
(Purchase) sale of investments in subsidiaries and associates (356 681) (259 133)
(Purchase) sale of fixed assets (32 406) (26 833)
Net cash provided from (used in) investing activities (851 873) 55 886

Increase (decrease) in borrowed funds 354 610 - - -
Dividends paid to shareholders (88 816) (53 400)
Capital increase - - - 1 067 274
Sale of treasury shares 149 180 - - -
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities 414 974 1 013 874

Translation adjustments 58 816 23 753
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (848 511) 324 255
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 3 689 311 3 365 056
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 55 2 840 800 3 689 311

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

Arab Bank plc was established in 1930 and is registered in Jordan as a public share-
holding limited company. The Bank has its head office in Amman, Jordan and operates
worldwide through its 76 branches in Jordan and 81 abroad. 

The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors at
its meeting no. 1/2008 on 24 January 2008. 

Arab Bank shares have a primary listing on the Amman Stock Exchange. Arab Bank
(Switzerland) shares are stapled to Arab Bank shares and traded together at a ratio of
one to ten. 

During 2006, Arab Bank’s branches and subsidiaries operating in Europe were con-
solidated into one entity under the name “Europe Arab Bank”, which is a new sub-
sidiary wholly owned by Arab Bank plc.

2. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank’s
branches both in Jordan and abroad, but exclude inter-branch balances. Transactions
in transit at year-end are shown under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may
be. Financial statements in foreign currencies of the Bank’s branches outside Jordan
are translated into Jordanian dinars at the exchange rates as at year end.

The Bank also issues consolidated financial statements for the Bank and its sub-
sidiaries, including the financial statements of its sister company, Arab Bank (Switzer-
land), to reflect the consolidated economic ownership of the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the stan-
dards issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpre-
tations issued by the Committee of the IFRS Board, the prevailing rules of the coun-
tries where the Bank operates, and the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for
financial assets held for trading, those available for sale and financial derivatives which
are stated at fair value on the date of the financial statements. Hedged assets and 
liabilities are also stated at fair value.

ARAB BANK PLC
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The accounting policies for 2007 are consistent with those used in previous years, ex-
cept for the changes described below.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The International Accounting Standards Board has issued amendments to the Inter-
national Accounting Standards as well as new Financial Reporting Standards. Apply-
ing these amendments and their interpretations has had no significant impact on the
financial statements. The following accounting standards were changed:
- International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 7 concerning disclosures of finan-

cial instruments. This standard supersedes IAS 30 on disclosures in the financial
statements of banks and similar financial institutions. IFRS 7 also amends some of
the disclosure requirements of IAS 32, which defined presentation and disclosures
of financial instruments. The amendment now requires only the presentation of fi-
nancial instruments. The requirements of this amendment became applicable as of
1 January 2007.

- Amendment to IAS 1 on presentation of financial statements and related disclosures
on the goals of a bank, its policies and procedures with regard to managing its cap-
ital. This amendment became applicable as of 1 January 2007.

- IFRS 8 concerning segmentation performance reporting cancels IAS 14. This stan-
dard will be effective for the annual period beginning 1 January 2009.

- IFRIC 9 concludes that an entity must assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative
when the entity first becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is
prohibited unless there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that otherwise would be required under the contract, in
which case reassessment is required. IFRIC 9 became applicable as of 1 January
2007. 

- IFRIC 10 concludes that an entity shall not reverse an impairment loss recognized
in a previous interim period in respect of goodwill or of an investment in either an
equity instrument or a financial asset carried at cost. IFRIC 10 became applicable
as of 1 January 2007.

RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Sale and purchase of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the entity commits to purchase or sell the financial assets.

FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the closing market price of financial assets and derivatives on
the date of the financial statements. Where the declared market prices do not exist
and active trading of some financial assets and derivatives is not available, or the mar-
ket is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of several methods, such as:
- Taking the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and conditions,
- Using the present value of expected future cash flows for similar instruments, or
- Adopting option pricing models.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARAB BANK PLC
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The valuation methods aim to arrive at a fair value that reflects the expectations of the
market, and expected risks and benefits. 

When the fair value cannot be measured reliably, financial assets are stated at cost
less any impairment.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L – HELD FOR TRADING

- This refers to financial assets acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term, or they might be part of a portfolio of iden-
tified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evi-
dence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

- Financial assets held for trading are initially recognized at their fair value when pur-
chased while transaction costs are expensed in the income statement, and subse-
quently reported at the prevailing fair value. The resulting change is included in the
income statement in the period in which it arises, including exchange differences
in fair value resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets denominated in
foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting from changes in the foreign ex-
change rate are recorded in the income statement as profit or loss on foreign ex-
change.

- Dividends are recognized as a gain from financial assets that are held for trading in
the income statement, while the realized interest is reported as interest income in
the income statement.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L – DESIGNATED

- A financial asset eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (accounting mismatch). If it is part of a group of financial assets, fi-
nancial liabilities or both, it is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strat-
egy. 

- Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss, and are initially
recognized at their fair value when purchased, while transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement and subsequently reported at the prevailing fair value. The
resulting change is included in the income statement in the period in which it aris-
es, including exchange differences in fair value resulting from the translation of non-
monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in fair value resulting
from changes in the foreign exchange rate are recorded in the income statement as
profit or loss on foreign exchange.

- Dividends are recognized as a gain from financial assets, and are designated at fair
value through profit or loss in the income statement, while the realized interest is
reported as interest income in the income statement.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARAB BANK PLC
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES

- This refers to financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quot-
ed in an active market.

- Direct credit facilities are recorded at cost, and stated in the balance sheet after
deducting provisions, interest and commission in suspense.

- A provision for the impairment of direct credit facilities is recognized when it is 
apparent that the financial assets of the Bank cannot be recovered, when there is
objective evidence of an event that negatively affects the future cash flows of the
direct credit facilities, and when the impairment amount can be estimated. The pro-
vision is taken to the income statement.

- Interest and commission on non-performing credit facilities are suspended in ac-
cordance with the instructions of the regulatory authorities in the countries where
the Bank operates.

- Impaired direct credit facilities, for which specific provision has been made, are writ-
ten off by charging the provision after all efforts have been made to recover the as-
sets. Any surplus in the provisions or recoveries is taken to the income statement,
while the debt of previously written off recoveries is taken to income. 

FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE

- These are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or not classified
as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss.

- Financial assets available for sale are initially recorded at fair value, including 
acquisition costs. They are subsequently reported at fair value as prevailing on the
date of the financial statements. Changes in fair value are recorded in a separate
account in shareholders’ equity. 

- When these assets are fully or partially sold, disposed of, or determined to be im-
paired, the change in fair value is recorded in the income statement, including re-
lated amounts previously recorded in shareholders’ equity. The loss resulting from
an impaired value of the debt instruments is reversed when it is objectively evident
that the increase in their fair value occurred after the losses had been recognized.
Impairment losses resulting from a decline in the value of equity securities cannot
be reversed.

- Income and losses resulting from foreign exchange translation of interest-bearing
debt instruments are included in the income statement. Differences in foreign cur-
rency of equity instruments are included in the cumulative change in fair value with-
in shareholders’ equity.

- Interest from available-for-sale financial instruments is recorded in the income
statement using the effective interest rate method. When impairment in assets is
incurred, it is recorded in the income statement.

- Financial instruments for which fair value cannot reliably be determined are shown
at cost. A decline in value is recorded in the income statement.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY

- These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
that an entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

- Financial assets held to maturity are recorded at cost (fair value) plus acquisition
costs, less provision for impairment in value. Premiums and discounts are system-
atically amortized in the income statement using the effective interest rate method.
Any impairment in value is recorded in the income statement.

IMPAIRMENT IN THE VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank reviews the values of its financial assets on the date of the balance sheet in
order to determine if there are any indications of impairment in their value individual-
ly or in the form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the recoverable value is
estimated so as to determine the impairment loss. 
Impairment is determined as follows:
- Impairment in the financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the

basis of the prevailing value of the cash flows discounted at the original interest rate.
- Impairment in the available-for-sale financial assets recorded at fair value repre-

sents the difference between the book value and the fair value.
- Impairment in the financial assets recorded at cost is determined on the basis of

the prevailing value of the expected cash flows discounted at the market interest
rate of similar instruments. 

Impairment in value is recorded in the income statement. Any surplus in the subse-
quent period, resulting from previous declines in the fair value of financial assets, is
taken to the income statement, except for available-for-sale equity securities, since it
is recovered through the cumulative change in the fair value. 

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Associated companies are those in which the Bank has a significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions, and in which the Bank holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights.
- Investments in associated companies are stated at cost.

REALIZATION OF INCOME AND RECOGNITION OF EXPENSES

- Realization of income and recognition of expenses are recorded on an accrual ba-
sis, except for interest and commission on non-performing direct credit facilities,
which are not recognized as revenue but recorded as interest and commission in a
suspense account until they are received in cash.

- Commission is recorded as revenue when the relevant services are provided.
- Dividends are recorded when realized.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Financial derivatives (e.g. currency forward contracts, forward rate agreements,
swaps and option contracts) are recorded in the balance sheet as a separate item.
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FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

For hedge accounting purposes, financial derivatives are stated at fair value.

Hedges are classified as follows:
- Fair value hedge: hedging for exposure changes the fair value of the Bank’s assets

and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective fair value hedge are met, the re-
sulting gain or loss from re-measuring the fair value hedging is recognized in the in-
come statement. When the conditions for an effective portfolio hedge are met, the
gain or loss resulting from the revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value, as
well as the change in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities portfolio, are
recorded in the income statement for the same period.

- Cash flow hedge: hedging for exposure changes the current and expected cash flows
of the Bank’s assets and liabilities. When the conditions for an effective cash flow
hedge are met, the gain or loss of the hedging instruments is recognized in share-
holders’ equity, and such gain or loss is transferred to the income statement in the
period in which the hedge transaction impacts the income statement.

- Hedge for net investment in foreign entities: When the conditions of the hedge for
net investment in foreign entities are met, fair value is measured for the hedging in-
strument of the hedged net assets. In the case of an effective relationship, the ef-
fective portion of the loss or profit related to the hedging instrument is recognized
in shareholders’ equity, while the ineffective portion is recognized in the income
statement. The effective portion is recorded in the income statement when the in-
vestment in foreign entities is sold.

- When the conditions for an effective hedge do not apply, gain or loss resulting from
the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the income state-
ment of the same period.

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES FOR TRADING

The fair value of financial derivatives for trading, such as forward foreign currency con-
tracts, future interest rate contracts, swap agreements and foreign currency options,
is recorded in the balance sheet under other assets or other liabilities, as the case may
be. Any change in their fair value is recognized in the income statement.

REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

- Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a future date contin-
ue to be recognized in the financial statements due to the Bank’s continued control
of those assets; the related risks and benefits are transferred to the Bank when in-
curred. They also continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted account-
ing policies. Amounts received against these contracts are recorded within liabili-
ties under borrowed funds. The difference between the sale price and the
repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense, and is amortized over the
contract period using the effective interest rate method. When the transferee has
the right to sell or re-pledge the collateral, the securities sold subject to repurchase
agreements are reclassified in the financial statements as pledged assets.
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- Purchased assets with a corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date
are not recognized in the financial statements because the Bank has no control over
such assets, and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Bank when
incurred. Payments related to these contracts are recorded under deposits with
banks or under credit facilities, depending on the nature of each case. The differ-
ence between the purchase price and resale price is recorded as interest revenue,
and is amortized over the period of the contract using the effective interest rate
method.

ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

Assets pledged as collateral with a third party, and, where the transferee has the right
to sell or re-pledge the collateral, are classified in the balance sheet as a separate line
item, and the accounting policy for such assets will follow it original classification.    

FORECLOSED ASSETS

Assets that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Bank are shown under other
assets, at the acquisition value or fair value, whichever is lower. As of the balance sheet
date, these assets are revalued individually at fair value. Any decline in their market
value is taken to the income statement, whereas an increase is not recognized to the
extent it does not exceed the previously recorded impairment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- Goodwill represents the excess of an amount paid to acquire or purchase an invest-
ment in an associate or subsidiary on the date of the transaction over the fair value
of the net investment in that company. Goodwill resulting from an investment in an
affiliated company constitutes part of the investment in that company, and is
recorded at cost. The cost of goodwill is reduced subsequently by any decline in the
value of the investment. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in in-
tangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments
in associates.

- Goodwill is distributed over the cash-generating unit(s) for the purpose of testing
impairment of the value.

- The value of goodwill is tested on the date of each financial statement. The good-
will value is reduced when there is evidence that its value has declined or that the
recoverable value of the cash-generating unit(s) is lower than the book value. The
decline in value is recorded in the income statement as impairment loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

- Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

- Financial assets and financial liabilities are translated at the average rates prevail-
ing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies and recorded at fair value are translated on the date when the
fair value was determined.
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- Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the in-
come statement.

- Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities de-
nominated in foreign currency, such as securities, are recorded as part of the
change in the fair value.

FIXED ASSETS

- Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Fixed assets (ex-
cept for land) are depreciated according to the straight-line method over their esti-
mated useful lives, and in accordance with the prevailing rules and regulations in
the countries where the Bank operates. When the carrying amounts of any of the
fixed assets exceed the recoverable values, the values of the assets are reduced
accordingly.

- The useful lives of the fixed assets are reviewed at the end of each year. Where the
expected useful life differs from what was previously determined, the change in es-
timate will be recorded as such in the subsequent year.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has an obligation on the date of the balance
sheet as a result of past events, and if the obligation is likely to be settled, and if a re-
liable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with
the prevailing rules and regulations in the countries in which the Bank operates. Re-
quired provision for the year for the end-of-service indemnities is recorded in the in-
come statement. Payments to departing employees are taken to the income state-
ment or deducted from the provision amount.

INCOME TAX

- Income tax expenses represent both accrued and deferred taxes.
- Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Income sub-

ject to tax differs from income declared in the financial statements, because the
latter includes non-taxable revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year
but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses accepted by the tax author-
ities, and items not accepted for tax purposes or subject to tax.

- Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates applicable according to the pre-
vailing laws, regulations and instructions of the countries where the Bank operates.

- Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary
timing differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount.

- Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the liability method in the balance sheet,
and according to the rates expected to be applied when it is anticipated that the 
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liability will be settled or when tax assets are recognized. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed on the date of the balance sheet and reduced if it is expected that no ben-
efit will arise from this deferred tax, partially or totally.

TREASURY SHARES

- Treasury shares appear at cost as a separate item in the shareholders’ equity, and
are deducted from total shareholders’ equity.

- Gain or loss from the sale of treasury shares is not included in the income state-
ment, but it is recognized in the issuing premium. 

FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS

- Fiduciary deposits result from the holding or placing of assets on behalf of cus-
tomers. These assets and the income arising from them are excluded from the fi-
nancial statements of the Bank. The commission and fees earned for managing
these accounts are recognized in the income statement.

- Provision for a decline in fair value is created in case the guaranteed capital portfo-
lio becomes lower than the guaranteed capital.

OFFSETTING

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in
the balance sheet only when there is a legal right to set off the recognized amounts,
and the Bank intends to either settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances
with banks and financial institutions that are maturing within three months, less re-
stricted funds and balances due to banks and financial institutions that are maturing
within three months.

SEGMENT REPORTING 

- A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing prod-
ucts or services that are subject to risks and returns which are different from those
of other business segments. 

- A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a par-
ticular economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

4. USING ESTIMATES 
Preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires estimations and judg-
ments in applying accounting policies relating to some of the items listed in those
statements. Examples of such items include an estimation of the provision for impair-
ment of non-performing direct credit facilities, the intention of management to hold
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the financial investment until maturity, and an estimation of the productive life of as-
sets and impairment of their value. Management also uses estimation and judgment
for some matters that are uncertain on the date of the balance sheet and that may
cause significant risks and may require material adjustments to the balances of the
assets and liabilities stated in the financial statements of the following year. This in-
cludes estimations of the various provisions and contingent liabilities.

5. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Cash 181 806 148 358
Balances with central banks: 
- Current accounts 110 817 107 343
- Time and notice 661 755 318 471
- Mandatory cash reserve 818 505 607 586
- Certificates of deposit 1 121 837 759 206
Total 2 894 720 1 940 964

Balances maturing after three months amounted to JOD 560.3 million as at 31 Decem-
ber 2007, compared to JOD 88.7 million as at 31 December 2006.

6. BALANCES WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Current accounts 318 638 474 129
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 3 148 684 3 840 613
Certificates of deposit 39 803 6 770
Total 3 507 125 4 321 512

7. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 191 303 151 672
Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 67 548 172 828
Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before 12 months 141 192 25 454
Time deposits maturing after one year - - - 2 197
Total 400 043 352 151
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8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - HELD FOR TRADING
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 394 955 186 005
Government bonds 11 286 22 790
Corporate bonds 7 607 423 831
Shares 5 800 3 133
Total 419 648 635 759

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH P&L - DESIGNATED
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Government bonds 25 318 - - -
Corporate bonds 87 611 - - -
Total 112 929 - - -

10. DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Discounted bills* 386 496 298 274
Overdrafts 2 017 166 2 097 849
Loans* 7 735 942 5 808 684
Capital lease 22 176 22 890
Credit cards 39 186 27 643
Total 10 200 966 8 255 340
Less: Interest and commission in suspense 91 647 110 259

Provision for impairment - direct credit facilities 234 191 235 275
Total 325 838 345 534
Direct credit facilities 9 875 128 7 909 806

* Net, after deducting the interest and commission received in advance, which amounted to 
JOD 20.7 million in 2007, compared to JOD 17.6 million in 2006.
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Direct credit facilities granted to a government and guaranteed by the government as
at 31 December 2007 amounted to JOD 561.9 million, or 5.5% of total direct credit fa-
cilities, compared to JOD 390.4 million, or 4.7% of total direct credit facilities at the
end of 2006.

Non-performing direct credit facilities as at 31 December 2007 amounted to JOD 305.3
million, or 3.0% of total direct credit facilities, compared to JOD 369.6 million, or 4.5%
of total direct credit facilities at the end of 2006.

Non-performing direct credit facilities, after deducting interest and commission in sus-
pense, as at 31 December 2007 amounted to JOD 213.6 million, or 2.1% of total direct
credit facilities, compared to JOD 259.4 million, or 3.2% of total direct credit facilities
at the end of 2006.

MOVEMENTS OF INTEREST IN SUSPENSE:

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 110 259 126 307
Interest in suspense during the year 18 119 19 555
Interest in suspense written off (26 647) (30 204)
Recoveries (10 685) (6 332)
Translation adjustments 601 933
Balance at the end of the year 91 647 110 259

MOVEMENTS IN THE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF THE DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES: 

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 235 275 245 812
Addition: Charged to income 45 579 46 517
Direct credit facilities written off (12 431) (23 458)
Recoveries (39 940) (40 180)
Translation adjustments 5 708 6 584
Balance at the end of the year 234 191 235 275

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 188 041 203 064
Government bonds 276 630 194 309
Corporate bonds 939 774 788 039
Shares 208 150 164 007
Total 1 612 595 1 349 419

BONDS ACCORDING TO INTEREST: 
Fixed interest bonds 412 751 671 552
Variable interest bonds 991 694 513 860
Total 1 404 445 1 185 412

FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCORDING TO MARKET QUOTATION: 
Financial assets quoted in the market 1 427 183 1 146 078
Financial assets not quoted in the market 185 412 203 341
Total 1 612 595 1 349 419

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD TO MATURITY
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Treasury bills and bonds 924 861 680 167
Government bonds 129 111 154 511
Corporate bonds 27 085 47 057
Total 1 081 057 881 735

BONDS ACCORDING TO INTEREST: 
Fixed interest bonds 962 686 769 347
Variable interest bonds 118 371 112 388
Total 1 081 057 881 735

FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCORDING TO MARKET QUOTATION: 
Financial assets quoted in the market 162 989 158 589
Financial assets not quoted in the market 918 068 723 146
Total 1 081 057 881 735
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
2007 2006

Owner- Historical Owner- Historical Country Activity
ship % cost ship % Cost

(JOD '000) (JOD '000)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES:
Europe Arab Bank plc 100.00 470 439 100.00 227 806 U.K. Banking 
Arab Bank AG, Frankfurt - - - - - - 100.00 53 062 Germany Banking 
Arab Bank Australia Limited 100.00 34 282 100.00 30 806 Australia Banking 
Islamic International Arab Bank plc 100.00 40 000 100.00 40 000 Jordan Banking 
Arab Leasing Company 100.00 25 000 100.00 14 000 Jordan Lease finance 
Arab Real Estate Company 
for Management and Investment - - - - - - 100.00 5 500 Jordan Real estate 

Al-Arabi Investment Group Co. 100.00 8 900 100.00 3 766 Jordan Services and fi-
nancial consulting 

Arab Investment Bank S.A.L 66.65 5 129 66.65 5 129 Lebanon Banking 
Arab Tunisian Bank 64.24 40 435 64.24 38 054 Tunisia Banking 
AB Capital Limited 60.00 12 762 60.00 12 762 U.A.E. Services and fi-

nancial consulting 
Arab Palestinian Investment Bank 55.00 5 849 55.00 5 849 Palestine Banking 
Al-Nisr Al Arabi 50.00 11 250 50.00 11 250 Jordan Insurance 
Arab Bank - Syria 49.00 10 421 49.00 10 421 Syria Banking 
Other 10 185 10 531
Total 674 652 468 936

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES:
Turkland Bank A.S. 50.00 71 838 - - - - - - Turkey Banking 
Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. 49.00 20 755 49.00 18 048 Oman Banking 
Arab National Bank 40.00 102 870 40.00 26 474 Saudi Arabia Banking 
Arabia Insurance Co. 36.79 75 36.79 75 Lebanon Insurance 
Commercial Building Co. 33.09 224 32.77 200 Lebanon Real estate 
Other 8 8
Total 195 770 44 805
Grand total 870 422 513 741
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14. FIXED ASSETS
(JOD '000) 2007

Land Buildings Furniture, Computer Motor Lease- Total
fixtures and and com- vehicles hold
equipment munication improve-

equipment ments

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at the beginning of the year 27 091 127 260 62 776 37 363 7 965 21 092 283 547
Additions 2 529 11 146 10 740 5 083 1 019 10 475 40 992
Disposals (1 087) (8 798) (1 641) (608) (827) (5 344) (18 305)
Translation adjustments 513 1 699 309 402 56 84 3 063
Balance at the end of the year 29 046 131 307 72 184 42 240 8 213 26 307 309 297

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 25 341 40 794 29 000 4 989 14 984 115 108
Depreciation for the year - - - 5 214 5 223 4 084 1 174 3 966 19 661
Disposals - - - - - - (1 449) (605) (824) (5 119) (7 997)
Translation adjustments - - - 231 183 272 58 33 777
Balance at the end of the year - - - 30 786 44 751 32 751 5 397 13 864 127 549
Net book value 29 046 100 521 27 433 9 489 2 816 12 443 181 748

2006

HISTORICAL COST
Balance at the beginning of the year 26 744 115 465 63 708 43 180 6 498 24 289 279 884
Additions 1 981 12 243 5 638 4 552 2 319 6 046 32 779
Disposals (1 955) (2 068) (6 832) (10 622) (897) (9 396) (31 770)
Translation adjustments 321 1 620 262 253 45 153 2 654
Balance at the end of the year 27 091 127 260 62 776 37 363 7 965 21 092 283 547

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - 23 212 41 884 33 444 4 645 13 654 116 839
Depreciation for the year - - - 4 571 4 965 3 944 934 7 639 22 053
Disposals - - - (2 068) (5 917) (8 203) ( 552) (6 245) (22 985)
Translation adjustments - - - (374) (138) (185) (38) (64) (799)
Balance at the end of the year - - - 25 341 40 794 29 000 4 989 14 984 115 108
Net book value 27 091 101 919 21 982 8 363 2 976 6 108 168 439

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. OTHER ASSETS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Accrued interest receivable 126 006 126 401
Expenses paid in advance 19 760 18 290
Foreclosed assets 33 975 27 137
Items in transit - - - 136 051
Miscellaneous assets 49 844 37 321
Total 229 585 345 200

MOVEMENTS OF FORECLOSED ASSETS IN 2007 AND 2006: 

2007 2006

Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 11 619 15 518 27 137 11 916 15 249 27 165
Additions 544 8 554 9 098 262 2 043 2 305
Disposals (347) (740) (1 087) (544) (1 771) (2 315)
Impairment loss (728) (441) (1 169) - - - - - - - - -
Translation adjustments (4) - - - (4) (15) (3) (18)
Balance at the end of the year 11 084 22 891 33 975 11 619 15 518 27 137

16. DEFERRED TAX, ASSETS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at Added Released Balance Deferred Deferred
the beginning amounts amounts at the end tax tax

of the year of the year
Items attributable to deferred tax assets:
Provision for impairment - direct

credit facilities 27 751 1 583 (25 347) 3 987 797 6 023
End-of-service indemnity 20 416 1 940 (1 315) 21 041 6 758 6 492
Interest in suspense 914 1 248 (580) 1 582 380 354
Provisions and other 4 219 7 750 (2 752) 9 217 3 070 1 474
Total 53 300 12 521 (29 994) 35 827 11 005 14 343
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MOVEMENTS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS IN 2007 AND 2006:

2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 14 343 12 073
Additions during the year 3 547 6 692
Deductions during the year (6 885) (4 422)
Balance at the end of the year 11 005 14 343

Deferred tax results from the time differences of provisions which were not deducted
for tax purposes in previous years. This is calculated according to the regulations
where the Bank operates. The Bank will benefit from these amounts in the future.

17. BANKS’ AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS’ DEPOSITS
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Current and demand 811 039 326 656
Time deposits maturing within 3 months 2 189 745 2 157 856
Time deposits maturing after 3 months and before 6 months 124 169 97 808
Time deposits maturing after 6 months and before 9 months 4 184 33 285
Time deposits maturing after 9 months and before one year 1 035 9 221
Time deposits maturing after one year - - - 2 465
Total 3 130 172 2 627 291

18. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Current and demand 3 003 370 2 801 680
Savings 877 038 823 566
Time and notice 8 088 603 7 096 743
Certificates of deposit 278 946 34 771
Total 12 247 957 10 756 760

Public sector deposits amounted to JOD 1,239.1 million, or 10.1% of total customer
deposits at the end of 2007, compared to JOD 910.7 million, or 8.5% of total customer
deposits at the end of 2006.

Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JOD 2,495.3 million, or 20.4% of total
customer deposits at the end of 2007, compared to JOD 1,580.6 million, or 14.7% of
total customer deposits at the end of 2006.
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Blocked deposits amounted to JOD 18.1 million, or 0.1% of total customer deposits at
the end of 2007, compared to JOD 2.2 million, or 0.0% of total customer deposits at
the end of 2006.

Dormant deposits amounted to JOD 51.1 million, or 0.4% of total customer deposits at
the end of 2007, compared to JOD 53.6 million, or 0.5% of total customer deposits at
the end of 2006.

19. CASH MARGIN
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Against direct credit facilities 1 137 682 873 040
Against indirect credit facilities 260 274 555 700
Cash margin, financial derivatives 11 218 16 414
Cash margin, other 907 25 743
Total 1 410 081 1 470 897

20. BORROWED FUNDS
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

From banks and financial institutions* 354 610 - - -
Total 354 610 - - -

* In 2007 the Bank issued a USD 500 million syndicated term loan with a tenure of five years
and paying LIBOR + 25 basis points.

21. OTHER PROVISIONS 
(JOD '000) 2007

Balance at Addition Utilized Returned Translation Balance at
the beginning during during to income adjustments the end of

of the year the year the year the year
End-of-service indemnity 84 615 7 603 (19 176) (163) 1 047 73 926
Self-insurance 1 217 - - - (110) - - - 6 1 113
Legal cases 5 095 - - - (1 297) (683) 19 3 134
Contingencies 7 351 4 167 (2 269) (1 880) 30 7 399
Total 98 278 11 770 (22 852) (2 726) 1 102 85 572

2006
End-of-service indemnity 71 008 16 330 (3 203) (290) 770 84 615
Self-insurance 1 204 - - - - - - - - - 13 1 217
Contingencies 11 096 3 186 (1 501) (374) 39 12 446
Total 83 308 19 516 (4 704) (664) 822 98 278
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22. PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 88 046 73 457
Income tax paid 82 062 65 994
Income tax due (76 020) (51 405)
Balance at the end of the year 94 088 88 046

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX IN THE INCOME STATEMENT COMPRISES THE FOLLOWING: 
Income tax provision for the year 75 901 65 815
Income tax for previous years 4 012 179
Deferred tax 2 149 - - -
Total 82 062 65 994

23. OTHER LIABILITIES 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Accrued interest payable 64 054 64 501
Remittances in transit 83 949 62 517
Interest and commission received in advance 40 391 26 904
Due expenses 17 228 18 888
Items in transit 7 743 - - -
Miscellaneous liabilities 86 710 78 043
Total 300 075 250 853

24. DEFERRED TAX, LIABILITIES
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at Added Released Balance Deferred Deferred
the beginning amounts amounts at the end tax tax

of the year of the year
Items attributable to deferred tax liabilities: 
Cumulative change in fair value 43 167 25 168 (1 942) 66 393 17 667 15 598

Retained earnings - - - 3 848 - - - 3 848 580 - - -
Other - - - 1 565 - - - 1 565 313 - - -
Total 43 167 30 581 (1 942) 71 806 18 560 15 598
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MOVEMENTS OF DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES DURING THE YEAR:

2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 15 598 17 897
Additions during the year 6 913 390
Deductions during the year (3 951) (2 689)
Balance at the end of the year 18 560 15 598

25. CAPITAL
A. The subscribed and paid-up capital amounted to JOD 356 million as at 31 Decem-

ber 2007 and 2006, divided into 356 million shares, each at a nominal value of JOD
1.0.

B. The issuing premium amounted to JOD 1,036.8 million as at 31 December 2007,
compared to JOD 921.7 million as at 31 December 2006.

C. The unsubscribed shares amounted to JOD 0.3 million as at 31 December 2007,
compared to JOD 34.4 million as at 31 December 2006, and were considered treas-
ury shares to be deducted from the total shareholders’ equity. Treasury shares give
no voting power and no dividend rights.

26.VOLUNTARY RESERVE
The voluntary reserve amounted to JOD 460.0 million as at 31 December 2007, com-
pared to JOD 378.0 million as at 31 December 2006. This reserve is used for purpos-
es determined by the Board of Directors and the General Assembly. They have the right
to distribute it in whole or any part thereof to shareholders.

27. GENERAL BANKING RISK RESERVE
This reserve is available for use in accordance with certain procedures, including the
approval of the banking authorities and the approval of the General Assembly, only
when the amount of that reserve exceeds the minimum amount set or required by the
instructions of the relevant banking authorities.
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28. TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS
Translation adjustments represent the differences resulting from translating the for-
eign currencies that constitute the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and branch-
es, when consolidating the financial statements of the Bank.

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning the year 89 665 65 912
Addition (deduction) during the year 58 816 23 753
Balance at the end of the year 148 481 89 665

29. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE *

(JOD '000) 2007

Shares Bonds Cash flow Total
hedge 

Balance at the beginning of the year 81 173 (15 251) - - - 65 922
Change in fair value during the year (1 861) 2 503 - - - 642
(Gain) loss realized, reported to income statement (4 307) (1 675) - - - (5 982)
Decline reported to income statement 2 042 - - - - - - 2 042
Translation adjustments 48 - - - - - - 48
Balance at the end of the year 77 095 (14 423) - - - 62 672

2006
Balance at the beginning of the year 131 896 2 713 (279) 134 330
Change in fair value during the year (48 661) (16 526) 279 (64 908)
(Gain) loss realized, reported to income statement (4 581) (1 869) - - - (6 450)
Decline reported to income statement 2 283 431 - - - 2 714
Translation adjustments 236 - - - - - - 236
Balance at the end of the year 81 173 (15 251) - - - 65 922

* Net, after deducting the deferred tax liabilities, which amounted to JOD 17.7 million in 2007,
compared to JOD 15.6 million in the previous year.
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30. RETAINED EARNINGS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Balance at the beginning of the year 16 099 10 939
Change during the year 2 424 8 045
Deferred tax 1 084 (2 885)
Balance at the end of the year * 19 607 16 099

* This item includes amounts resulting from adoption of certain International Financial Reporting
Standards, and therefore it is only disposed of in specific situations. As on 31 December 2007,
the amounts that could be disposed of amounted to JOD 3.1 million.

31. PROPOSED DIVIDENDS
The rate of the proposed dividends to shareholders for 2007 is 30% of the nominal
value, or JOD 106.8 million, which is subject to the approval of the General Assembly,
while the rate of dividends to shareholders for the year 2006 was 25% of the nominal
value, or JOD 88.8 million.

32. INTEREST INCOME
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES: 
- Discounted bills 30 399 21 982
- Overdrafts 171 093 160 857
- Loans 452 037 318 626
- Capital lease 296 84
- Credit cards 5 823 3 644
Central banks 119 176 65 147
Banks and financial institutions 216 942 189 877
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 66 369 75 118
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated 8 064 - - -
Financial assets - available for sale 73 108 56 708
Financial assets - held to maturity 39 815 39 707
Total 1 183 122 931 750
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33. INTEREST EXPENSE
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Banks and financial institutions 147 539 93 263
Customer deposits: 
- Current and demand 8 867 7 147
- Savings 18 386 19 372
- Time and notice 366 203 287 920
- Certificates of deposit 24 478 1 222
Cash margin 59 864 50 798
Borrowed funds 9 015 - - -
Deposit insurance fees 5 884 4 940
Total 640 236 464 662

34. COMMISSION INCOME, NET
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Commission income: 
- From direct credit facilities 32 429 27 384
- From indirect credit facilities 50 576 44 373
- Other 34 976 31 863
Less: commission expense 6 628 5 139
Commission, net 111 353 98 481

35. GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - HELD FOR TRADING
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Realized Unrealized Dividends Total Total
gains (losses) gains (losses)

Treasury bills and bonds 1 577 224 - - - 1 801 1 307
Shares 1 056 329 105 1 490 (843)
Total 2 633 553 105 3 291 464



178

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - DESIGNATED
(JOD '000) 2007

Realized Unrealized Dividends Total
gains (losses) gains (losses)

Treasury bills and bonds 107 1 089 - - - 1 196

37. GAINS FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Gain from sale of financial assets 6 110 8 081
Dividends 4 775 8 368
Less: decline in the value of the securities 2 042 3 527
Total 8 843 12 922

38. DIVIDENDS FROM SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

DIVIDENDS FROM SUBSIDIARIES
Arab Leasing Company 5 500 - - -
Al-Arabi Investment Group Co. 5 300 - - -
Arab Investment Bank S.A.L. 481 1 038
Arab Tunisian Bank 3 765 2 258
Al-Nisr Al Arabi Insurance Company 750 - - -
Other 182 148
Total 15 978 3 444

DIVIDENDS FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. 6 858 9 024
Arab National Bank 13 877 10 461
Arabia Insurance Co. 2 084 2 094
Commercial Building Co. 180 180
Total 22 999 21 759
Grand total 38 977 25 203
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39. OTHER REVENUE
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Revenue from services 7 069 7 304
Safe box rent 2 937 2 935
Gain from derivatives (4 383) 764
Miscellaneous revenue 14 399 20 071
Total 20 022 31 074

40. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Salaries 105 669 91 186
Social security 5 326 5 146
Savings fund 1 822 1 040
Indemnity compensation 11 428 8 636
Medical 3 798 3 400
Training 1 164 884
Allowances (housing and transportation) 19 164 18 879
Other employee expenses 9 009 5 621
Total 157 380 134 792

41. OTHER EXPENSES 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Occupancy 22 617 21 057
Office 40 280 32 500
Services 35 659 34 997
Fees 6 625 5 564
Information technology 16 561 13 449
Other expenses 33 995 44 959
Total 155 737 152 526
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42. LIABILITY AND CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Letters of credit 1 132 039 1 047 831
Acceptances 261 518 307 964
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 559 057 737 948
- Performance guarantees 1 298 629 831 706
- Other guarantees 2 927 746 2 393 655

Unused credit facilities 2 153 785 1 932 018
Total 8 332 774 7 251 122

43. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Interest rate swaps 1 120 159 1 087 106
Currency forward contracts 2 848 197 2 258 152
Total 3 968 356 3 345 258

DETAILS OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES FOR 2007 AND 2006:

(JOD '000) 2007

Notional amounts by maturity 
Positive Negative Total Within From  From More

fair fair notional 3 3 to 12 1 year to than
value value amount months months 3 years 3 years

Interest rate swaps 19 101 21 686 988 913 372 514 467 309 115 858 33 232
Currency forward contracts 2 485 4 350 2 382 265 536 841 1 648 722 69 227 127 475
Derivatives held for trading 21 586 26 036 3 371 178 909 355 2 116 031 185 085 160 707
Interest rate swaps 2 440 4 886 131 088 15 603 5 596 31 697 78 192
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives held for fair value

hedge 2 440 4 886 131 088 15 603 5 596 31 697 78 192
Interest rate swaps - - - - - - 158 - - - 158 - - - - - -
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - 465 932 172 389 147 604 145 939 - - -
Derivatives held for cash flow 

hedge - - - - - - 466 090 172 389 147 762 145 939 - - -
Total 24 026 30 922 3 968 356 1 097 347 2 269 389 362 721 238 899
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(JOD '000) 2006

Notional amounts by maturity 
Positive Negative Total Within From  From More

fair fair notional 3 3 to 12 1 year to than
value value amount months months 3 years 3 years

Interest rate swaps 641 1 178 108 831 21 145 21 145 2 803 63 738
Currency forward contracts 5 014 34 090 1 657 228 1 181 931 475 297 - - - - - -
Derivatives held for trading 5 655 35 268 1 766 059 1 203 076 496 442 2 803 63 738
Interest rate swaps 1 313 3 199 826 774 279 456 459 503 41 845 45 970
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - 104 963 97 982 6 981 - - - - - -
Derivatives held for fair value 
hedge 1 313 3 199 931 737 377 438 466 484 41 845 45 970

Interest rate swaps 101 - - - 151 504 - - - 10 249 - - - 141255
Currency forward contracts - - - - - - 495 958 371 968 123 990 - - - - - -
Derivatives held for cash flow 
hedge 101 - - - 647 462 371 968 134 239 - - - 141 255

Total 7 069 38 467 3 345 258 1 952 482 1 097 165 44 648 250 963

44. GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS AND REVENUE
The Bank operates worldwide through its branches in Jordan and abroad. The table be-
low shows the geographical distribution of the assets and revenue:

(JOD '000) 2007

Assets Revenue
Inside Jordan 4 076 530 142 677
Outside Jordan 17 143 501 618 160
Total 21 220 031 760 837

2006
Inside Jordan 4 143 558 118 506
Outside Jordan 14 296 580 543 338
Total 18 440 138 661 844
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45. BUSINESS LINES
Business lines are segmented as follows:
(JOD '000) 2007

Corporate Treasury Private Retail Other Total 
banking banking banking 

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 
and financial institutions - - - 6 620 082 - - - 181 806 - - - 6 801 888

Financial investments 1 009 321 1 967 275 - - - - - - 1 120 055 4 096 651
Direct credit facilities 8 618 440 - - - 13 828 1 034 954 207 906 9 875 128

LIABILITIES

Banks’ and financial institutions’
deposits - - - 3 130 172 - - - - - - - - - 3 130 172

Customer deposits 5 536 869 - - - 1 822 405 4 888 683 - - - 12 247 957
Cash margin 1 268 453 - - - 37 903 103 725 - - - 1 410 081

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 162 655 115 693 20 785 147 623 96 130 542 886
Commission income, net 80 934 (818) 400 28 636 2 201 111 353
Other revenue 2 805 38 743 89 5 446 59 515 106 598
Net revenue 246 394 153 618 21 274 181 705 157 846 760 837

2006

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 
and financial institutions - - - 6 466 273 - - - 148 354 - - - 6 614 627

Financial investments 504 086 2 161 420 - - - - - - 715 148 3 380 654
Direct credit facilities 6 928 648 - - - 6 543 772 188 202 427 7 909 806

LIABILITIES

Banks’ and financial institutions’
deposits - - - 2 627 291 - - - - - - - - - 2 627 291

Customer deposits 4 180 552 - - - 1 891 909 4 684 299 - - - 10 756 760
Cash margin 1 319 625 - - - 38 961 112 311 - - - 1 470 897

INCOME STATEMENT

Net interest income 208 033 49 768 15 199 88 796 105 292 467 088
Commission income, net 71 305 (686) 492 26 763 607 98 481
Other revenue 6 643 26 134 141 3 592 59 765 96 275
Net revenue 285 981 75 216 15 832 119 151 165 664 661 844
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46. CREDIT RISK
A. MAXIMUM EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK AFTER PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT

AND BEFORE COLLATERAL HELD OR OTHER CREDIT RISK MITIGATION

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES RELATING TO ON-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS:
Balances with central banks 2 712 914 1 792 606
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 907 168 4 673 663
Financial assets - held for trading 413 848 632 626
Financial assets - designated 112 929 - - -
Direct credit facilities 9 875 128 7 909 806
Financial assets - available for sale 1 404 445 1 185 412
Financial assets - held to maturity 1 081 057 881 735
Other assets 253 611 352 269

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES RELATING TO OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS:
Letters of credit 1 132 039 1 047 831
Acceptances 261 518 307 964
Letters of guarantee 4 785 432 3 963 309
Unused credit facilities 2 153 785 1 932 018
Total 28 093 874 24 679 239

B. CREDIT QUALITY - DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES

The Bank regularly analyses the credit exposures using an internal credit rating 
system. The table below shows the amount of direct credit facilities for each internal
credit grade and the relationship between internal and external ratings.

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Description Internal External
rating rating 

equivalent
Investment grade From 1 to 3 AAA to A- 5 799 960 4 817 653
Standard monitoring From 4 to 6 BBB+ to B- 4 051 909 3 026 939
Special monitoring (watch list) From 7 CCC+ to C 43 807 41 138
Non-performing loans From 8 to 10 D 305 290 369 610
Total 10 200 966 8 255 340
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C. CREDIT QUALITY – DEBT SECURITIES

The table below shows the credit exposure of the debt securities using the external credit
ratings.

(JOD '000) 2007

External rating Financial Financial Financial Financial Total
assets - held assets - assets - assets - held

for trading designated available to maturity
for sale

Private sector:
- AAA to A- 7 313 47 937 759 894 10 637 825 781
- BBB+ to B- - - - 25 332 143 863 2 059 171 254
- Below B- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Unrated 294 14 342 36 017 14 389 65 042
Governments and public sector 406 241 25 318 464 671 1 053 972 1 950 202
Total 413 848 112 929 1 404 445 1 081 057 3 012 279

2006
Private sector:
- AAA to A- 398 627 - - - 609 951 14 549 1 023 127
- BBB+ to B- 11 096 - - - 103 969 2 127 117 192
- Below B- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- Unrated 14 108 - - - 74 119 30 381 118 608
Governments and public sector 208 795 - - - 397 373 834 678 1 440 846
Total 632 626 - - - 1 185 412 881 735 2 699 773

D. PAST DUE DEBTS

The table below shows the financial assets that are past due.

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Watch list debts (past due by 90 days) 43 807 41 138
Non-performing debts:
- Substandard (past due by 90-180 days) 70 494 68 365
- Doubtful (past due by 180-360 days) 164 302 110 025
- Problematic (past due more than 360 days) 70 494 191 220
Total 349 097 410 748
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The fair value of the collateral received against non-performing debts amounted to JOD
48.4 million as at 31 December 2007, compared to JOD 85.3 million as at 31 Decem-
ber 2006.

E. CREDIT EXPOSURE CATEGORIZED BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION

(JOD '000)

Jordan Other Arab Asia* Europe America Rest Total 
countries of the  

world
Balances with central banks 917 466 1 792 346 493 2 609 - - - - - - 2 712 914
Balances and deposits with banks 
and financial institutions 13 000 1 645 030 46 342 2 166 028 35 925 843 3 907 168

Financial assets - held for trading 294 406 241 - - - 7 313 - - - - - - 413 848
Financial assets - designated - - - - - - 112 929 - - - - - - - - - 112 929
Direct credit facilities 1 984 736 7 197 270 362 539 327 746 2 837 - - - 9 875 128
Financial assets - available for sale 68 630 912 247 95 348 35 611 292 609 - - - 1 404 445
Financial assets - held to maturity 629 309 445 003 3 199 - - - 3 546 - - - 1 081 057
Other assets 51 213 155 545 10 705 31 294 4 845 9 253 611
Total as at 31 December 2007 3 664 648 12 553 682 631 555 2 570 601 339 762 852 19 761 100
Total as at 31 December 2006 3 864 834 10 466 993 440 886 2 319 872 334 896 636 17 428 117

* Excluding Arab countries 

47. MARKET RISK
Assuming the market prices as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 changed by 5%, the
impact on income statement and equity will be as follows:

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Income Shareholders’ Total Income Shareholders’ Total
statement equity statement equity

Interest rate 18 965 2 269 21 234 15 802 3 692 19 494
Foreign exchange rate 1 847 29 974 31 821 6 172 19 926 26 098
Share prices 189 8 326 8 515 102 6 561 6 663
Total 21 001 40 569 61 570 22 076 30 179 52 255
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48.  INTEREST RATE RISK
A) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity date, whichever occurs first.) 

Within After 3 months
3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 1 223 333 278 335
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 191 034 191 303
Financial assets - held for trading 158 060 147 772
Financial assets - designated 38 501 54 725
Direct credit facilities 4 595 895 1 616 934
Financial assets - available for sale 888 404 119 277
Financial assets - held to maturity 548 390 64 899
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - -
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 10 643 617 2 473 245

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 2 609 971 124 169
Customer deposits 8 710 782 486 150
Cash margin 656 253 230 884
Borrowed funds 354 610 - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - - -
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 12 331 616 841 203
Gap (1 687 999) 1 632 042

Accumulated gap (1 687 999) (55 957)
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(JOD '000)

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective
and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate
12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 181 806 181 806 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 818 505 818 505 - - -

189 727 21 277 70 922 110 815 1 894 409 6.29
208 740 - - - - - - 316 091 3 907 168 5.55
108 016 - - - - - - 5 800 419 648 16.04

12 321 7 382 - - - - - - 112 929 7.14
1 619 275 528 787 1 514 237 - - - 9 875 128 6.68

66 179 215 605 114 980 208 150 1 612 595 5.21
129 658 238 848 99 262 - - - 1 081 057 3.68

- - - - - - - - - 870 422 870 422 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 181 748 181 748 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 253 611 253 611 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 11 005 11 005 - - -

2 333 916 1 011 899 1 799 401 2 957 953 21 220 031 - - -

5 219 - - - - - - 390 813 3 130 172 4.71
342 901 177 021 35 774 2 495 329 12 247 957 3.41
231 218 75 506 216 220 - - - 1 410 081 4.25

- - - - - - - - - - - - 354 610 5.11
- - - - - - - - - 85 572 85 572 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 94 088 94 088 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 330 997 330 997 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 18 560 18 560 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 3 547 994 3 547 994 - - -

579 338 252 527 251 994 6 963 353 21 220 031 - - -
1 754 578 759 372 1 547 407 (4 005 400) - - - - - -

1 698 621 2 457 993 4 005 400 - - - - - - - - -
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B) EXPOSURE TO INTEREST RATE VOLATILITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

(Classification is based on interest rate repricing or maturity date, whichever occurs first.) 

Within After 3 months
3 months and before

6 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 989 024 56 738
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 847 458 151 672
Financial assets  - held for trading 447 313 140 289
Direct credit facilities 4 519 768 1 164 412
Financial assets - available for sale 697 902 104 515
Financial assets - held to maturity 277 902 56 759
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets - - - - - -
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 10 779 367 1 674 385

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 2 165 430 97 808
Customer deposits 8 456 502 264 917
Cash margin 840 491 216 533
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - - -
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 11 462 423 579 258
Gap (683 056) 1 095 127

Accumulated gap (683 056) 412 071
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(JOD '000) 

After 6 months After 12 months After Not tied to Total Effective
and before and before 36 months a specific interest rate
12 months 36 months maturity %

- - - - - - - - - 148 358 148 358 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 607 586 607 586 - - -
- - - 31 915 - - - 107 343 1 185 020 5.50

198 282 2 127 70 474 054 4 673 663 4.06
45 019 5 - - - 3 133 635 759 11.87

1 448 978 265 638 511 010 - - - 7 909 806 6.39
94 604 122 413 165 978 164 007 1 349 419 4.78
40 423 276 119 230 532 - - - 881 735 4.50

- - - - - - - - - 513 741 513 741 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 168 439 168 439 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 352 269 352 269 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 14 343 14 343 - - -

1 827 306 698 217 907 590 2 553 273 18 440 138 - - -

42 506 2 465 - - - 319 082 2 627 291 3.53
211 557 242 134 1 062 1 580 588 10 756 760 2.93
269 450 49 398 95 025 - - - 1 470 897 3.45

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - 98 278 98 278 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 88 046 88 046 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 289 320 289 320 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 15 598 15 598 - - -
- - - - - - - - - 3 093 948 3 093 948 - - -

523 513 293 997 96 087 5 484 860 18 440 138 - - -
1 303 793 404 220 811 503 (2 931 587) - - - - - -

1 715 864 2 120 084 2 931 587 - - - - - - - - -
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49. LIQUIDITY RISK
A) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2007

Within After 1 month
1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 873 642 349 691
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 2 172 815 1 018 219
Financial assets - held for trading 53 503 104 557
Financial assets - designated 24 317 14 184
Direct credit facilities 2 432 663 2 163 232
Financial assets - available for sale 281 653 606 751
Financial assets - held to maturity 417 458 130 932
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets 21 001 42 002
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 6 277 052 4 429 568

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 2 084 349 525 622
Customer deposits 5 238 998 2 086 705
Cash margin 347 363 308 890
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities 10 676 21 351
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 7 681 386 2 942 568
Gap (1 404 334) 1 487 000

Accumulated gap (1 404 334) 82 666
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(JOD '000)

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After 36 Not tied to Total
and before and before and before months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity  

- - - - - - - - - - - - 181 806 181 806
- - - - - - - - - - - - 818 505 818 505

278 335 189 727 21 277 70 922 110 815 1 894 409
191 303 208 740 - - - - - - 316 091 3 907 168
147 772 108 016 - - - - - - 5 800 419 648
54 725 12 321 7 382 - - - - - - 112 929

1 616 934 1 619 275 528 787 1 514 237 - - - 9 875 128
119 277 66 179 215 605 114 980 208 150 1 612 595
64 899 129 658 238 848 99 262 - - - 1 081 057

- - - - - - - - - - - - 870 422 870 422
- - - - - - - - - - - - 181 748 181 748

63 003 - - - - - - - - - 127 605 253 611
- - - - - - - - - - - - 11 005 11 005

2 536 248 2 333 916 1 011 899 1 799 401 2 831 947 21 220 031

124 169 5 219 - - - - - - 390 813 3 130 172
486 150 342 901 177 021 35 774 3 880 408 12 247 957
230 884 231 218 75 506 216 220 - - - 1 410 081

- - - - - - - - - 354 610 - - - 354 610
- - - - - - - - - - - - 85 572 85 572
- - - - - - - - - - - - 94 088 94 088

32 027 - - - - - - - - - 266 943 330 997
- - - - - - - - - - - - 18 560 18 560
- - - - - - - - - - - - 3 547 994 3 547 994

873 230 579 338 252 527 606 604 8 284 378 21 220 031
1 663 018 1 754 578 759 372 1 192 797 (5 452 431) - - -

1 745 684 3 500 262 4 259 634 5 452 431 - - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B) MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

Within After 1 month
1 month and before

3 months

ASSETS
Cash - - - - - -
Mandatory cash reserve with central banks - - - - - -
Balances with central banks 97 129 891 895
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 2 804 017 1 043 441
Financial assets  - held for trading 400 181 47 132
Direct credit facilities 3 016 287 1 503 481
Financial assets - available for sale 181 981 515 921
Financial assets - held to maturity 196 678 81 224
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies - - - - - -
Fixed assets - - - - - -
Other assets 21 067 42 134
Deferred tax, assets - - - - - -
Total assets 6 717 340 4 125 228

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 1 567 432 597 998
Customer deposits 5 242 397 1 169 446
Cash margin 560 905 279 586
Borrowed funds - - - - - -
Other provisions - - - - - -
Provision for income tax - - - - - -
Other liabilities 10 750 21 500
Deferred tax, liabilities - - - - - -
Shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 7 381 484 2 068 530
Gap (664 144) 2 056 698

Accumulated gap (664 144) 1 392 554

ARAB BANK PLC



193

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(JOD '000) 

After 3 months After 6 months After 12 months After 36 Not tied to Total
and before and before and before months a specific 

6 months 12 months 36 months maturity  

- - - - - - - - - - - - 148 358 148 358
- - - - - - - - - - - - 607 586 607 586

56 738 - - - 31 915 - - - 107 343 1 185 020
151 672 198 282 2 127 70 474 054 4 673 663
140 289 45 019 5 - - - 3 133 635 759

1 164 412 1 448 978 265 638 511 010 - - - 7 909 806
104 515 94 604 122 413 165 978 164 007 1 349 419
56 759 40 423 276 119 230 532 - - - 881 735

- - - - - - - - - - - - 513 741 513 741
- - - - - - - - - - - - 168 439 168 439

63 201 - - - - - - - - - 225 867 352 269
- - - - - - - - - - - - 14 343 14 343

1 737 586 1 827 306 698 217 907 590 2 426 871 18 440 138

97 808 42 506 2 465 - - - 319 082 2 627 291
264 917 211 557 242 134 1 062 3 625 247 10 756 760
216 533 269 450 49 398 95 025 - - - 1 470 897

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - 98 278 98 278
- - - - - - - - - - - - 88 046 88 046

32 250 - - - - - - - - - 224 820 289 320
- - - - - - - - - - - - 15 598 15 598
- - - - - - - - - - - - 3 093 948 3 093 948

611 508 523 513 293 997 96 087 7 465 019 18 440 138
1 126 078 1 303 793 404 220 811 503 (5 038 148) - - -

2 518 632 3 822 425 4 226 645 5 038 148 - - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50. CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OF THE CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS
(JOD '000) 2007

Within After 1 year After Total
1 year and before 5 years

5 years
Letters of credit 1 118 967 13 072 - - - 1 132 039
Acceptances 258 443 3 075 - - - 261 518
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 291 878 148 277 118 902 559 057
- Performance guarantees 350 770 804 287 143 572 1 298 629
- Other guarantees 2 773 724 154 007 15 2 927 746

Unused credit facilities 1 464 423 300 398 388 964 2 153 785
Total 6 258 205 1 423 116 651 453 8 332 774

2006
Letters of credit 1 035 755 12 076 - - - 1 047 831
Acceptances 305 992 1 972 - - - 307 964
Letters of guarantee:
- Payment guarantees 678 021 58 161 1 766 737 948
- Performance guarantees 203 002 537 894 90 810 831 706
- Other guarantees 2 300 341 93 303 11 2 393 655

Unused credit facilities 1 134 440 497 095 300 483 1 932 018
Total 5 657 551 1 200 501 393 070 7 251 122

51. NET FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITIONS 
2007 2006

Amount Equivalent Amount Equivalent
in (JOD '000) in (JOD '000)

USD (44 500) (31 551) (105 045) (74 500)
GBP 525 743 41 372 57 440
EUR 15 832 16 551 69 374 64 564
JPY 1 181 030 7 479 1 578 924 9 429
Other currencies* - - - 21 390 - - - 22 869
Total 14 612 79 802

*Various foreign currencies translated to Jordanian dinars 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 2 894 720 2 921 002 1 940 964 1 942 443
Balances and deposits with banks and financial institutions 3 907 168 3 925 971 4 673 663 4 697 283
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - held for trading 419 648 419 648 635 759 635 759
Financial assets at fair value through P&L - designated 112 929 112 929 - - - - - -
Direct credit facilities 9 875 128 9 917 894 7 909 806 7 954 933
Financial assets - available for sale 1 612 595 1 612 595 1 349 419 1 349 419
Financial assets - held to maturity 1 081 057 1 088 041 881 735 897 561
Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies 870 422 870 422 513 741 513 741

LIABILITIES
Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits 3 130 172 3 135 374 2 627 291 2 642 720
Customer deposits 12 247 957 12 291 006 10 756 760 10 793 315
Cash margin 1410 081 1 417 850 1 470 897 1 478 484
Borrowed funds 354 610 354 717 - - - - - -

53. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Bank manages its capital to ensure that entities of the Bank will be able to con-
tinue as a going concern while maximizing the return to shareholders. The composi-
tion of the regulatory capital as defined by the Basel Committee is as follows:

(JOD '000) 2007 2006

A - CORE CAPITAL
Paid-up share capital 356 000 356 000
Share premium 208 000 166 000
Statutory reserve 460 000 378 000
Voluntary reserve 1 036 754 921 688
General reserve 900 000 900 000
Retained earnings 3 132 - - -
Treasury shares (300) (34 414)
Total core capital 2 963 586 2 687 274
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(JOD '000) 2007 2006

B - SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL
Undisclosed reserves 110 544 13 663
Translation adjustments 148 481 89 665
Revaluation reserves 36 153 36 684
General banking risk reserve 147 948 145 988
Total supplementary capital 443 126 286 000
Total core capital and supplementary capital (A+B) 3 406 712 2 973 274
C - INVESTMENTS IN BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 690 600 461 908
Regulatory capital (A+B-C) 2 716 112 2 511 366
Risk-weighted assets (RWA) 11 835 846 10 798 747
Regulatory capital/risk-weighted assets 22.95% 23.26%
Core capital/risk-weighted assets 19.20% 20.61%

- The Board of Directors reviews the equity of the Bank semi-annually. The cash divi-
dends and capitalization of income policies are decided on the basis of several factors,
including cost of equity and risk.

- The minimum level of the capital adequacy ratio (regulatory capital divided by risk
weighted assets) as defined by the Basel Committee is 8%. The capital adequacy ratio
of the Bank as at 31 December 2007 was 22.95% compared to 23.26% as at 31 Decem-
ber 2006.

54. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

SISTER, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES: 
Dues from sister and subsidiary companies 1 980 557 2 634 462
Dues from associated companies 278 277 84 824
Deposits from sister and subsidiary companies 854 808 1 423 275
Deposits from associated companies 75 993 78 097
Interest income from sister and subsidiary companies 113 975 92 737
Interest expenses paid to sister and subsidiary companies 51 131 42 078
Interest income from associated companies 7 443 887
Interest expenses paid to associated companies 2 567 871
Guarantees and letters of credit - sister and subsidiary companies 91869 51 957
Guarantees, acceptances and letters of credit - associated companies 3 450 2 847
Unused credit facilities - sister and subsidiary companies 920 75 995
MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Direct credit facilities 290 338 264 385
Letters of credit 31 392 87 729
Guarantees 94 370 49 593
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Interest on facilities granted to major shareholders and members of the Board of
Directors is recorded at arm’s length.
The salaries and other fringe benefits of the Bank’s senior executives in Jordan and
abroad amounted to JOD 14.5 million in 2007, compared to JOD 11.6 million in 2006.

55. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
(JOD '000) 2007 2006

Cash and balances with central banks maturing within 3 months 2 334 459 1 852 311
Plus: balances with banks and financial institutions maturing within 3 months 3 507 125 4 321 512
Less: bank and financial institution deposits maturing within 3 months 3 000 784 2 484 512
Total 2 840 800 3 689 311

56. LEGAL CASES
Lawsuits filed against the Bank

a- Lawsuits have been filed against Arab Bank in which it was alleged that Arab Bank
has, through its New York branch, channeled funds to persons and entities de-
scribed as "terrorists" and "terrorist organizations in Palestine" respectively.
Based on such alleged acts, the Bank, it was claimed, has had aided and abetted
acts of terrorism which led to the death or the injury of the family members of the
claimants. Consequently, the claimants in the said lawsuits are requesting com-
pensation for the damages that have befallen them as a result of the alleged acts
of the Bank. No substantial new developments have occurred in 2007.
Arab Bank, in the opinion of its management, has been and is still fully respectful
of and compliant with all anti terrorism legislation in all countries in which it oper-
ates.

b- The Bank has entered into an agreement with the Office of the Controller of
Currency pursuant to which the branch was converted into a federal agency with
limited operations in compliance with the provisions of the US Federal Banking
Act. It was also agreed that the federal agency shall be allowed to maintain assets
in the amount of USD 420 million mostly in available for sale assets.

c- There are other lawsuits filed against the Bank in relation to transactions carried
out in the normal course of business and in the total amount of JOD 16.9 million
as on December 31, 2007 in comparison to JOD 15.4 million on December 31,
2006.  In the management's opinion, the Bank will not be held liable for any
amount in excess of the provision made for lawsuits and which is in the amount of
JOD 3.1 million in comparison to the JOD 5.1 million made in 2006.

57. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Some of the comparative figures have been reclassified to correspond with the 
current year presentation.
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONFIRMING ITS 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  

The Board of Directors confirms its responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements, and for implementing an effective internal control system in line with in-
ternational standards.

Abdel Hamid A. M. Shoman Sabih Taher D. Masri
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chairman 

H.E. Saleh Saad A. Al-Muhanna Nazik Odah Al Hariri
Representing 
The Ministry of Finance and Economy,
Saudi Arabia

H.E. Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin H.E. Mr Samir Farhan Kawar
Representing  
The Social Security Corporation,
Jordan

H.E. “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S. Taher Riad Burhan Taher Kamal

Mohammed  Hariri Wahbe A. Tamari 

H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi 
Representing 
Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation,
Jordan
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONCERNING THE 
CONTINUATION OF THE COMPANY 

The Board of Directors confirms that there are no significant issues that may affect
the  continued operations of the Bank during the financial year 2008.

Abdel Hamid A. M. Shoman Sabih Taher D. Masri
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chairman 

H.E. Saleh Saad A. Al-Muhanna Nazik Odah Al Hariri
Representing 
The Ministry of Finance and Economy,
Saudi Arabia

H.E. Ibrahim Youssouf Ibrahim Izziddin H.E. Samir Farhan Kawar
Representing  
The Social Security Corporation,
Jordan

H.E. “Mohammed Thabet” Abdulraouf S. Taher Riad Burhan Taher Kamal

Mohammed  Hariri Wahbe A. Tamari 

H.E. Dr Tayseer Radwan Saleem Al-Smadi 
Representing 
Abdul Hameed Shoman Foundation,
Jordan
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STATEMENT BY THE CHAIRMAN/CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
AND THE GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/HEAD OF STRATEGIC
INVESTMENTS

The Chairman/Chief Executive Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer attest to
the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements and the financial informa-
tion of this report as at 31 December 2007.

ABDEL HAMID A. M. SHOMAN DR FAROUK EL-KHAROUF
Chairman/Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer/

Head of Strategic Investments
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART OF ARAB BANK PLC
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STRUCTURE OF ARAB BANK GROUP
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ARAB BANK BRANCHES

WHOLLY OWNED CONTROLLED COMPANIES AFFILIATES

� Arab Bank Australia Limited

� Europe Arab Bank plc

� Islamic International Arab 
Bank plc

� Al-Arabi Investment Group Co.

� Arab Investment Bank S.A.L.
(66.65%)

� Arab Tunisian Bank (64.24%)

� AB Capital Limited (60%)

� Arab Palestinian Investment
Bank (55%)

� Al Nisr Al Arabi Insurance
Company (50%)

� Arab Bank-Syria (49%)

� Turkland Bank A.S. (50%)

� Oman Arab Bank S.A.O. (49%)

� Arab National Bank (40%)

� Arabia Insurance Co. (36.79%)

� Commercial Building Co.
(33.09%)

ARAB BANK PLC

ARAB BANK GROUP
SHAREHOLDERS

ARAB BANK
(SWITZERLAND) 
Sister Institution

SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATES
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THE ARAB BANK NETWORK

ARAB BANK PLC

JORDAN
Telephone country code: 962

General Management
P.O. Box 950544, 950545,
941579
Shmeisani, Amman 11195
Tel.(6) 5600000, 5660140
Fax (6) 5606793, 5606830

MAIN BRANCHES

Amman, King Faisal St.
P.O. Box 8 & 68
Amman 11118
Tel. (6) 4638161-9
Fax (6) 4637082

Amman, Shmeisani
P.O. Box 950546
Amman 11195
Tel. (6) 5607231, 5607115
Fax (6) 5670564

ALGERIA
Telephone country code: 213

Algiers
Place El Qods 23
Hydra, Algiers 16000
Tel. (21) 604980
Fax (21) 480868

BAHRAIN
Telephone country code: 973 
(No area code required)

Manama, Offshore Banking
Unit
P.O. Box 813
Building No. 540/542
Road 1706, Manama 317
Tel. 17549000
Fax 17541116

Manama
P.O. Box 395
Building No. 540/542
Road 1706, Manama 317
Tel. 17549000
Fax 17540292

CYPRUS
Telephone country code: 357
(No area code required)

Nicosia
P.O. Box 25650
1 Spyrou Kyprianou Avenue
1311 Nicosia
Tel. 22899100
Fax 22767741

EGYPT
Telephone country code: 20

Cairo
P.O. Box 2006
28 Tala’t Harb St.
Tel. (2) 25767019
Fax (2) 25746165

LEBANON
Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11-1015
Riad El-Solh Square,
Banks Street
Beirut 11072070
Tel. (1) 980153-4, 980246-9
Fax (1) 980803, 980299

MOROCCO
Telephone country code: 212

Casablanca
P.O. Box 13810
174, Blvd. Mohammed  V
Tel. (2) 2223152
Fax (2) 2200233

PALESTINE
Telephone country code: 970, 972

Ramallah - Al-Balad
P.O. Box 148, Ramallah 
Tel. (2) 2986489
Fax (2) 2986488

Gaza
P.O. Box 91
Omar Al-Mukhtar St., Gaza 
Tel. (8) 2866288
Fax (8) 2820704

QATAR
Telephone country code: 974
(No area code required)

Doha
P.O. Box 172
119 Grand Hammed Ave.
Tel. 4387777
Fax 4410774

SINGAPORE
Telephone country code: 65
(No area code required)

Singapore
80 Raffles Place
32 – 20 UOB Plaza 2
Singapore 048624
Tel. 65330055
Fax 65322150

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
Telephone country code: 971

Abu Dhabi
P.O. Box 875
Sh. Tahnoun Bin Mohammad 
Building, Naser St.
Tel. (2) 6392225
Fax (2) 6212370

Dubai
P.O. Box 11364
Al-Ittihad St. 
Tel. (4) 2950845
Fax (4) 2955974, 2940847

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Telephone country code: 1

New York (Federal agency)
520 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022-4237
Tel. (212) 7159700
Fax (212) 5934632 (Credit Dept.),
(212) 2233175 (Operations)
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YEMEN REPUBLIC
Telephone country code: 967

Sana’a
P.O. Box  475 & 1301
Zubairi Road
Tel. (1) 276585-93
Fax (1) 276583

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

CHINA
Telephone country code: 86

Shanghai 
Unit 1803, Shanghai Trade Square
188 Si Ping Road
Shanghai 200086
Tel. (21) 65077737/38
Fax (21) 65072776

HONG KONG
Telephone country code: 852

Hong Kong
Suite 2711, Citibank Tower
3 Garden Road
Central Hong Kong
Tel. 28787800
Fax 28787821

KAZAKHSTAN
Telephone country code: 7

Almaty
188 Dostyk Ave.
Almaty 050051
Tel. (3272) 596253
Fax (3272) 596254

KOREA
Telephone country code: 82

Seoul
C.P.O. Box 1331
Daewoo Centre Bldg. 
14th Floor
541, 5-ka, Namdaemoon-ro,
Joong-gu, 100714 Seoul
Tel. (2) 7754290-3
Fax (2) 7754294

BRANCHES:

AUSTRIA
Telephone country code: 43

P.O. Box 100
Seilerstätte 11
1015 Vienna
Tel. (1) 5134240
Fax (1) 51342409

FRANCE
Telephone country code: 33

P.O. Box 319 75365 
75365 Paris Cedex 08
26 Avenue des Champs Elysées 
75008 Paris
Tel. (1) 45616000
Fax (1) 42890978

GERMANY
Telephone country code: 49

Bockenheimer Landstr. 24
60323 Frankfurt am Main
P.O. Box 100127
6001 Frankfurt am Main
Tel. (69) 242590
Fax (69) 235471

ITALY
Telephone country code: 39

P.O. Box 745
Via Vincenzo Bellini 24
00198 Rome
Tel. (06) 854551
Fax (06) 85355481

SPAIN
Telephone country code: 34

Paseo de la Castellana, 31 – 5
28046 Madrid
Tel. (91) 3084290
Fax (91) 3086482

SISTER, SUBSIDIARY AND 
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

ARAB BANK (SWITZERLAND)
Telephone country code: 41

Zurich
P.O. Box 2023
Claridenstrasse 26
CH – 8022 Zurich
Tel. (44) 2657111
Fax (44) 2657330

Geneva
P.O. Box 3575
Place Longemalle 10 - 12
CH - 1211 Geneva 3
Tel. (22) 7151211
Fax (22) 7151311

ARAB BANK AUSTRALIA LTD
Telephone country code: 61

Sydney
P.O. Box N645
Grosvenor Place NSW 1220
Level 9
200 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Tel. (2) 937789 00
(2) 92323844 (Dealing Room)
Fax (2) 92215428

EUROPE ARAB BANK PLC

GENERAL MANAGEMENT AND

BRANCH

UNITED KINGDOM
Telephone country code: 44

13-15 Moorgate 
London EC2R 6 AD
Tel. (20) 73158500
Fax (20) 76007620
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ARAB INVESTMENT BANK S.A.L.
Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11 – 7000
Riad El Solh Square,
Banks Street
Beirut 11072070
Tel. (1) 985111, 985222
Fax (1) 987333

FINANCE ACCOUNTANCY
MOHASSABA SA
Telephone country code: 41

Geneva
Rue Neuve-du-Molard 24
P.O. Box 3155
CH – 1211 Geneva 3
Tel. (22) 9083000
Fax (22) 7387229

ISLAMIC INTERNATIONAL
ARAB BANK PLC

Telephone country code: 962

Amman
P.O. Box 925802
Wasfi Al-Tal St.
Amman 11110
Tel. (6) 5694901
Fax (6) 5694914

AL-ARABI INVESTMENT
GROUP CO.
Telephone country code: 962

Amman
P.O. Box 143156
Amman 11814
Tel. (6) 5522239
Fax (6) 5519064

ARAB TUNISIAN BANK
Telephone country code: 216

Tunis
P.O. Box 520
9 rue Hadi Nouira
Tunis 1001
Tel. (71) 351155
Fax (71) 347270

ARAB PALESTINIAN
INVESTMENT BANK
Telephone country code: 970, 972

Ramallah
Al Harajeh Building
P.O. Box 1268
Ramallah
Tel. (2) 2987126/7
Fax (2) 2987125

OMAN ARAB BANK S.A.O.
Telephone country code: 968
(No area code required)

Ruwi 
P.O. Box 2010 
MBD Area, 112 Ruwi
Tel. 24706265
Fax 24797736

ARAB BANK-SYRIA
Telephone country code: 963

Damascus
Al Mahdi Bin Barakeh Street
Abo Romaneh
P.O. Box 38
Damascus
Tel. (11) 3348130
Fax (11) 3349844

ARAB NATIONAL BANK
Telephone country code: 966

Riyadh
P.O.Box 56921
King Faisal Str.
North Murabba
Riyadh 11564
Tel. (1) 4029000
Fax (1) 4027747

ARABIA INSURANCE CO.
Telephone country code: 961

Beirut
P.O. Box 11-2172
Beirut
Tel. (1) 363610
Fax (1) 365139

TURKLAND BANK A.S.
Telephone country code: 9

Istanbul
19 Mayis Mah. 19 Mayis Cad.
Caddesi Sisli Plaza A Blok No. 7
Sisli 34360 Istanbul
Tel (212)3683560
Fax (212) 2913729

AB CAPITAL LIMITED
Telephone country code: 971

Dubai
P.O. Box 506582
Dubai International financial
Centre
Building 5, Level 5
Dubai
Tel (4) 5071200
Fax (4) 5071214

Al NISR Al-ARABI 
INSURANCE CO.
Telephone country code: 962

Amman
P.O. Box 9194
Amman 11191
Tel (6) 5685171
Fax (6) 5685890
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GENERAL ASSEMBLY AGENDA

The following are the items of the agenda of the 78th meeting of the General Assembly held on 28 March 

2008:

FIRST: ANNUAL ORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

1. Presentation and adoption of the minutes of the 77th meeting of the General Assembly.

2. Presentation of the report of the Board of Directors for the year 2007, and of the outlook for 2008.

3. Presentation of the auditors’ report on the financial statements of the Bank for the financial year 2007.

4. Presentation and approval of the financial statements of the Bank for the year 2007, and adoption of the 
recommendation of the Board of Directors to distribute a dividend for 2007 at the rate of JOD 0.3 per share,
which is 30% of the nominal value of JOD 1.0 per share.

5. Release of the members of the Board of Directors from liability for the year 2007.

6. Approval of the decision of the Board of Directors on 24 January 2008 to appoint Deloitte and Touche (M.E.)
as the Bank’s external auditors for the Lebanese branches for a three-year period starting 1 January 2008,
in conformity with Article (189) of the Lebanese Monetary and Credit Law.  

7. Election of the Bank’s auditors for the year 2008 and determination of their remuneration.

8. Other issues relating to the meeting of the Ordinary General Assembly subject to prior approval of 10% of
the votes represented at the meeting. 

SECOND: EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL ASSEMBLY

1. To modify Article (6) of the Articles of Incorporation and Article (4) of the Bank’s by-laws to read as follows:

“The capital of the company is composed of JOD 534,000,000 (five hundred and thirty four million),
representing 534,000,000 shares with a value of JOD 1 each. The decision to increase the capital of the com-
pany is subject to approval by the Extraordinary General Assembly. It is also subject to the approval of the
Central Bank of Jordan, the Ministry of Industry and Commerce and the stock market authorities following

approval by the Extraordinary General Assembly.”

2. The issuance of 178,000,000 shares, representing 0.5 share for each outstanding share, to be distributed
free of charge to all shareholders registered in the Sharholders’ Register 15 days from the date of registra-
tion with the Stock Exchange Commission. 

3. The trading unit for Arab Bank shares will become 15 shares for each share with Arab Bank (Switzerland),
instead of 10 shares.


